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HIGHLIGHTS

i thouonch excep! par shore o) 2007 2006 | 2005 | 2004 ‘
Balance Sheet Data

Totc Assefs $2,174,384 $2,069,775 $2,059,881 $1,992,292
Net Redl Estate Invesiments 1,957,239 1,885,711 1,896,505 1,873,687
Total Liabiities® 1,257,463 1,143,108 1,085,727 1,059,507

Shareholders’ Equity CAERAY 925,678 972,729 931,388

Operating Data
Total Rental Revenues $246.613 §224,777 $201,781 5178,998

Net Income from Confinuing Cperations 48,788 52,640 55,992 45,528
Net Income 69,385 176,955 92,741 97,804
Funds from Operatfions" 98,409 110,311 124,836 113,663

Cash Dividends® ] 88,599 162,704 87,272 80,904

Per Share Data”

Net Income from Continuing Operations SO $0.75 $0.63
Net Income 2.38 1.24 1.37
Funds from Operations® 1.48 1.67 1.58
Cash Dividends® 2.20 1.17 1.13

UlVhaihwmmhuﬁm1mﬂhhﬂmﬂddwhmmimmﬂhumdmn’ﬂ-nzmdhWcmﬁﬁwinmuwSm{W'}mmmh(uimu)
!msdnnfmm,plusdapmdaﬁonwmlmmnnduhndpstmnhumutldmdpmmlﬂmnd]dmmmuhmdwreﬂnufumhmupucﬁuunﬂumhmmwmmmshﬂdh
asidernd along with, but no1 a3 an ohersative 1o GRAP nat Incame s 0 mecsure of our operaing periosmuace, A dows no represent cash genessted bom opemting odiviaes i aeconfonce with GAAF and i nat nacessarly
inficative of Fonds oveiabs to fund cui ch needs. For o recondliation of £70 to GAAP oat income, s29 poge 28 In the ortathed Amwal Report on Form 10-K

 Het Incomes from Continuing Operations, Het Income and Funds from Operctionss ate pr diled share, Csh Dividends are per busic .

@ Amours hove been redessifind 1o cororm to the 2007 prasensation,




N N a “Enthusiasm is ons of the most powsrful engines of success.
vy o NZoeou N When you do a thing, do it with oll your might. Put your
N N N ANR whole soul into it. Stamp it with your own personality. Be
N N RSN (5 active, be energetic, be enthusiastic and faithful, and you will
) ) - occomplish your objsctive. Nothing great wos ever achieved
without anthusiosm. *
— Rolph Woldo Emerson, Poet and Philosopher

Two thousand and seven wos an excellent year for Equity One. We
achieved record internol growth, significantly upgraded the quolity
of our portfolio, established o West Coas! presence, enhanced our
manogemenl team, ond siiengthened our bolance sheel.
Consequently, our stock was one of the strongest performers in the
shopping centes sector, down 9% on a fotol ratumn bosis versus
negotive 15% for the sector, accarding to Citigroup Equity Research,

Whilp we are proud of cur 2007 results, we ore also well aware that
the global marketploce is changing ! 0 rapid pace. Real estate
stocks are no longer the darling they once were after posting nearly
25% totad seturns for five conseculive years. Credit is scarce.
Retailers are scaling back, and consumers are being coutious.
Fortunately, we hove prepored ourselves for difficult times by
repositioning our compeny for stability and growth. We are ready for
ond welcome the new ero ahead of us.

Qur repositioning effart has been focused on lowering the risk
pramium on our stock. We took specific meosures 1o eliminate risk
in those areos we could not justify. This included selling our weaker
assefs and redeploying the capital into fortress quelity shopping
centers in supply consirained markets. We teiminated out riskiest
ground-up development projects o free up our people and capitol fo
focus on leasing ond redeveloping our core portfolio. We upgraded
our systems and technology to allow us to keep o closer eye on the
operafing and financia! detoils impocting owr shopping centers. And,
finally, we recently established on alternative source of equity
copital with an affiliate of First Washington Realty, Inc. and The
State of Celifornio Public Employsss’ Retirement System (CalPERS),
the forgest pension fund in the country, fo co-invest in shopping
centers throughout the United Stotes.

- .
e

During 2007, our same-property net operating income increased
3.3%, the highest yeor-over-yeor incrensa in the compony’s history.
We sold 14 of our non-core properties for $72 million, including 4
centers anchored by low-volume Winn-Dixie stores. We were
ploased with the pricing, espacially in light of the secondary morkets
in which these properties ore located. We reinvested those proceeds
into two top fier centers — Concord Shoppiag Plozo in Miomi,
Florida {se2 oerial on page 7) and Buckhead Station in Atlanta,
Georgia (see aerial on page 8). These centers are situoted
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i donsely populated meikes with severe supply wnsirainds G
contain feusas with helow miarker rents. We successhuly contplered
six development ond sedevelopment ojeds ar o totut cost of $40
wmilkion. Our bolance sheet ended ihe yeur with u wnservaiive
debi-to-total capisalizaiion 1atio of fess 1hon 40%.

Qun redevelopment progra is progiessing well ani is o key
component 1o vur shategic plan. During e youw, ve complesed
lour sedevelopment projeuts having o totol wsi of $21 million,
including the 1e-tenanting of theee former Winn Dixie stores to
Publi, Food Lion, and LA Fitness. We ulso huve $23 wiillion in
iedevelopments undes tomstiuction. Two of cur most exciting
miojects gre Fandain Landing in Jecksewille, Horido (see ceriol
on poge 3) ead Sheridan Plezu in Hollyeood, Flosido {see veriul o
puye 6). At Mundaiin, we a2 building the it Whole Foods in the
City of Jucksonville, Floridu. We expect the eddivion o Whale Foods
vall incrgose this shopping censer's tads orea from a 3-mile rodius
to over 10-miles. Our leasing tetin is very exgited nhout
ree-meechondising the 89,000 syvure e of weinil space djozen te
VWhola Foors. We e redavefoping ihis enter 1o be envionmensiolly
ellicien! oned expect 10 reweive LEED {Leadership in tneigy sad
Envisonmental Design) cenificusion. A1 Sheridus, we are replacing
an underperforming movie theater and lour small stores totaking
54,000 squure feet vash o new 104 000 sijuine foot Iwo-story
Kobl's Depuntment Siore,

Qur iedevelopment initintives generate ha highest etuzn on our
capital and offer ihe lowes visk, We heligve ovr existing portlofio
coniuins nurmeiows redevelopnient epporiunitics umourting to well
it e hendieds of millions of delers in potentiat invusiments over
en extended tine peiod. Forexample, we own ey shoppiry
cenless comprising 22 acies i dovmtovn Suckhend, o high income,
niving subutb of Atlon, Georgio. Cousins Properties Incorporaled
is huitding Perimeter Center, @ 5660 million mived-use
tevelopent project sitveted on 10-uues, direuly coross the sheel
lrom o shopping water we ovr on 13 aces of lund. We are i the
plunning phases of redaveloping his site. We abo have plans 1o
wedevelep o numben of other shopping cenlers, induding Alunlic
Village in Jucksonvitle, Dolahin illoge in 1. Pete Bendh, Beuuclurc
in Jucksonville, ani Young Circte in Hollywsod.

Qur develogment program is elso on tock. Dusing the yaar, ve
compleied tvo Publiz-anthosed ground up developments - Shops
ot Westidye in #cDonough, Georgic and Windhesier Pluza in
Eunisville, Alubeme - aggregaiing ST million. We e:2 conensly
undervay with $59 mitlion i new developmeni projedts, must
noiably Sunlake, o $40 million Publis-onchored shoppring center in
Tosnpe, Floride, Ve are also vorkiag on o number of

Piedmont Peachiree Crossing, Atlanto, Georgio
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ETAIL
BEELATIONSHIPS

"Fquity One is o great partner who has been able
to identify and implement redevelopment
apportunities in key markets for Staples. We
look forward to expanding the relationship in the
yeors cheod.”

John Borton,

Executive VP Reol Fstoie
ond Development
Stgples, Inc.

development ond redevelopment opportunities in Southern
(olifornio. We hope o secure ot least one project in thot murket
duiing 2008. :

Our balance sheet i in terifc shape. W have- “ i
minimot debt maturing in 2008, and hay MR
drawn on our $275 million ine of (BB ..n'i
investment groda rotings fiarfel u‘}gr t.z.u n .
onnounced joint vanrdiB¥igh -"IIHF (mk M -{:
Washington Really ond Galf il
source of equity copital. Our fisEIfg g 3

537 million purchase of Airpark F nvu 4" A 0 nu
completed in March 2008, Airpark i i q., i -u |
Miami Intemationa! Airport in o densely g[ 5
constrained trade arec. It is onchored by o i
Home Depot Expo, Office Depot and Sturbucks i
wa agreed 10 contibuto seven of out exlslmg pﬂ? il

_f"'

it |saosytosaemunysulve: Immgs o 'é il
this econamit cycle. The shonger, better ciiit z’=‘l RIS
such os Equity Ons, are positioned to toke adi i
distressed opportunities. We fully expedt to come J8ESETS cyde
with a more dominam and diversified portfolio, a stronger bese of
relationships with our retailers, ond the most talented
maonogemsnt feam in our sector. We plan fo inrease our asset
base in the most supply constrained markets in the counfry,
namely South Horido, Northem and Southern (ofifomio, New
York, and Boston. In addition, we are forging deaper relafionships
with the lorgest nationo! retailers who can rely on our sength ond
commilment to help them grow their businessas. Finally, our
competitive advantoge will be in our ability fo toke on dlready
grea) mgnagement teom and expand on it. We see a unique
opportunity to aggressively rearuit excepfionol talent in the current
marketptoce. And, os a result, we will be one of the fow real estate
companies seeking growth in this market,

Que business plan for 2008 remains grounded by our strategy of
pwhing and operting high quolity giocery anchored neighborhood
centers in major markets throughout the country with below
marke? rents. Qur centers are situated in areas with stiong
demographics. Within o 3-mile ring, our centers have en averags
population density of 80,000 peopls with an average housahold
income of 573,000 ond an expected population growth rate of
8.6% over the next five years. Qur supermorke! anchors generate
sales that are among the highest in our sector ot approximately
$500/h. These anchors hava rents that are less than $9/ft os,
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n gut apirion, 509 below murker, e helieve our average shos
onis are 15-20% helow market,

Dt fiscal stzateqy moving forword wilk focus on expanding oue
wcquisition und development progrom thiough co-investing with
apiiol partnens whose cost of cogital is lovier thon ovt oxm. ¥
il take o minorily inserest geneially ranging fram 10-20% gl
i fees tor aperating, leasing, edeveloping, and menoging the
otholio. This structure minimizes our cquity needs and allows us
o leveraye our operating platfor to euin favaiable setusns fez ow
fiareholders. Using this steucture, v expert ou litst vear cash
etums 10 he in the fow ieens, wih leveraged inlemal rajes of
giwnin the mid-10 high isens over o 5 io 10 yeor holding pesiod,
his s o proven business model uiifized by many ofiw: REHTs. Qu
orpctiive utvontoge in entorng joint vitne acgsitions at this
il of the oye is esed on our long-sianding insiiluiione!
elutionships, our invesiment capubilisies eooss the ouniiy, wed
i infensive gasel maragersent progran shich is designed 1o
novitle our joint ventuie pariness with superior servite and ey,

0 continuing oui shaietyy of huilding u hasi-in-closs oigonizotian,
se we delighted that Tom Capuio has joined our compraty 65
resitdent. Toy raar iha nequisiiion end joint veriure program al
imco, growing its instilutionol joit ventu:g business 1o $14 hillign

it assais (nequly five tires the size of Equity One) vish numergus
mvesimant poreness. His pussion for s business is comagiows. Ris
afationships wilh brokers, propesiy asmers and insiitulional cpiiol
noviders ae uninatched in oo industry, He s joining a wenderdyl,
ollegiat ieam, including Greg Andrews, o Chied Finuneinl Oifices,
Dehorak Chenk, Chiet Accounting Oificer, Asthur Gullagher, Genernl
‘ounsel, sark Langer, Chied Adminisiative Officer, and Tom
sicDonough, Chief Investment Clficer.

e e qratedul to our 165 Equity One essadiates who deserve ihe
vedit foi our sucresslul repositivning. We also thank and iecogiizg
i olteative and supporiive boeid of diteriors, especially our
oundes aad chairman Choim Xotzmon. Both onr bonrd end
nanagenent shaie an ovemnding philosephy of being astute
rwestors nid responsile siessuzds of the cpital you have enlnsted

I QUi 0.

e helieve Equity Cne hos been epositinned lor gresdh and
quhility. We Kope vou shaie our enthusiosm for the future.

hincerely,
TS
effrey S. Olson

hief Executive Offices
and 2003

Buckheod Station, Atlanta, Georgia
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ONMVEIP ROPERTIES

Preperty bisting os of Morch 28, 200

PROPETEY

(02104

DI

PROPIATY 1BCaI0N 101aL LA
Ryowood Squere
Madison Contre Modison 64,837 Salerna Yilloge Squors
Winchester Flozn tivntsvile 7845 Sovgross Promenods
Sheridon Pom
Shoppes ot Ands e
Brookside Plaza Enfield 210,588 Shoppes ot {bi
Shoppes at Loge Har
Shoppes of fastwood
2400 #GA Potm Booch Gardens 3,200 Shoppes of Jonathon's Londing
Kirpotk Plaro Miomi 45 Shogpes of Nath Por
Alofoyn (ommams Origrdo 126,333 Shoppes of Ockirook
Akfoyo kg Orondo WA Shoppes of Sibm Lokas
i Villoge Atlonic Beadh 100,504 Shoppes of Sumet
8ane Popdor Bullding Rorth Miami Beoch nm Shoppes of Sumset 1}
Bay Poirca Prazn St. Patershuny 103,984 Shops o7 Shylota
Beguclers Yillogs Jocksoemile 1040 South Beach Reginal
Bird Ludkem Miomi 192,282 South Point
Biufls Square Shoppes lupite 1323% 1. Luria Lond
Bocn Ykoge Squone Boco Raton 93476 Summeriin Squts
Boyrion Ptz Boynxn Bacch 93N Sun Point
(esollwood Centes Tempo 94,203 Sunloky - Construction
(eshmers (amars Podt St Lude A7) Tomarse Fown Squane
(hopel Tm#t Plzzo Pembroke Pines 56,378 The Mecdows
Chorkotte Squoi Port Cherlom 96,168 The Plera ot 1, Lucio West
Chelsoa Ploce Hew Poet Richey 81,144 Tho Shoppes of Quail Roogt
(oncord Shopping Plozo Meomi 798,985 Town ond Ceuntry
{orwary Crossing Orenda 1630 Tresure {oqst Plaro
Corn! Reel Shopping Centr Polmetio Boy 74,480 Unigold Shopping (entes
Counfryside Shops Cooper Gy 179,561 Vasie Pl
{rosrorods Squars Pembioks Pines 84,337 Venéca Shopping Cemes
{5 Pazo Mo 7.1 Wolden Woods
Ooiphin Village §1. Pete Beach 138129 Woterstoms Plag
£l Novilla Noxth Boy Vilkoge 10,000 Wes2 Loks Shopping Cantes
Forest Yiloge Tefhomes 152 Wastpert Plarg
For (ofine Jocksomvifie 546 Young Grele Shopping Centes
Greeowood Shopping (ents  Polm Springs 132325
Hosmestead Gas Siction Homestead 2138
Hunters Creek Ploro Orlondn 73,204 faray
Bdsnan Shopoes Odordo 88,820 Bridgedtil
Loks Mary Cen're Lake Mery 341,084 Buckhood Station
Laka 1. Charles Kverviow 57,015 Butlet Gesk
lantona Yikoge Squom lontena 181,780 Chavtain Squan
Ltz Leke Crossiog lute $4.985 Commerce (rossing
Mandarin Londing Jndomlly 145,820 Donlel ¥illoge
Hardarin Misk Jacksonville 51830 Dougln Commons
Moo Town (enia Morco Isand 109,830 foirview (oks
Miner Cossing Spring Hill 0w Brossknd (rossing
Medical and Meschanss Jocksomils 156,153 tigirsson (enter
Midpoint Center {ope Corot 15,388 Hemifion Ridge
How Smyma Beoch Regional ~ New Smytmo Beach 118451 Mableton (rosiing
Ock Hil Villege Jotksomils 18492 Hedond Pointa
Dairee Pz Morth P Beoch B ettt Mo
0ld Kings (ommons Horth Pelm (oesr 84,758 McNpin Square
Park Promeniode Ovlando 128,048 Poulding (ommons
Pavilion Negles 167,745 Fladmont Peachtree Crossing
Pine ktoad Davie 254,907 Fowers Feny P
Pins Ridgn Squars Coral Springs 17,399 Hresidentiol Markes
Ploza Alegre Mami 9,61 Fiver Green tond
Poins Roygle Shopping Center  Méorai 209,044 Spalding Viltoge
Prosperity Centrs Polm Beodh Gardens 122,106 Tha Shaps et Hompton: Ocks
Publix o1 Middhe Beach Ponoma {ity Beoch [ LF I The Shaps ot Wastridge
Publix o Seven Hilly Spring Kill 72590 The Shops ot Hunfres
Ragency Gossing Poxt Richey 85,064 Union Gty Commons (land)
Kidge Raxo Dove 155,204 Walton Plam
Bversids Square Goval Springs 104,241 Wesley Chapel Cosing
Tosmpa 9,197 Willcenstuorg Al Bumwoody

ALY |z 61
VYero Beach 114,925
Stuont 81477
Deacfield Beach 107,092
Hollywood 04473
West Polm Begdh A0
Virst P Beoch BN
Miom} 82,613
Odando 6,00
Jupifer 24,820
North Port 4705
Korth Polm Beodh 112,01
Pembroks Pines 125,788
Hiam 2,704
Yiomi 17,767
Nouth Mo Beech 284943
Jodcomyite Beach 289,548
Ve Besch 84,790
Fon 51, Lvds 15.93 {oass)
Ft Myers 115,85
Ruskin 132314
Paso County 155 {goms)
Fomame 127,635
HMiomi 1554
Pon 1. Lude 13
Miomi 73,550
Kissimimes 116,933
Yeso Beoch 138,45
Wister Pork [IAT
Venics 132,345
Venice 111,934
st Cay 7580
Homestvod B30
Mioml 100,747
Dovis 45,533
Holhywood 65,834

} '
(omm 8,107
Mmn 233930
Aoworth .59
Aflonta 0,637
Commencs 100,668
Kogusto 171,64
Douglaswilie 7.007
Hlermwood 17,052
Kghoietn 90,906
Decoton 13,000
Butoed 8949
Mabicton 88y
Mariesa 79.69%
Norcoss 17,106
Savanngh 174,807
Hirom 192,391
Mignta 152.23¢%
Mariera 86173
Saehvills 396,408
(anton 9.2 (o)
Biitfin 15318
Moo 13.2 {ocres)
MeDentugh 66,297
Lowrenondlle 97,040
Feitbum 101 {ouws)
Kogista 480
Decotin 170,172
Dumwocdy um

lotniuang L

Ambassodor Row {ofoyets 193978
dmbosiodor Row (umyerd  Lofoyere 146,697
Blusbonnes Yilloge Baton Eouge 101,623
Boudeverd Lefaperre 08011
Counrry Oub Pz St 71,185
Elmwood Oaks Horahen 133,995
Gesad Marche iofovers 200,585
Pz Acodiennsy Funice 0549
Sherwood South Baton Rowge AL
Siagen Yilege Baton Rowje 170416
Torpon Heights Gn O 56,605
Tos rssing Shaell 114,804
Villoge ot Korthshor Shdell 144,53
Vis)-Mart Mathews Mathews N
Show's & Medford Yedlord 62,656
Show's of Pyrmouth Phytrth 59,726
Show's of Wes Rodory West Ruxbury 16316
Star's o} Cembridge Combxidge 46,108

Stors o1 Duirwy Quioey 100,741

Webster Pare Webse 0045

Whole Foods o Swampscot  Swampscolt 35,907

s sos ngi .

Skipyord Pluzo Posagouls 55,857
Centre Printe Fo Seitheld 163,547
Chestt Square Broverd 240
Industriah Charlarte 188,513
lourel ¥lk Apartments (harlaite 105,430
Porkwes? (rossing Dtham 895,607
Providents Square (harlona 34845
Riverview Shopping (st~ Dushom 126498
Salisbury Marketplace Salsbory 113
Stontey Markat Ploce Stanley §3228
Tha Gelfetin Vrightsvils Beach 234
Thomaselle Lemmons Thomoseille 148,754
Willowdoile Durham 120,984
Beffair Towns Villoge Bhuffion 166,639
{gneoster Plaro |oncostes 71400
Loncaster Shopping (enter Lomcosi /047
Wétestone Ploza Gieemils 96,171
Forth Vitbge Cemer N. Myrtlz Beoch 60,35
Fybin ot Woodnfl Greemvils 8,055
Sparkdeberry Square (olmiio 338,801
Windy Hi Shopping Center  North Myrtle Beoch 68485
Sommeade Comlin 8,11
Scryth Volley Crosing Morion 126,841
Wareilck Devalopmont Poredl  Lynchburg B (oorms)
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PART1

ITEM 1, BUSINESS
The Company

We are a real estate investment trust, or REIT, that principally owns, manages, acquires and develops neighborhood and
community shopping centers. We were organized as a Maryland corporation in 1992, completed our initial public offering in
May 1998, and have elected to be taxed as a REIT since 1995,

As of December 31, 2007, our property portfolio consisted of 169 properties, including 152 shopping centers comprising
approximately 17.1 million square feet of gross leasable area ("GLA™), seven development/redevelopment properties, six non-
retail propesties and four parcels of land. As of December 31, 2007, our core shopping center portfolio was 93.2% leased and
included national, regional and local tenants.

”

In this annual report, unless stated otherwise or unless the context requires otherwise, references (o “we,” “us” or “our” mean

Equity One, Inc. and our consolidated subsidiaries.

Strategy and Philosophy

Our principal business objective has been and will continue 1o be to maximize long-term stockholder value by generating
sustainable cash flow growih and increasing the long-term value of our real estate assets. Our strategies {or reaching this
objective include:

e Operating Strategy: Maximizing the internal growth of revenue from our shopping centers by leasing and re-
leasing those properties to a diverse group of creditworthy 1enants at higher rental rates and redeveloping
those properties to make them more attractive to tenants or to permit additional or better uses,

*  Invesiment Strategy: Using capital wisely to renovate or redevelop our properties and to acquire and develop
additional shopping centers where expected returns meet or exceed our standards; and

®  Capital Strategy: Financing our capital requirements with intemally gencrated funds, borrowings under our
existing credit facilities, proceeds from selling properties that do not meet our investment criteria and access
1o institutional capital and debt and equity capital markets.

Operating Strategy. Our core operating stralegy is 10 maximize rents and maintain high occupancy levels by attracting and
retaining a strong and diverse base of lenants. Many of our properties are located in some of the most densely populated and
highest growth areas of the country, including the metropolitan areas around Miami, Ft. Lauderdale, West Palm Beach, Tampa,
Facksonville and Orlardo, Fiorida, Atlanta, Georgia, and Boston, Massachusetts. Strong trade-area demographics help our
tenants generate high sales, which has enabled us to maintain high occupancy rates and increase rental rates.

In order to effectively achieve our operating strategy, we seek 10:

e aclively manage and maintain the high standards and physical appearance of our assets while maintaining
competitive lenant gccupancy costs;

*  maintain a diverse tenant base in order 10 limit exposure 1o any one tenant’s financial condition;

» develop strong, mutually beneficial relationships with creditworthy tenants, particularly our anchor tenants,
by consistently meeting or exceeding their expectations;

» increase rental rates upon the renewal of expiring leases or as we lease space to new lenants while
minimizing vacancy and down-time; and

s cvaluate renovation or redevelopment opportunities that will make our properties more auractive for leasing
or re-leasing to tenants, lake advantage of under-utilized land or existing square footage; or re-configure
properties for better uses.

Investment Straregy. Our investment strategy is 10 deploy capital in projects that are expected 1o generate returns that exceed
our cost of capital. Our investments primarily fall inte ene of the following three categories:

* re-developing, renovating, expanding, reconfigering and/or re-tenanting our existing properties;

¢ selectively acquiring shopping centers that will benefit from our active management and leasing strategies;
and




¢ seleclively developing new shopping centers to meet the needs of expanding retailers.

In the past, we have also made investments in the securities of other companies, whose assets or markels are consistent with
our investment sirategy. Thesc investment decisions are made in the same manner as other investments by us and are subject
1o the gross income and asset lests necessary o maintain our REIT qualification.

In evaluating potential redevelopment, acquisition and development opportunities, we also consider such factors as:

¢ the expected returns in relation to our cost of capital, as well as the anticipated risks we will face in achieving
the expected returns;

¢ he current and projected cash flow of the property and the potential 10 increase that cash flow:

¢ the tenant mix at the propenty, tenant sales performance and the creditworthiness of those tenants;

*  cconomic, demographic, regulatory and zoning conditions in the property’s tocal and regional market;

¢ competitive conditions in the vicinity of the property, including competition for 1enants and the potential that
others may create competing properties through redevelopment, new construction or renovation;

» the level and success of our existing investments in the relevant market,

*  the current market value of the land, buildings and other improvements and the potential for increasing those
market values;

* the physical configuration of the property, its visibility, ease of entry and exit, and availability of parking;
and

* the physical condition of the land, buildings and other improvements. including the structural and
environmental conditions.

Capital Straiegy. We intend to grow and expand our business by using cash flows from operations, by borrowing under our
existing credit facilities, reinvesting proceeds from selling properties that do not meet our investment critenia or, if appropriate
market conditions exist, by accessing capital from institutional partners or the capital markets to issue equity, debt or a
combination thereof. Our capital strategy is to maintain a strong balance sheet and sufficient flexibility to fund our operating
and investment activities in a cost-efficient way. Our strategy includes:

*  maintaining a prudent level of overall leverage and an appropriate pool of unencumbered properties that is
sufficient to support our unsecured borrowings,;

*  managing our exposure to variable-rate debt;

* taking advantage of market opportunities (o refinance existing debt, reduce interest cosis and manage our
debl maturity schedule; and

* using joint ventlure arrapgements to access less expensive capital, miligate capital risk, or to capitalize on the
expertise of local real estate partners,

While we generally hold our properties for investment and for the production of rental income, we also recycle our capital.
Over time, when our assets no longer meet our investment criteria, assel type or geographic focus, we may sell or otherwise
dispose of those assets. By idenifying these opportunities, we are able to recycle our capital and reinvest the proceeds in more
altraclive properties or markets.

Change in Policies

Qur board of directors establishes the policies that govern our operating, investment and capital strategies, including, among
others, the development and acquisition of shopping centers, tenant and market focus, debt and equity financing policies,
quarterly distributions to our stockholders and the REIT swatus. The board may amend these policies at any time, without a
vote of our stockholders. ‘

REIT Status

We elected to be taxed as a real cslate investment trust for federal income tax purposes beginning with our taxable year ended
December 31, 1995. As a REIT, we are generally not subject to federal income tax on REIT taxable income that we distribute
to our stockholders, Under the Iatemnal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, which we refer to as the Code, REITSs are subject
to numercus organizational and operational requirements, including the requirement to distribute at teast 90% of REIT taxable
income {excluding net capital gains) cach year. We will be subject to federal income tax on our taxable income (including any




applicable alternalive minimum 1ax) at regular corporate rates if we fail 10 qualify as a REIT for tax purposes in any taxable
year, or to the extent we distribute less than 100% of REIT taxable income. We will also not be permitted to qualify for
treatment as a REIT for federal income tax purposes for four years following the year during which qualification is lost. Even if
we qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we may be subject to certain staie and local income and franchise taxes
and to federal income and excise taxes on our undistributed REIT taxable income.

We have elected to treat certain of our subsidiaries as taxable REIT subsidiaries, each of which we refer to as a TRS. In
general, a TRS may engage in any real estate business and cenain non-real estate businesses, subject to certain limitations
under the Code. A TRS is subject to federal and state income taxes. The sales of certain land parcels, our investment in DIM
Vastgoed N.V. and certain other real estate and other activities are being conducted through our TRS entities. Our currem TRS
activities are limited and they have not incurred any significant income taxes to date.

Governmental Regulations Affecting Our Properties

We and our propertics are subject to a varicty of federal, state and local environmenial, health, safety and similar laws,
including:

e the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, which
we refer to as CERCLA;

s 1he Resource Conservation & Recovery Act;
¢ the Federa) Clean Walter Act;

e the Federal Clean Air Act;

¢ the Toxic Substances Control Act;

¢ the Occupational Safety & Health Act; and
s the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Environmental Regulations. The application of these laws to a specific property that we own depends on a variety of property-
specific circumstances, including the current and former uses of the propenty, the building materials used at the property and
the physical layout of the property. Under certain environmental laws, principally CERCLA, we, as the owner or operator of
properties currently or previously owned, may be required to investigate and clean up certain hazardous or toxic substances,
asbestos-containing materials, or petroleum product releases at the property. We may also be held liable to a federal, state or
local governmental entity or third parties for property damage. injuries resukting from the contamination and for investigation
and clean up costs incurred in connection with the contamination, whether or not we knew of, or were responsible for, the
contamination. Such costs or liabilities could exceed the value of the affected real estate. The presence of contamination or the
failure to remediale contamination may adversely affect our ability 1o sell or lease real estate or to borrow using the real estate
as collateral. We have several properties that will require or are currently undergoing varying levels of environmental
remediation as a resull of contamination from on-site uses by current or former owners or tenants, such as gas stations or dry
cleaners.

Americans with Disabilities Act. Our propenies are subject to the Americans with Disabilitics Act of 1990. Under this act, all
places of public accommodation are required to comply with federal requirements related to access and use by disabled
persons. The act has separate compliance requirements for “public accommodations™ and “commercial facilities™ that generatly
require thal buildings and services, including restaurants and retail stores, be made accessible and available to people with
disabilities. The Act's requirements could require removal of access barriers and could result in the imposition of injunctive
relief, monctary penalties or, in some cases, an award of damages.

Although we believe that we are in substantial compliance with existing regulations, including environmental and ADA
regulations, we cannot predict the impact of ncw or changed laws or regulations on properties we currently own or may acquire
in the future. Other than as part of our development or redevelopment projects, we have no current plans for substantial capital
expenditures with respect 10 compliance with environmental, health, safety and similar laws, and we carry environmental
insurance which covers a number of environmental risks for most of our propenties.




Competition

There are numerous commercial developers, real estate companies, REITs and other owners of real estate in the areas in which
our properiies are located that compele with us with respect to the leasing of our properties and in seeking land for
development or properties for acquisition, Some of these competitors have substantially greater resources than we have,
although we do not believe that any single competitor or group of competitors in any of the primary markels where our
properties are located are dominant in that market. This level of competition may reduce the number of properties available for
development or acquisition, increase the cost of development or acquisition or interfere with our ability to attract and retain
{enants.

All of our existing properties are located in developed areas that include other shopping centers and other retai) properties. The
number of retail properties in a panicular area could materially adversely affect our ability to lease vacant space and maintain
the rents charged at our existing properties, We believe that the principal competitive factors in attracling tenanis in our markel
areas are location, price, anchor tenants and maintenance of properties. Our retail tenants aiso face competition from other
retailers, outlet stores and discount shopping clubs. This competition could contribute to lease defaults and insolvency of our
tenants.

Employees

Our headquarters are located at 1600 N.E. Miami Gardens Drive, North Miami Beach, Florida 33179. At December 31, 2007,
we had 155 full-lime employees and we believe that our relationships with our employees are good.

Avaijlable Information

The internet address of our website is www.equiryone.ner. In the Investor Relations section of our website you can obtain, free
of charge, a copy of our annual report on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q. our Supplemental Information
Packages, our current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those or other reports filed or furnished pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as soon as reasonably praclicable after we elecironically file or furnish such
reports or amendments with the SEC. Also available in the corporate governance section of our websile, free of charge, are
copies of our Corperate Governance Guidelines, Code of Conduct and Ethics and the charters for our audit committee,
compensation committee and nominating and corporate governance commitice. We intend to provide any amendments or
waivers to our Code of Conduct and Ethics that apply to any of our executive officers or our senior financial officers on our
website within four business days following the date of the amendment or waiver. The reference to our website address does
not constitute incorporation by reference of the information contained on our website and should not be considered a part of
this report.

You may also obtain printed copies of any of the foregoing materials from us, free of charge, by contacting our Investor
Relations Depanment at:

Equity One, Inc.

1600 N.E. Miami Gardens Drive
Norith Miami Beach, Florida 33179
Attn: Investor Relalions Department
(305) 947-1664

You may also read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE,
Washingion, DC 20549, or you may obiain information by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an
intemet address a1 http:/fwww.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy statements and information statements, and other
information which you may obtain free of charge.




ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS

This annual report on Form 10-K and the information incorporated by reference herein contain “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements other than statements of historicai
facts are forward-looking statements and can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as “may,” “will,”
“might,” “would,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “would,” “could,” “should,” “believe,” “intend,” “project,” “forecast,”
“target,” “plan,” or “continue™ or the negative of these words or other variations or comparable terminology. Forward-looking
statements are subject to certain risks, trends and uncertainties that could cause actual resulls to differ materially from those
projected. Some specific risk factors that could impair forward looking stalements are set forth below,

These risks factors are not exhaustive. Other sections of this report may include additional factors that could adversely affect
our business and financial performance. Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing environment. New
risk factors emerge from time to time and it is not possible for us to predict all risk factors, nor can we assess the impact of all
risk factors on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may affect our business. Investors
should also refer to our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K for future periods for updates io these
risk factors.

We are dependent upon certain key tenants and decisions made by these fenants or adverse developmenis in the
business of these tenants could have a negative impact on our financial condition.

We own shopping centers which are supported by “anchor” tenants which, due to size, reputation or other factors, are
particularly responsible for drawing other tenants and shoppers to our centers. For instance, Publix Supermarkets is our largest
tenant and accounted for approximately 2.4 million square feet, or approximately 14.1% of our GLA, at December 31, 2007,
and accounts for approximately $19.1 million of minimum rent, or 10.4% of our annualized minimum rent.

Al any time, an anchor tenant or other tenant may experience a downturn in its business that may weaken its financial
condition. As a result, tenants may delay lease commencement, fail to make rental payments when due or declare bankruptcy.
We are subject to the risk that these tenants may be unable 10 make their lease payments or may decline to extend a lease upon
its expiration. Any tenant bankrupicies, leasing delays or failures to make rental payments when due could result in the
termination of the tenant’s lease and material losses to our business and harm to cur operating results,

In addition, an anchor tenant may decide that a particular store is unprofitable and close its operations in our center, and, while
the tenant may continue make rental payments, such a failure to occupy its premises could have an adverse effect on the
property. A lease termination by an anchor tenant or a failure by that anchor tenant to occupy the premises could result in lease
terminations or reductions in rent by other ienants in the same shopping center if their leases have “co-tenancy” clauses which
permit cancellation or remt reduction if an anchor tenant’s lease is terminated or the anchor “goes dark.” Vacated anchor tenant
space also tends to adversely affect the entire shopping center because of the loss of the departed anchor tenant’s power to draw
customers 1o the center, We cannot provide any assurance that we would be able 10 quickly re-lease vacant space on favorable
terms, if at all. Any of these developments could adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations.

We may experience difficulties and additional costs associated with renting vacant space and space to be vacated in
future years.

Our goal is to improve the performance of our properties by re-leasing vacated space. However, we may not be able to
maintain our overall occupancy. Our ability to continue to lease or re-lease vacant space in these or other propertics will be
affected by many factors, including our propenties’ locations, current market conditions and covenants found in certain leases
restricting the use of other space at our properties. For instance, in some cases, our tenant leases contain provisions giving the
tenant the exclusive right to sell particular types of merchandise or provide specific types of services within the particular retail
center, or limit the ability of other tenants to sell that merchandise or provide those services. When re-leasing space after a
vacancy, these provisions may limit the number and types of prospective tenants for the vacant space. The failure to lease or to
re-lease on satisfactory terms could harm our operating results.

If we are able to re-lease vacated space, there is no assurance that rental rates will be equal to or in excess of current rental
rates. In addition, we may incur substantial costs in obtaining new tenants, including brokerage commission fees paid by us in
connection with new leases or lease renewals, and the cost of making leasehold improvements.




We have substantial debt obligalion;s which may reduce our operating performance and put us at a competitive

disadvantage.
|

As of December 31, 2007, we had debt and other liabilities outstanding in the aggregate amount of approximately $1.3 billion.
Many of our loan facilities require scheduled principal and balloon payments. In addition, our organizational documents do not
limit the level or amount of debt that we may incur, nor do we have a policy limiting our debt to any particular level. The
amount of our debt outstanding from time to time could have important consequences to our stockholders. For example, it
could: '

*  require us to dedicate f.a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our debt, thereby
reducing funds available for operations, property acquisitions, redevelopments and other appropriate business
opportunities that may, arise in the future;

¢ limit our ability to make distributions on our outstanding shares of our common stock, including the payment
of dividends required to maintain our status as a REIT;
1

* make it difficult to satisfy our debi service requirements;

* limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the factors that affect the
profitability of our business, which may place us at a disadvantage compared to competitors with less debt or
debt with less restrictive terms,

¢ limit our ability to obtain any additional debt or equity financing we may need in the future for working
capital, debt refinancing, capital expenditures, acquisitions, redevelopment or other general corporate
purposes or (0 obtain such financing on favorable terms; and

t
*  require us to dedicate increased amounts of our cash flow from operations 1o payments on our variable rate,
unhedged debt if interest rates rise.

H our internally gencrated cash is inade‘quatc 10 repay our indebledness upon maturity, then we will be required to repay debt
through refinancing or equity offerings. 'If we are unable to refinance our indebtedness on acceptable terms, or at all, we might
be forced to dispose of one or more of our properties potentially upon disadvantageous terms, which might result in Josses and
might adversely affect our cash available for distribution. If prevailing interest rates or other factors at the time of refinancing
result in higher interest rates on refinancing, our interest expense would increase, without a corresponding increase in our remal
rates, which would adversely affect our results of operations. Further, if one of our properties is mortgaged to secure payment
of indebtedness and we are unable to meel mortgage payments, or if we are in default under the related mortgage or deed of
trust, such property could be transferred to the mortgagee, or the mortgagee could forcclose upon the property, appoint a
receiver and receive an assignment of rents and leases or pursue other remedies, all with a consequent loss of income and asset
value, Foreclosure could also create taxable income without accompanying cash proceeds, thereby hindering our ability to meet
the REIT distribution requirements under the Code.

Our financial covenants may restricl:our operating or acquisition aclivities, which may harm our financial condition
and operating results.

Our unsecured revolving credit facility, our outstanding senior unsecured notes and much of our existing morigage
indebtedness contain customary covenaitls and conditions, including, among others, compliance with various financial ratios
and restrictions upon the incurrence of additional indebtedness and liens on our properties. Furthermore, the terms of some of
this indebtedness will restrict our ability to consummate transactions that result in a change of control or to otherwise issue
equity or debt securities. The existing morigages also contain customary negative covenants such as these that limit our
ability, without the prior consent of the lender, to further morigage the applicable property or to discontinue insurance
coverage. If we were to breach covenants in these debt agreements, the lender could declare a default and require us to repay
the debt immediately. [f we fail to make such repayment in a timely manner, the lender may be entitled 1o take possession of
any property securing the loan. !

Increases in interest rates cause our'borrowing costs to rise and generally adversely affect the market price of our
securities. .

Of our approximately $1.3 billion of debt outstanding as of December 31, 2007, approximately $137.0 million bears interest at
variable interest rates, including $100.0 million of fixed rate borrowings that we have converted to floating rate borrowings
through the use of hedging agreements. . We also may borrow additional funds at variable interest rates in the future. Increases
in interest rates would increase our interest expense on our variable rate debt and reduce our future earnings and cash flows,
which could adversely affect our ability to service our debt and meet our other obligations and also could reduce the amount
we are able to distribute to our slocldl':oldcrs. Although we may in the future enter into hedging arrangements or other
transaclions as to a portion of our variablle rate debi to limit our exposure 10 rising interest rates, the amounts we are required 10




pay under the variable rate debt to which the hedging or similar arrangements relate may increase in the event of non-
performance by the counterparties to any of our hedging arrangements.

In addition, the market price of our common stock is affected by the annual distribution rate on the shares of our common
stock. Increasing market interest rates may lead prospective purchasers of our common stock and other securities lo seck
alternative invesiments that offer a higher annual yield which would likely adversely affect the market price of our common
stock and other securities. Finally, increases in interest rates may have the effect of depressing the market value of retail
properties such as ours, including the value of those propertics securing our indebtedness.

Geographic concentration of our properties makes our business vulnerable to economic downturns in certain regions or
to other events, like hurricanes, that disproportionately affect those areas.

Approximately 53.6% of our retail propenty gross leasable area is located in Florida. Asa result, economic, renl estate and
other, general conditions in Florida will significantly affect our revenues and the value of our properties. Business luyoffs or
downsizing, industry slowdowns, changing demographics and other similar factors may adversely affect the economic climate
in Florida. Any resulting oversupply or reduced demand for retail properties in Florida would adversely affect our operaling
performance and limit our ability to make distributions to stockholders.

In addition, a significant portion of our relail property gross leasable area is located in coastal areas that are susceptible to the
harmful effects of ropical storms, hurricanes and other similar natural disasters. Most importantly, as of December 31, 2007,
over 59.1% of the total insured value of our portfolio is located in the State of Florida, with approximately 33.7% located in
Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm Beach counties. In 2005, our properties experienced damage from a total of seven named
hurricanes or tropical storms with not all of the storm damages fully insured. While some of these uninsured expenses are
recoverable from our tenants, not all of the leases have provisions permitting reimbursement, and, therefore, we must pay the
remaining amounts. Moreover, with the increased hurricane activity, the cost of property insurance has risen dramatically.
White much of the cost of this insurance is passed on to our tenants as reimbursable property cosls, some tenants, particularly
national tenants, do not pay a pro rata share of these costs under their leases. Hurricanes and similar storms also disrupt our
business and the business of our tenants, which could affect the ability of some tenants to pay rent. Therefore, as a result of the
geographic concentration of our properties, we face demonstrable risks, including higher costs, such as uninsured property
Tosses and higher insurance premiums, and disruptions to our business and the businesses of our tenants. Lastly, the recent
downtumn in the real estate and credit markets may adversely affect our liquidity.

Our insurance coverage on our properties may be inadequate therefore increasing the risks to our business.

We currently carry comprehensive insurance on all of our properties, including insurance for liability, fire, flood, rental loss
and acts of terrorism. We also currently carry environmental insurance on most of our properties. All of these policies contain
coverage limitations. We believe these coverages are of the types and amounts customarily obtained for or by an owner of
similar types of real property assets located in the areas where our properties are located. We intend 10 obtain similar insurance
coverage on subsequently acquired properties.

The availability of insurance coverage may decrease and the prices for insurance may increase as a consequence of significant
losses incurred by the insurance industry. For instance, following the hurricane activity of 2005, property insurance cosls in the
State of Florida increased. In the event of future industry losses, we may be unable to renew or duplicate our current insurance
coverage in adequate amounts or at reasonable prices. In addition, insurance companies may no longer offer coverage against
cenain types of losses, such as losses from named wind storms or due to terrorist 2cts and toxic mold, or, if offered, the
expense of obtaining these types of insurance may not be justificd. We, therefore, may cease to have insurance coverage
against certain types of losses and/or there may be decreases in the limits of insurance available.

If an uninsured loss or a loss in excess of our insured limits occurs, we could lose all or a portion of the capital we have
invested in a property, as well as Lhe anticipated future revenue from the property. but still remain obligated for any mortgage
debi or other financial obligations related to the property. We cannot guarantee that material losses in excess of insurance
proceeds will not oceur in the future. If any of our properties were lo expericnce a catastrophic loss, it could disrupt seriously
our operations, delay revenue and result in large expenses (o repair or rebuild the property. Also, due 1o inflation, changes in
codes and ordinances, environmental considerations and other factors, it may not be feasible to usc insurance procceds to
replace a building after it has been damaged or destroyed or the proceeds could be insufficient. Evenis such as these could
adversely affect our results of operations and our ability 1o meet our obligations, including distributions to our stockholders.

We may be unable to sell properties when appropriate because real estate investments are iltiquid.

Real estate investments generally cannot be sold quickly. Also, there are limitations under federal income lax laws applicable
to real estate and to REITs in particular that may limit our ability 10 sell our assets. We may not be able to aher our portfolio
promptly in response to changes in economic or other conditions. Our inability to respond quickly to changes in the
performance of our investments could adversely affect our ability to meet our obligations and make distributions o our
stockhoelders.




The federal income tax provisions applicable to REITs provide that any gain realized by a REIT on the sale of property held as
inventory or other property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of business is treated as income from a
“prohibited transaction” that is subject to a 100 percent penally tax. Under current law, unless a sale of real propenty qualifies
for a safe harbor, the question of whether the sale of a property conslitutes the sale of property held primarily for sale o
customers is generally a question of the facts and circumstances regarding a particular transaction. We intend to hold our
properties for investment with a view to long-term appreciation, to engage in the business of acquiring and owning properties
and to make occasional sales as are consistent with our investmem objectives. We do not intend to engage in prohibited
transactions. We cannot assure you, however, that we wili only make sales that satisfy the requirements of the safe harbors or
that the IRS will not successfully assert that one or more of our sales are prohibited transactions.

Our development and redevelopment activities are inherently risky and may not yield anticipated returns, which would
harm our operating results and reduce funds available for distributions to stockholders.

An imponiant component of our growth strategy is the redevelopment of properties within our portfolio and the development of
new shopping centers. At December 31, 2007, we had invested an aggregale of approximately $81.4 million in these
development or redevelopment projects at varicus stages of completion and anticipate that these projects will require an
additional $46.3 million to complete, based on our current plans and estimates. These developments and redevelopments may
not be as successful as currently expected. Expansion, renovation and development projects entail the following considerable
risks:

* significant time lag between commencement and completion subjects us to greater risks due to flectuation in
the general economy;

* failure or inability to obtain construction or permanent financing on favorable terms;
+  expenditure of mone); and time on projects that may never be completed;

¢ inability to achieve projected rental rates or anticipated pace of lease-up;

*  higher-than-estimated construction costs, including labor and material costs; and

e possible delay in compietion of the project because of a number of factors, including weather, labor
disruptions. construction delays or delays in receipt of zoning or other regulatory approvals, or man-made or
natural disasters (such as fires, hurricanes, earthquakes or floods).

While our policies with respect to expansion, renovation and development activities are intended to limit some of the risks
otherwise associated with such activities, such as initiating construction only after securing commitments from anchor tenants,
we will nevertheless be subject 1o risks that the construction costs of a property, due Lo factors such as cost overruns, design
changes and timing delays arising from a lack of availability of materials and labor, wealher conditions and other factors
outside of our control. as well as financing costs, may exceed original eslimates, possibly making the associated investment
unprofitable. Significant changes in economic condition could adversely affect prospective tenants and our ability to lease
newly developed and redeveloped properties.  Any substontial unanticipated delays or expenses could adversely affect the
investment returns from these redevclo;limem projects and harm our operating resulls.

Future acquisitions may not yield the returns expected, may result in disruptions (o our business, may strain
management resources and may result in stockholder dilution.

Our investing strategy and our market selection process may not ultimately be successful and may not provide positive returns
on our investment. The acquisition of properties or perifolios of properties entails risks that include the following, any of which
could adversely affect our results of operations and our ability to meet our obligations:

*  we may not be able to identify suitable properties to acquire or may be unable to complete the acquisition of
the properties we identify,;

*  we may not be able to integrate any acquisitions into our existing operations successfully;

* properies we acquire'may fail to achieve within the time frames we project the occupancy or rental rates we

project at the time we make the decision to acquire, which may result in the properties’ failure to achieve the
returns we projected;

* our pre-acquisition evaluation of the physical condition of each new investment may not detect cenain
defects or identify necessary repatrs, which could significantly increase our total acquisition costs; and

*  our investigation of a,property or building prior 1o our acquisition, and any representations we may receive
from the seller of such building or property, may fail 1o reveal various liabilities, which could reduce the cash
flow from the property or increase our acquisition cost.

] -8-




If we acquire a business, we will be required to integrate the operations, personnel and accounting and information systems of
the acquired business and train, retain and motivate any key personnel from the acquired business. [n addition, acquisitions of
or investments in companics may cause disruptions in our operations and divert management’s attention away from day-to-day
operations, which could impair our relationships with our current tenants and employees. The issuance of equity securities in
connection with any acquisition or investment could be substantially dilutive to our stockholders.

Qur ability to grow will be limited if we cannot obtain additional capital.

Our growth stralegy is focused on the redevelopment of properties we already own and the acquisition and development of
additional propenics. We believe that it will be difficult to fund our expected growth with cash from operating activitics
because, in addition to other requirements, we are required to distribute to our stockholders at least 0% of our REIT taxable
income (excluding net capital gains) each year to continue to qualify as a REIT for federal income 1ax purposes. As a result, we
must rely primarily upon the availability of debt or equity capital, which may or may not be available on favorable terms or at
all. The debt could include mortgage loans from third panies or the sale of debt securitics. Equity capital could include shares
of our common stock or preferred stock. We cannot guarantee that additional financing, refinancing or other capital will be
available in the amounts we desire or on favorable terms. Our access to debt or equity capital depends on a number of factors,
including the general availability of credit in the capital markets, the market’s perception of our growth potential, our ability to
pay dividends, our financial condition, our credit rating and our current and potential future earnings. Depending on the
outcome of these factors, we could experience delay or difficulty in implementing our growth strategy on satisfactory terms, or
be unable to implement this strategy.

Competition for the acquisition of assets and the leasing of properties may impede our ability to make, or may increase
the cost of, these acquisitions and may impair our future income.

Numerous commercial developers and real estate companies compete with us in secking tenants for our existing properties and
properties for acquisition. This competition may:

* reduce propenties available for acquisition;

* increase the cost of properties available for acquisition;

+ reduce the rate of return on these properties;

* reduce rents payable to us;

¢ interfere with our ability to attract and retain tenants;

* lead 10 increased vacancy rates at our propertics; and

¢ udversely affect our ability 1o minimize expenses of operation.

In addition, tenants and potential acquisition targets may find competitors to be more attraclive because they may have greater
resources, broader geographic diversity, may be willing to pay more or offer greater lease incentives or may have a more
compatible operating phitosophy. In particular, larger REITs may enjoy significant competitive advantages that result from,
among other things, a lower cost of capital and enhanced operating efficiencies. These competitive factors may adversely affect
our profitability, and our stockhelders may experience a lower return on their investment.

We may be subjected to lability for environmental contamination which might have a material adverse impact on our
financial condition and results of operations.

As an owner and operator of real estate and real estate-related facilities, we may be liable for the costs of removal or
remediation of hazardous or 1oxic substances present at, on, under, in or released from our properties, as well as for
governmental fines and damages for injuries to persons and property. We may be liable without regard to whether we knew of,
or were responsible for, the environmental contamination and with respect to properties previously owned by companies we
have acquired, whether the contamination occurred before or after the acquisition, We have several properties in our portfolio
that will require or are currently undergoing varying levels of environmental remediation. The presence of contamination or
the failure properly to remediate contamination at any of our properties may adversely affect our ability to sell or lease those
properties or to borrow funds by using those properties as collateral. The costs or liabilities could exceed the value of the
affected real estate. Although we have environmenial insurance policies covering most of our properties, there is no assurance
that these policies will cover any or all of the potential losscs or damages from environmental contamination; therefore, any
liability, fine or damage could directly impact our financial results.




The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 could require us to take remedial steps with respect (o existing or newly
acquired properties.

Our existing properties, as well as properties we may acquire, as commercial facilities, are required 1o comply with Title 1i{ of
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Investigation of a properly may reveal non-compliance with this Act. The
requirements of this Act, or of other federal, state or local laws, also may change in the future and restrict or require further
renovations of our propenties with respect to access for disabled persons. Future compliance with this Act may require
expensive changes to the properties.

We may experience adverse consequences in the event we fail to qualify as a REIT.

Although we believe that we are organized and have operated so as to qualify as a REIT under the Intemal Revenue Code since
our REIT election in 1995, no assurance can be given that we have qualified or will remain so qualified. In addition, no
assurance can be given that legislation, new regulations, administrative interpretations or count decisions will not significantly
change the tax laws with respect 10 qualification as a REIT or the federal income tax consequences of such qualification.

Qualification as a REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex provisions of the Internal Revenue Code for
which there are only limiled judicial and administrative interpretations. These provisions include requirements concemning,
among other things, the ownership of our outstanding common stock. the natre of our assets, the sources of our income, and
the amount of our distributions to our steckholders. The determination of various factual matters and circumstances not entirely
within our conirol may affect our ability 10 qualify as a REIT. For example, in order to qualify as a REIT, at ieast 95% of our
gross income in any year must be derived from qualifying sources. Satisfying this requirement could be difficult, for example,
if defaults by tenants were 10 reduce the amount of income from qualifying rents. In addition, we must make distributions 10
stockholders aggregating annually at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, excluding net capital gains. To the extent that we
satisfy the 90 percent distribution requiremenl, but distribute less than 100 percent of our taxable income, we will be subject to
federal corporate income tax on our undistributed income. In addition, we will incur a four percent nondeduciible excise tax on
the amount, if any, by which our distributions (or deemed distributions) in any year are less than the sum of 85 percent of our
ordinary income for that year, 95 percent of our capital gain net earnings for that year and 100 percent of our undistributed
taxable income from prior years. We intend to make distributions to our stockholders to comply with the distribution
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code. Although we anlicipate that our cash flows from operating activities will be
sufficient 10 enable us to pay our operating expenses and meet distribution requirements, no assurance can be given in this
regard, We may be required to borrow money or sell assets to pay out enough of our taxable income to satisfy the distribution
requirement and to avoid corporate income tax.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT:

*  we would not be allowed a deduction for distributions to stockholders in computing taxable income;
*  we would be subject to federal income tax ot regular corparate rates;
*  we could be subject to the federal alternative minimum tax;

* unless we are enitled to relief under specific statutory provisions, we could not elect to be taxed as a REIT
for four taxable years following the year during which we were disqualified;

* we could be required to pay significam income taxes, which would substamially reduce the funds available
for investment or for distribution to our stockholders for each year in which we failed or were not permitted
to qualify; and

*  we would no longer be required by law to make any distributions 10 our stockholders.
We are subject to other tax liabilities.

Even if we qualify as a REIT, we are'subject to some federal, state and local taxes on our income and property that could
reduce operating cash flow. For example, we will pay tax on certain types of income that are not distributed, and will be
subject to a 100 percent excise tax on transactions with a TRS that are not conducted on an arms-length basis. In addition, our
TRSs are subject to foreign, federal, stale and local 1axes.

Our Chairman of the Board and his affiliates own approximately 48.9% of our common stock and exercise significant
control over our company and may delay, defer or prevent us from taking actions that would be beneficial to our other
stockholders. \




Chaim Katzman, the chairman of our board of directors and our largest stockholder, and his affiliates own approximately
48.9% of the outstanding shares of our common stock and, as a result of a stockholders’ agreement with other of our
stockholders, have voting power of almost 55.8% of our outstanding shares with respect to the election of directors,
Accordingly, Mr. Katzman is able to exercise significant control over the outcome of substantially all matters required 10 be
submited 1o our stockholders for approval, including decisions relating 1o the election of our board of directors and the
determination of our day-to-day corporate and management policies. In addition, Mr. Katzman is able to exercise significant
control over the outcome of any proposed merger or consolidation of our company which, under our charter, the affirmative
vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of our common stock in such instances. Mr. Katzman's ownership
interest in our company may discourage third parties from seeking to acquire control of our company which may adversely
affect the market price of our common stock,

Several of our controlling stockholders have pledged their shares of our stock as collateral under bank loans,
foreclosure and disposition of which could have a negative impact on our stock price.

Several of our affiliated stockholders that beneficially own a significant interest in our company, including Gazit-Globe, Lid.
and related entities, have pledged a substantial portion of our stock that they own to secure loans made to them by commercial
banks.

Il a stockholder defaults on any of its obligations under these pledge agreements or the related loan documents, these banks
may have the right to sell the pledged shares in one or more public or private sales that could cause our stock price to decline.
Many of the occurrences that could result in a foreclosure of the pledged shares are out of our control and are unrelated to our
operations. Some of the occurrences that may constitute such an event of default include:

» the stockholder’s failure 1o make a payment of principal or interest when due;

e the occurrence of another default that would entitle any of the stockholder's other creditors 10 accelerate puyment
of any debis and obligations owed to them by the stockholder;

+ if the bank, in its absolute discretion, deems that a change has occurred in the condition of the stockholder to
which the bank has not given its prior written consent; and

» if, in the opinion of the bank, the value of the pledged shares shall be reduced or is likely to be reduced (for
example, the price of our common stock declines).

In addition, because so many shares are pledged to secure loans, the occurrence of an event of default could result in a sale of
pledged shares that would trigger a change of control of our company, even when such a change may not be in the best
interests of our stockholders.

To maintain our status as a REIT, we limit the amount of shares any one stockholder can own.

The Internal Revenue Code imposes certain limitations on the ownership of the stock of a REIT. For example, not more than
50% in value of our outstanding shares of capital stock may be owned, actually or constructively, by five or fewer individuals
(as defined in the Code). To protect our REIT status, our charter prohibits any one stockholder from owning (actually or
constructively) more than 9.9% in value of the outstanding shares of common stock or of any class or series of outstanding
preferred stock. The constructive ownership rules are complex. Shares of our capital stock owned, actually or constructively,
by a group of related individuals and/or entities may be treated as constructively owned by one of those individuals or entities.
As a result, the acquisition of less than 9.9% in value of the outstanding common stock andfor a class or series of preferred
stock (or the acquisition of an interest in an entity that owns common stock or preferred stock) by an individual or entity could
cause that individual or entity (or another) to own consiructively more than 9.9% in value of the outstanding stock. If that
happened, cither the transfer or ownership would be void or the shares would be transferred to a charitable trust and then sold
to someone who can own those shares without violating the 9.9% ownership limit. Our board of directors may waive these
restriclions on a case-by-case basis, and it has in the past done so, including for the affiliates of Chaim Katzman, our chairman
of the board. The 9.9% ownership restrictions may delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change of control that might
involve a premium price for our common stock or otherwise be in the stockholders” best interest.
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We cannot assure you we will continue to pay dividends at historical rates.

Our ability to continue to pay dividends on our common stock at historical rates or to increase our common stock dividend rate
and service our debt securities will depend on a number of factors, including, among others, the following:

¢ our financial condition and results of future operations;

® the performance of lease terms by tenants;

]
¢ the terms of our loan covenants; and

*  our ability to acquire, finance, develop or redevelop and lease additional propertics at attractive rates,

If we do not maintain or increase the dividend rate on our common stock, it could have an adverse effect on the market price of
our common stock and other securities. Conversely, payment of dividends on our common stock may be subject to payment in
full of the interest on any debt sccurities we may offer.

Our organizational documents contain provisions which may discourage the takeover of our company, may make
removal of our management more difficult and may depress our stock price.

Our organizational documents contain provisions that may have un anti-takeover effect and inhibit a change in our
management. As a result, these provisions could prevent our stockholders from receiving a premium for their shares of
common stock above the prevailing market prices. These provisions include:

o the REIT ownership limit described above;

* the ability to issue preferred stock with the powers, preferences or rights determined by our board of
directors;

*  special meetings of our stockholders may be called only by the chairman of the board, the chief executive
officer, the president or by the board of directors:

® advance nolice requirlemcnls for stockholder proposals;
¢ the absence of cumulative voting righis; and
*  provisions relating to the removal of incumbent directors.

Finally, Maryland law also contains several statutes that restrict mergers und other business combinations with an interested
stockholder or that may otherwise have the effect of preventing or delaying a change of control.

Changes in taxation of corporate dividends may adversely affect the value of our common stock.

The maximum marginal rate of tax payable by domestic non-corporate taxpayers on dividends received from 2 regular “C”
corporation under current law is 15 pcfccm through 2010, as opposed to higher ordinary income rates, The reduced Lax rate,
however, does not apply to distributions paid to domestic non-corporate taxpayers by a REIT on its stock, except for certain
limited amounts. Although the earnings of a REIT that are distributed to its stockholders generally remain subject io less
federal income taxation than earnings of a non-REIT “C™ corporation that are distributed to its stockholders net of corporale-
level income tax, legislation that extends the application of the 15 percent rate to dividends paid after 2010 by “C” corporations
could cause domestic non-corporate investors to view the stock of regular “C™ corporations as mere atiraclive relative to the
stock of a REIT, because the dividends from regular “C” corporations would conlinue 10 be taxed a1 a lower rae while
distributions from RETTs (other than distributions designated as capital gain dividends) are generally taxed at the same rate as
the individual's other ordinary income.
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Foreign stockholders may be subject to FIRPTA on the sale of common shares if we are unable to qualify as a
“domestically controlled” REIT.

A foreign person disposing of a U.S. real property interest, including shares of a U.S. corporation whose assels consisl
principally of U.S. real property interests, is generally subject to a tax, known as FIRPTA, on the gain recognized on the
disposition. FIRPTA does not apply, however, to the disposition of stock in a REIT if the REIT is a “domestically controlled
REIT." A domestically controlled REIT is a REIT in which, at all times during a specified testing period, less than 50% in
value of its shares was held directly or indirectly by non-U.S. persons. We cannot assure our siockholders that we will qualify
as a domestically controlled REIT. If we were to fail to so qualify, gain realized by a foreign stockholder on a sale of our
common stock would be subject to FIRPTA unless our common stock was traded on an established securities market and the
foreign stockholder did not at any time during a specified testing period directly or indirectly own more than 5% of the value of
our outstanding common stock.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM2. PROPERTIES ;

Our pontfolio consists primarily of grocer-anchored shopping centers and other necessity-oriented retailers and at December 31,
2007 contained an aggregate of approximately 17.5 million square feet of gross leasable area or GLA. Other than our
leasehold interests in McAlpin Square shopping center located in Savannah, Georgia, Plaza Acadienne shopping center located
in Eunice, Louisiana, and El Novillo, located in Miami, Florida, all of our other properties are owned in fee simple. In
addition, some of cur properties are $ubject to mortgages as described under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Mortgage Indebtedness.”

|
The foliowing table provides a brief description of our properties as of December 31, 2007:

[

Year GLA Average
Bl / Year Sq Fu Pervend base rent Grocer Other Anchors
Propesty Renovated Acqulred at 125100"" Leased psp Anchar > 10,000 f
1
ALABAMA (2) 1
Madison Centre 1997 2003 4837 957% $ 938 Publix Ritz Aid
Winchesier Plaza 2006 2008 B34 919% 1.76 Publix
1
TOTAL SHOPPING CENTERS ALABAMA (2) , TR s 1066 ]
f
CONNECTICUT (1) ,
Brookside Plaza 1983 / 2006 2006 210588 839% TR Shaw's Bed Hah & Beyond,
Walgreens, Staples,
Old Counry Buffer
[roraL sHorriNG CENTERS CONNECTICUTG) 0SS Buew $ 1M |
FLORIDA (34)
Oriando / Ceutral Florids (10) !
Alafays Commons 1987 003 12633} 99.2% 3 1167 Pubtix
Alafays Village 1936 2006 9477 9%6.2% 19.57  Super Savey
' (Shadow - dask)
Cooway Crossing 2002 2003 Rl %rd} 54.3% nn Publin
]
Easiwood, Shoppes o 1997 002 69031 100 .15 Publix
]
Henter's Crock 1998 2003 73204 97.2% 1324 Office Depot,
i Lifcstyle Family Fitoess
Kirkman Shoppes 1573 2000 REA20  100.0% 12 Panty Apserics
Lake Mary Centre 1985 / 2001 1995 139,084 9T4% 13.00 Albenson Kmart,
! Lifestyte Fimess Center,
| Office Depot
Part Promenade 1927 7 2000 1999 128,841 0.I% 802 Beaisty Depot,
| Orange County Librwry
Town & Counury 1993 2003 M3 44w 843 Alberzons®
(Ross 7
] DD’s Discount)
Unigold Shopping Center 1987 2003 L7527 9% L1 WinneDixie Lifestyle Faonily Fitness
i
Jacksonrille / North Florida (1) :
Beaxclers Village 1962/ 1539 e 70429 BALT% 819 Big Lots, Geodwill,
Bealls Outkes
Forest Village 2000 1999 TLSI  E5ON 10.58 Publix
I
f1. Caroline 1985 11995 1993 ETRTT RN BT 753 Winn-Duxie Cati Treess
’ |
Maedical & Marvhans 1993 2004 156,153 962% 12.66 Publix Memorisd Hospital
]
Middle Beach 1994 2003 8277 IR 9.65 Publix
Ozk Hill 19857 147 1995 78492 965% 743 Publix Bealls
South Beach 19907 1991 2003 WH9 963N 12.08 Beal¥s, Bed Bath &k Beyond
| Home Depod, Stein Man

MEard-Drade / Broward / Patm Boeach (39)
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Year GLA Average
Buill / Yar Sq.Fu Percent b rend Grocer Other Aachars
Property Renovated  Acguired a 123107 Lensed PsE™ Anchor > 10,000
Bind Ludlom 1938/ 1998 1994 192202 9%6.3% 5 1547 Wing-Dixie CVS Plumxcy
Bird Bxecutlve, Goodwill
Beca Village 1973 2000 93423 9L.9% 157 Publia CVS Prarmacy
Boynton Plazs 15781199 2000 99,324 99.0% t4.13 Publix CVS Pharuuacy
Blaffs Squarc 1984 2000 132395 15.8% 1349 Peblix Walgreens
Chape] Trail 1007 2006 356378 2% 0 LA Fincus
Concord Stopping Plan 1962719927 199) 2006 153,986 9.3% 9.3 Winn Dinie Howme Depor, Big Lots
Coral Reef Shoppang Center 1968 1 1990 2006 74,680 UE% 20.26 Office Depot
Countryside Shops 1986/ 1988/ 1991 2003 179361 97.9% 13.43 Poblia CVS Pharmacy, Sicin Mart
Crussroads Square 1973 2000 84,387 1% 17.67 CVS5 Pharexy
CVS Plaa 2004 1999 29.204 100.0% 11.05 CV5 Pharmxy
El Noville 1970/ 2000 198 10,000 100.0% .00 lumbo Baflct
Greenwood 1982 11904 2003 132,525 93.3% 12.86 Puhliz Beall's Quthal
Jomahan's Landing L 000 5,820 5% 0.7 Albertsons
(shadow)
Lago Mar 1995 2003 2613 e 13.95 Publix
Laniasa Village 1976119599 1993 181,780 98.1% 1.4 winna-Dizie Kman,
Rite Aid® (Family Dollar)
Mcadows 1997 2002 75524 100.0% 13.43 Publix
Oakbrook Square 1974 1 2000/ 200} 2000 212004 91.5% 14.74 Publin Stein Man. T! Maax,
Home Gouds, CVS Pharmacy,
Basset Fumiture, Daffy's
Oakiree Plaza 1988 2006 23,145 T4.8% 15.20
Pz Island 1943/ 1999 1999 254,907 98.9% 11.43 Peblia Hooe Depot Expe, Staples
Pine Ridge Sqoare 1936/ 19957 1999 003 1.9 HA% 1463 Presh Makey Bed Bath & Beyond,
Nondic laierion
Plaza Adegre W03 2002 g1.61( 100.0% 15.43 Publix Goodwill
Point Royals 19704 2000 1993 216,760 95.2% 643  Winn-Disic Best Buy
Prosperiry Centre 1993 000 122014 96.6% 1138 Office Depot, CV'S Phanmacy,
Bed Bath & Beyond,
Carmice's. T) M
Ridge Plaa 198471999 1000 133,204 911% 1074
AMC Theatez, Kaboons,
Wachovis® (United Collection),
Round Up
Riverside Square 1987 003 104,241 96.5% 18 Pubka
Srwpras Proccrade 198211993 00 101,092 $5.0% na Publiz Walgreens
Sheridan** 1973 11991 1003 304,495 91.3% [EA]] Publis Kohl's, Ross.
Bed Bath & Beyond, Office Depor,
CVS Phanacy. Sheridan Plaga,
LA Fitness, USA Baby, Child Spacc
Shoppes of Andros Istes 2000 2006 19420 96.5% 1312 Publix




Year GlA Averape
Bufit? Year S5q. Py Percent b rent Grocer Other Anchors
Property Renoveted  Acguired ol 12317 Leased pSF' Atthor > 10,000 f
Shoppes of iy 1999 2002 940 100.0% $ 13.45 Publix
Shoppes a1 Quail Roost 2005 2006 73550 98.2% 15.58 Publin
Shoppes of Silverlakes 1993/ 1997 2003 126,758 3% 16.8% Publia
Shops m1 Skylake 1999 7 2005 / 2006 1997 284,943 ".1% 1583 Publix CVS Phomacy, LA Fitoess,
: Goodwill
Skuppes of Sunset 1979 2007 20,704 91.2% 16.42
|
Shoppes of Sunsa 1f 198.0 007 167 T26% 1517
Tamerwe Town Square 1987 2003 127,633 13.4% 139 Poblix Dollar Troe
Waterdone 2003 99 22531 100,0% 13.20 Poblix Walgreers
West Lakes Plaza 1984 / 2000 1996 100,747 100.0% 12.16 Winn-Disie Navarro Plurmacy
Wettport Plaza 20m 2004 9,980 MA% 17.85 Pubiix
Young Circle 1962 7 1997 2003 &5.6M 96.T% 15.47 Publix Walgreens
Flerida Tressare / Nertheast Coast (B)
Cathmere Comens 2004 2000 LIM 26.0% 9.3 Albertsons
New Smymos Beach 1987 2003 FI8.451 100.0% n» Pubiix Walgreens® (Bealls Ootlet),
Bealls Home Outler
0ld Kiag Comtmons 1984 2003 759 100.0% PR Wal-Mar. Staples,
Bealls Outey
Ryanwood 1987 2000 114,925 97.4% 10.76 Publix Bealls Outler,
: Books-A-Milhion
Sakrmo Village 1987 2002 BT %1% 1079 Wisn-Duic CV5 Phamexy
Shops m St Lucie 006 2000 19,361 .2% 19.70
Soutyy Porn Comer 1003 2006 B4, 790 94NN 15,30 Publia
Treasure Coast 19483 200 133,781 91.5% LAl Publix TI Maxx
Toamps f 54, Petersdrerg / Vendes £ Cope Coral / Naples (20)
Bay Poinle Plara 1984 / 2002 2003 103,986 95.6% 10.27 Publi Bealls Quikt
Carrollwood 1970 11002 2000 93,203 NA4% 1302 Publin Oolf Loscker
Charlone Square 1980 2003 96,158 95.4% Hd0 Americen Signawre Purniture,
Seafood Buffer
Chehea Place 192 2003 LINTE L0 0% 1.7 Publia
Dolphin Village 1967/ ty9n 2006 134.12% B3.2% 11.30 Pubilix Duollar Tree, CVS Pranmacy
Lake 5L Charles 1999 2001 57,015 100.0% 10.44 Swee) Bay
Luiz Lake 002 2003 64,985 93.3% 13.68 Pablix
Marte Town Conier 2001 2000 109230 94.9% 17.25 Publix
Mariners Crossing 19897 199 2000 91,604 1000% 975  Kasho' Ky
Midpoin! Center zmi 2006 73,386 100 0% 11.54 Publix
Pavilion 1981 2004 043 92.0% 14.37 Publix Pavilion & Theotre
Regency Croasing 1986/ 2001 2003 15864 B.2% 10.28 Publia
Ross Plaza 1984 7 1996 2000 19859 4% 11.48 Ross Dress foc Len
Seven Hils IWI' 2003 TT50 !N 10.72 Publix
Shoppes of North Port 199f 2000 MIUS  I000% 10.56 Publix Bealts Outlet
|
Surmnerlin Square ros0 / 1998 Jyot 19156 B03% 1068  Wien-Dizie Lee County Sheriff's Office
Sunpoina Shopping Center 1984 2006 13231 64.1% v.5) Bealts Chitlet, Goodwill,
Orrie's Bafle
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Year GlLA Avernge

Built / VYear Sq.Fu Pereent buse rent Grocer (xher Anchors
Property Renovated  Acyuired = 123107 Lewsed [ Anchor > 10.000 ¢f
Venice Flaza 1917197971999 003 131,345 9%6.7% § o Swert Bay TJ Maxa, Blockbusier
Venice Shopping Center 1968 / 2000 004 TTX: T AT 5.69 Publia Beall's Owlet
Walden Woods 1985 71993 2 2003 199 T53T4 0% L Dollar Tree, Asron Renty,
Doller General
ITOTAL SHOPPING CENTERS FLORIDA (B4) 9 A0682T 95.0% § 113
GCEDRCGIA {(15)
Alanta (21)
BridgeMill 000 2003 89,002 9%5.4% $ 153 Pubti
Bockhead Station 1996 21930 29.7% 19.70 Bed Bath & Beyond,
T) Maxs, OK Nivy, Toys R Us,
DSW, Goldwrit:, Lha
Butler Creek 1990 2003 95.597 91.3% [V, Kroper
Chusiain Square 1981 12001 2003 91.637 94.5% 1742 Pubtin
Commerce Crossing (L] 2003 100,658 £2.4% 4.76 Ingies Fred's Store
Douglas Commons 1918 2003 |y 989% 1041 Kroger
Fairvicw Oaks %7 2003 T1.052 954% .32 Kroger
Grasstand Crossing 1996 2003 w006 98G% 1182 Kroger
Hairsvon Center 2000 pLH 13.000 £0.2% 1491
Hamilion Ridge 2002 2003 89496  85.3% 12.44 Krager
Mableton Crossing 1997 won3 86,819 9%.1% 1055 Kroger
Macland Pointe 199293 203 9.65% 98.5% 9.59 Publix
Market Place : 1976 2003 1,706 22.3% 1. Peachitree Cinewa
Paulding Comeoas 1991 003 192,391 LIAL 153 Kroger Kmart
Pisdomont Peachiree Creasing 19781 1998 2006 152239 100.0% 1641 Kroger Cost Plys Storr,
Binders An Supplies
Powers Ferry Phza 997198771993 003 86,473 91.2% 9.63 Micro Cenier
Presidential Markets 1993 1 2000 003 306408 6% 1.9 Pubdix Marshall's, T) Maxe,
Bed Bath & Bryond,
Crrmike Cinemnas,
Rens Deess for Less,
Offce Depon, Shoe Camival,
Grand Harbor impon Co.
Bordens
Shops of Huntrrest 2003 2003 100 9% 1197 Pueldia
Sheps of Westridgs 2006 2003 ‘56291 894% 1J85 Publia
Wesley Chapel 1989 2003 170792 323% 1.0 Ingles® CVS Phammacy
Williamshorg @ Dunweody 1983 00 44928 93.2% 1569
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Yar, GLA Aversge

Buih/ Year 5q. FL. Percent base rent Grocer Other Anchon
Propeny Repovaled  Acquired s 23107 Lessed rsk™ Anchor > 10000 of
1
Central / South Georgia (4) I
Daniel Village 193671997 2003 171,932 953% H 8.50 Bi-Lo St foseph Home Heahh Core
McAlpin Square 1979 2003 176807  ELI® 5.06 Kroger Big Lo, U.5. Post Office
Spalding Village 1989 2003 218318 616% 7.85 Kroger IC Penncy®. Blockbusier,
Pred’s Siore
Wahon Plars 1990 2003 43,460 100.0% 1011 Harmis Teeter®
{Omni Fitnesa)
ITOTAL SHOPPING CENTERS GEORGIA (25} . 3 036,724 80.9% $ 1163
LOQUISIANA (14)
Ambassadar Row 19504 199) 2003 193,978 3% $ oM Conn's Appliances, Big Loss,
1 Chuck E Cherwe, Goody's
Ambassador Row Courtyard 1986 1 19917 20058 2003 144,697 9.1% 9,95 Bed Bath & Beyond. Marshall's
Hancuck Fabrics,
United Training Acedcmy,
Toesday Moming
Bluebonner Vitlage 1983 2003 101,623 NI% 10.24 Matherte's
Boulevard 19761 1994 2003 68012 A% 8.5 Piccadilly.
. Harbor Freight Toots,
) Golfballs com
Country Qub Para 19821 194 2003 54,686  100.0% 632  Winn-Dinie
Crotaing 1988 7 199} 200} 114,806 91.8% 565 Save A Center A+ ) Home Appliance,
' Piceadsily
Elnrwood Caks 1989 2003 133,995 9%.1% 949 Adadery Spocts, Dollar Tree
Home Décor
CGrand Marche (ground lesse) 1969 2003 100,585 100.0% NA Granke Maxche
Plaza Acadicnne 1930 2003 10541% 490% 402 Super | Storc Fred's Store
Sberwood South 197271988 1 1992 2003 TLI0T  B5.0% 615 ‘ Burke's Quiker,
Harbor Freighi Togls.
Frod's Store
Siegen Village 1989 2000 170416 99.2% 879 Office Depon. Big Low.
Dottar Tree, Stage, Party City
Tarpon Heights 1982 2003 56605  £9.8% 5. Stage, Dolkar General
Yillage & Northahore 1983 W00} 144,628 100:0% [ X Marshall's, Dol Tree,
Kinchman's*, Bed Bath & 8cyond,
Office Depon
Wal-Mat Mathews 1933 2003 34223 100.0% 250 Walhan*
[TOTAI.SHDPP[NG CENTERS LOUISLANA (14) 1,632,790 $1.7% $ 8.0%
MASSACHUSETTS (T}
Cambridge Star Market 195371997 2004 66,108 100.0% 3 08 Star Market
Medford Shaw's Supermarket 199§ 2004 62656  100.0% 384 Shaw's
Plymouth Shew’s Suprrmarket 991 004 9726 100.0% 7N Shaw's
Quincy Star Market 1965 1 1995 2004 100,741 100.0% 17.3% Sz Market
Swampscott Whole Foods 1967 1 7005 2004 15,907 100.0% 2100  Whole Foods
Websiur Plana 1963 £ 1998 2006 201,425 9.0% 733 Shaw's Kmart, Family Dollar, Doftar Tree
West Roabury Shaw's Plaza 19737 1995/ 2006 2004 16316 100.0% pX ] Shaw's
IIOTM. SHOPPING CENTERS MASSACHUSETTS (7) 502879 91.0% $ 17.04
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Year CLA Aversge
Built/ Year Sq. 1 Percent base rens Grocer {Xber Anchory
Properly Reoovated  Acguired w125 Leased PSP Anchor > 10,000 sf
Shipyud Plaza 1937 1003 66,857 100.0% $1m Big Lo, Buffalo Wiki Wisgs
l'lOTAL SHOPPING CENTERS MISSISSIPF (1} 6,857  100.0% § 1.02 ]
NORTH CAROLINA (B)
Centre Poioic Plazs 1989 000 163,642 95.6% $60 Betk's, Goody's, Dolly Tree,
Axron Renus

Gallcria 1986 7 1990 200 G214 9L9% 10.25  Harris Teeter”

Pariowest Crossing 1990 00 5.602 100.0% 10,36 Food Lion

Rivervicw Shopping Cener 19731995 2003 125490 9)4% 182 Kroper Upchureh Drugs. Rivervicw Calieries

Salbury Marketplace 1987 2000 ™3 9L6% 10.56 Food Lion Farmly Doltar

Stanfey Market Placc 2007 2003 ans Q14% 232 Food Lion

Thomawyille Commons 1991 2003 148,754 95.2% b X)) Ingles Kmari

WiNawhile Shopping Center 1986 2003 120934 9L.1% 1004  Haris Tecier Hall of Finess
TOTAL SHOFPPING CENTERS NORTH CAROLINA (8} B72.554 Sl6% 4 536
SOUTH CAROLINA (5}

Belfair Towne Villnge 2000/ 2003 1 2006 2003 166,639 95.3% 5129 Kroger Siem Man

Lancaster Plaza 197171990 2003 71400 326% k1] Bi-Lo

Lancaster Shopping Center 1961/ 1987 2003 Hoa 100.0% 19 Sweer Unioo Pumnitore

Milestone Plaza 1995 2005 NI BH5% 14.97 Bi-La

Norh Village Center 1984 2003 60,156 96.8% 847 Bi-Lo Dollar Genera), GokJ's Gym

Sparkleherry Square 19974 2004 2004 905 W5% 138 Kroger Runs Dreas for Less, Cireuit City,

Bed Bath & Beyond, Persman,
Pier Doe., Kokl
Windy Hilt 1968 / 1988 F 3006 2004 68,465 100.0% 613 Rote's Sore. Pumily Dolbar Store
‘WoodrufT 1993 003 68,053 98.2% 10.45 Publin
ITGTAL SHOPPING CENTERS SOUTH CAROLINA (8) 907,790 S1.T% $ 10,51
TEXAS (1)

Roscmcade 1986 2001 5123 Mm% $7.20 Russian Basys Spa
TOTAL SHOPPING CENTERS TEXAS () $1.2H M.1% $ 7.0 J
VIRGINIA (I}

Smyth Valley Crossing 198% 2003 126,01 98.9% $ 39 Ingles Wal-Mzn
|'I‘OTAI. SHOPPING CENTERS VIRGINIA (1) 126841 "% $ 593
ITOTA 1. CORE SHOPPING CENTER PORTFOLIO (152) 1078462 3.1% $ 10,6
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Year GLA Averape

Buih/ Yrar Sq.FL Percent base rent Crocer Otber Anchors
Propery Renovated  Acquired  #123007" Leased s Anchor > 10000 5
4101 South I-£3 Industriat 19564 19'63 2003 188,513 38.0%
Barco Popular Office Buikding 197, 2008 un o W%
Laurel Welk Aprtoeats 1935 il ii 106,420 I1.1%
Mandurin Mir-Storage 1982 1994 52,300 L%
Prosperity Office Building 1572 2006 3200 0.0%
Providence Square 199 03 8593  325%
L]
IIOT.\L OTHER PROPERTIES (6) i 469,160 56.6% —I
I
['mml. EXCLUDING DEY / REDEY & LAND (158) ! 1LM47621  9LI% !
DEVELQFMENTS / REDEYELOPMENTS & LAND(11)
Develapements (3)
Redevelopments (1)
Land Held for Development (4} i
[cRaND TOTAL - 169 Propentes - ]

{1) Total squarc footage does not include shadow anchor square footage that is not owned by Equity One.
{2} Calcuvlated by annualizing the center's monthly base rent at December 31, 2007, excluding expense reimbursements, percentage rent payments and other
charges divided by GLA. :

* Indicates a tenamt which continucs (o pay rent, but has closed its store and ceased operations.
The sub-tenant, if any, is shown in ().

Most of our leases provide for the monthly payment in advance of fixed minimurn rentals, the tenants’ pro rata share of ad
valorem taxes, insurance (including fire and extended coverage, rent insurance and liability insurance) and common area
maintenance for the property, They may also provide for the paymemt of additional rentals based on a percentage of the
tenants’ sales. Unilities are generally paid directly by tenants except where common metering exists with respect to a propeny.
In this case, we make the payments for the utilities and are reimbursed by the tenants on a monthly basis. Generally, our leases
prohibit the tenant from assigning or subletting its space. They also reguire the tenant to use its space for the purpose
designated in its tease agreement and 10 operate its business on a continuous basis. Some of the lease agreements with major
tenants contain modifications of these bésic provisions in view of the financial condition, stability or desirability of those
tenznts. Where a tenant is granted the right to assign its space, the lease agreement generally provides that the original lessee
will remain liable {or the payment of the lease obligations under that lease agreement,
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Major Tenants

The following table sets forth as of December 31, 2007 the gross leasable area, or GLA of our existing propertics leased to

tenants in our core shopping center portfolic:

Supermarket Other Anchor Non-anchor Total
Anchor Tenants Tenants Tenants
Leased GLA (sq. It} 5,082,066 5,277,245 5,560,389 15,919,700
Percentage of Total Leased GLA 31.9% 332% 34.9% 100.0%

The foltowing table sets forth as of December 31, 2007 the annual minimum rent at expiration auributable to tenants in our
core shopping center portfolio:

Supermarket Other Anchor Non-anchor
Anchor Tenants Tenants Tenants Total
Annual Minimum Rent ("AMR"™) s 44624919 § 45,681,357 § 100,877,270 § 191,183,546
Percentage of Total AMR 23.3% 23.59% 52.8% 100.0%

The following table sets forth as of December 31, 2007 information regarding leases with the ten largest tenants in our core
shopping center portfolio:

Percent of Average
Aggregate Annual
Annualized Annualized Minimum
Number of GLA Percent of Minimum Rent Minimum Rent per
Tenant Leases {square feet) Total GLA at 1231107 Rent Square Foot
Publix 54 2415977 14.1% § 19,074,490 10.4% $ 7150
Supervalu 7 458,273 21% 8,302,236 4.5% 18.12
Kroger 13 747,025 44% 6.057.487 13% 8.1
Bed Bath & Beyond 10 321,490 1.9% 3,620,831 2.0% 11.26
Winn Dixie 10 476.128 2.8% 2,891,202 1.6% 6.07
TJ Maxx Companies 10 310,658 1.8% 2,556,245 1.4% 8.23
LA Fitness 3 144,307 0.8% 2,517,941 1.4% 17.45
Blockbuster 23 122,124 0.7% 2,217,865 1.2% 18.65
CVS Pharmacy 14 152,365 0.9% 2,222.981 1.2% 14.59
Offfice Depol 7 190,206 1.1% 2.063.628 1.1% 10.85
Total top ten tenants 151 5,338,553 JiZ% "% 51,584,906 28.2% $ 9.66
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Lease Expirations

The following tables sets forth as of December 31, 2007 the anticipated expirations of tenant leases in our core shopping center
portfotio for each year from 2008 through 2017 and thereafter:

ALL TENANTS
Percent of Avernge
Aggregate Annual
Annualized Minimum
Annuallzed Minfmum Rent per
Number of CLA Percent of  Minimum Rent at Rent at Square Foot
Year Leases (square feet) Total GLA Expiration Expiration at Expiration
M-T-M 91, 186,275 1L1% § 2,632,686 14% 3 14.13
2008 591 1,395,686 8.2% 21,132,295 1.1% 13.14
2009 557 1.985,673 11.6% 24,580,784 12.9% 12.38
2010 553 2.097.306 12.3% 25,283,953 13.2% 12.06
2011 371 1,989,203 11.6% 23,618,759 12.4% 11.87
2012 3 1.748,605 10.2% 20,506,557 10.7% 11.73
2013 75 991,322 5.8% 9,981,412 5.2% 10.07
2014 45 792,319 4.6% 6.830,088 3.6% 8.62
2015 33 399,382 2.3% 4,393,324 2.3% 11.00
2016 34 910.930 5.3% 13.697.924 7.1% 15.04
2017 k¥) 592,401 3.5% 7.270.278 3.8% 12.27
Thercaficr i10 2,830,598 16.7% 31,255,786 16.3% 11.04
Sub-total/Average 2,805 15,919,700 93.2% § 191,183,546 100.0%  $ 12.01
Vacant 375 1.158.762 6.8% NA NA NA
Total/Average 3,180 17,078,462 160.0% $ 191,183,546 100.0% NA
ANCHOR TENANTS > 10,000 SF
| Percent of Average
Aggregate Anguat
Annualized Minimom
) Annualized Minimum Rent per
Number of GLA Percent of  Minimum Rent 6t Rent at Square Foot
Year 1eases (square feet) Total GLA __Explration Expiration at Expiration
M-T-M , 2 33,978 03% §$ 390,565 04% 3 11.49
2008 13 211,324 1.9% 1,461,123 1.6% 6.91
2009 l3:! 886,200 81% 6.033,373 6.7% 60.81
2010 33 1,030,540 9.5% 6,340,522 7.0% 6.15
2011 ‘42 1,215,396 14.2% 8,802,132 9.7% 7.24
2012 32 1,003,763 10.1% 7,472,072 8.3% 6.83
2011 20 832,049 7.6% 6,752,824 71.5% g.12
2014 16 693.616 64% 4,788,277 53% 6.90
2015 bl 324,938 3.0% 2.791.511 3% 8.59
2016 17 847,255 1.8% 12,276,939 13.6% 14,49
2017 ‘13 498,622 4.6% 5,325,139 59% 10.68
Thercalter 64 2,691,630 24.7% 27.871.799 30.9% 10.35
Sub-total/Average a0 10,359.311 95.2% § 90,306,276 100.0% §$ 8.72
Vacam 19 520,089 4,8% NA NA NA
Total/Average 320 10,879,400 100.0% § 90,306,276 100.0% NA
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LOCAL TENANTS < 10,000 SF

Percent of Avernge
Aggregate Annual
Annualized Mipimum
Annualized Minimum Rent per
Number of GLA Percent of . Minimum Rent at Rent at Square Foot
Year Leases (square feet) Total GLA Expiration Expiration at Expiration
M-T-M 89 152,297 25% § 2,242,121 2% § 14.72
2008 578 1,184,362 19.1% 19.671,172 19.5% 16.61
2009 524 1,099,473 17.7% 18,547,411 18.4% 16.87
2010 515 1,066,766 17.2% 18,943,43) 18.8% 17.76
2011 329 773.807 12.5% 14,816,627 14.7% 19.15
2012 281 654,842 10.6% 13,034,485 12.9% 19.90
2013 55 159,273 2.6% 3,228,288 3.2% 20.27
2014 29 98,703 1.6% 2,041,811 2.0% 20.69
2015 2 74.444 1.2% 1.601.813 1.6% 21.52
2016 17 63,675 1L0% 1,420,985 1.4% 2232
2017 19 93,779 1.5% 1.945.139 1.9% 20.74
Thereafter 46 138.968 2.2% 3,383,987 3.4% 24.35
Sub-total/Average 2,504 5,360,389 89.7% § 100877.270 1000% § 18.14
Yacant 356 638,673 10.3% NA NA NA
TotaVAverage 2,860 6,199,062 1000% § 100,877,270 100.0% NA
————

We may incur substantial expenditures in connection with the re-leasing of our retail space, principally in the form of tenant
improvements and leasing commissions. The amounts of these expenditures can vary significantly, depending on negotiations
with tenants and the willingness of tenants to pay higher base rents over the terms of the leases. We also incur expenditures for
cenain recurring capital expenses.

Insurance

Our tenanis are generally responsible under their leases for providing adequate insurance on the spaces they lease. We believe
that our propertics are covered by adequate fire, flood and property insurance, and where necessary hurricane and windstorm
coverages all provided by reputable companies. However, certain of our properties are not covered by disaster insurance with
respect to certain hazards (such as hurricanes) for which coverage is not available or available only at rates, which in our
opinion, are not economically justifiable.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Neither we nor our properties are subject to any litigation which we believe will have a material adverse affect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. Furthermore, to the best of our knowledge, except as described above
with respect to environmental matters, there is no litigation threatened against us or any of our properties, other than routine
litigation and administrative proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business, which collectively are not expected 10 have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matiers were submitted for stockholder vote during the fourth quarter of 2007.
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PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information and Dividends .

]
Qur commeon stock began irading on the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, on May 18, 1998, under the symbol “EQY.”
On February 15, 2008, we had 1,508 stockholders of record representing 17,191 beneficial owners. The following table scts
forth for the periods indicated the high and low sales closing prices as reported by the NYSE and the distributions declared by
us:

Distributions
. High Low Declared

First Quarter, 2007 $ 2876 § 2552 § 0.30
Second Quarter, 2007 § 2930 § 2555 § 0.30
Third Quarter, 2007 $ 2800 $ 277 $ 0.30
Fourth Quarter, 2007 $ 2868 $§ 2149 § 0.30
First Quarter, 2006 $ 2490 $ 240 S 0.30
Second Quarter, 2006 $ 2400 $ 2048 § 130 O
Third Quarter, 2006 $ 2543 $§ 2115 8 0.30
Fourth Quarter, 2006 S 2814 0§ 238 0§ 030

{1} Included a special dividend of $1.00 per share related 10 the sale of our Texas porifolio.

Dividends paid during 2007 and 2006 totaleg $88.6 million and $162.7 million, inclusive of the 2006 special dividend
aggregating $73.7 million, respectively. Future declarations of dividends will be made by us at the discretion of our board of
directors and will depend upon our eamings, financial condition and such other factors as our board of directors deems
relevant. In order to qualify for the beneficial tax treatment accorded (o real estate investment trusts under the [nternal Revenue
Code of 1986, or the Code, we are currently required 10 make distributions to holders of our shares in an amount equal 1o at
least 90% of our “real esiate investment trust taxable income,” as defined in Section 857 of the Code.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative total return of our commen stock with the Russell 2000 Index, the NAREIT All Equity
Index and SNL Shopping Center REITs, an index of approximately 20 publicly-traded REITS that primarily own and operate
shopping centers, each as provided by SNL Securities L.C., from December 31, 2002 until December 31, 2007. The SNL Shopping
Center REIT index is compiled by SNL Securities L.C. and includes our common stock and securities of many of our competitors.
The graph assumes that $100 was invested on December 31, 2002 in our common stock, the Russell 2000 Index, the NAREIT All
Equity REIT Index and SNL Shopping Cenier REITs, and that all dividends were reinvested. The lines represent semi-annual index
levels derived from compounded daity rétums. The indices are re-weighted daily, using the market capitalization on the previous
tracking day. If the semi-annual interval i nol a trading day. the preceding trading day is used.

The performance graph shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference this

annual report into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 except to the extent we
specifically incorporate this information by reference, and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under such acis.

-24-




Equity One, Inc.

Total Return Performance
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12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/21/05 12/31/06 1223107
Perivd Ending
Index 12/31/02 12/31/03 1273104 1231/05 1221106 [FIRIE Y
Equity One, Inc. 100,00 135.09 201.24 206.42 262.12 237.40
Russell 2000 100,00 147.25 174.24 18218 215.64 212.26
NAREIT All Equily REIT [ndex 100.00 137,13 180.44 202.38 273.34 230.45
SNL REIT Relai) Shopping Center Index 100.00 141.78 192.62 210.19 282.93 232,94

Issuer Purchases Of Equity Securities

No equity securities were purchased by us during 2007.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Information regarding equily compensation plans is presented in Item 12 of this annual report and incorporated herein by
reference.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{in thousands other than per share, percentage and rotio data)

Statement of Operations Data: ("

Total remal income $ 246613 8 224777 § 201,781 $ 1783998 5 137647
Property operating ¢xpenses 64,500 61,161 51,355 45,837 39,727
Property management and leasing services 963 1,861 229 B2 42
Renta! property depreciation and amortization 46,103 40312 33467 28.655 20,675
General and administrative expenses ! 25,846 29,757 19,734 18,708 12,694
Total operating expenses 137,412 133,094 104,785 93,282 13.138
Interest expense (66,663} (5398 {47.308) {40.987) (32,157
Amortization of deferred financing fees (1,680) {1,485) {1,449} (1,329 (896)
Onher income, net 9,893 16,628 7,941 2,704 1,095
Minority interest {112) (206) (188B) (576} (756)
Impairment {1,851) - - - -
Income from continuing operations S 48788 % 52640 § 55992 § 45528 § 31.795
Net income $ 69385 $§ 176955 § 92741 § 97804 3 63,647
Basic eamings per share: l

Income from continuing operations ' 5 067 § 071§ 076  § 065 S 0.53
Net income $ 095 § 240 § 126 § 139§ 1.6
Diluted ¢amings per share:

Income from continuing operations ] 067 § o S 075 § 063 § 0.52
Net income $ 095 § 238 § 124 3% 137 8§ 1.05
Batance Sheet Data: )

Tosal rental propenies, net of accumulated

depreciation $ 1875342 § 1752018 § 1896505 § 1873687 $ 1617299
Total assets ™ 2,174,384 2.069,775 2,059,881 1,992,292 1.677,386
Mortgage notes payable . 397,112 391,647 446,925 495,056 439,103
Total liabilities 1,257,463 1,143,108 1,085,727 1,059,507 834,162
Minority interest . 989 089 1,425 1,397 12,672
Sharcholders’ equity 915,932 925678 972,729 931,388 830,552
Other Data:

Funds from operations™ $ 98409 S 110311 3 124836 0§ 113663 § 89870
Cash flows from:

Operating activities . 107,016 94,643 117,192 113,10 78,262
Investing activities , (104,602) 114,813 (82,371) (244.851) (326,160)
Financing activities ! (1,101) (209,558) (39.841) 135.897 245920
GLA (square feet) ut eod of period . 17,548 18,353 19,699 19,914 19,883
Occupancy of core shopping center ponifolio at '

end of period 93.2% 95.0% 93.0% 95.0% 90.0%
Dividends per share $ 120 § 220 3 117 % 113 3 1.10

" Reclussified lo reflect the reporting of discontinued operations.

' Amounts have been reclassified 1o conform to the 2007 presentation.

O We belisve Funds from Operations (“FFO") (combined with the primary GAAP presentations) is @ useful supplemental measure of our operating
performance that is a recognized metric used exicnsively by the real estate indusiry and, in panicular, REMMs. The National Association of Real Estate
Investemt Trusts ("NAREIT™) stated in its April 2002 White Poper on Funds from Operations, “Historical cost acceunting for real estate assets
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implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminish predictably over fime. Since real estute values instead have historically risen or fallen with
marke! conditions, many industry investors have considered presentations of operating resuhs for real estate companies that use historical cos! eecounting
to be insufficient by themselves.”

FFO, s defined by NAREIT, is “net income (computed in accordance with GAAP), cxcluding gains (or losses) from sales of depreciable real propenty,
plus depreciation and omortization, and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and join venlures”, It stotes (unther thar ~adjustmemis for
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures will be calcuiated to reflect funds from operations on the same basis." We belteve that financial analysts.

- investors and stockholders are better served by the clearer presentation of comparable period cperaling resulis generated from our FFO measure. Our

method of calculating FFO may be different from methods used by ather REITs and, accordingly, may not be comparable to such other REITs.

FFO is presented 10 assist investors in enalyzing our operating performance. FFO (i) does not represent cash flow from operations as defined by GAAP,
(i} is not indicative of cash available to fund all cash flow needs, including the ebility to make distributions, (ii) is not an altcmative to cash flow s a
measure of liquidity, and (iv) should not be considered as an aliernative 10 net income (which is detcrmined in accordance with GAAP) for purposes of

evaluating our operating performance.

-7




The following table illustrates the calculation of FFO for each of the five years in the period ended December 31, 2007:

; Year Ended December 31,
! 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)

Net income $ 0385 $ 176955 § 92741 § 97804 § 63.647
Adjustments:
Rental property depreciation and
amertization, including discontinued
operations 47514 44,791 43445 37,215 28,007
Gain on disposal of income- producing
propertics {18,885) (112,995) {11,460} (22.175) (3.083)
Minority interest ! 12 206 1o 623 803
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 283 - - - .
Other Items:
Intcrest on convertible partnership units - - - - 43
Pro-rata share of renl eslate depreciation from
joint ventures - 1,354 - 197 453
Funds from operations ) $ 98409 3 110,311 § 124836 § 113,663 § 89,870

The following table reflects the reconciliation of FFO per diluted sharc to earnings per diluted share, the most directly
comparable GAAP measure, for the periods presented:

Year Ended December 31,
20607 2006 2005 2004 2063
{tn thousands)

Earnings per dituted share* $ 095 § 238 ¢ .24 § 1.37 b 1.05
Adjustments:

Rental property depreciation and

amonization, including discontinued

operations ; 0.65 0.60 0.58 0.52 0.45

Gain on disposal of income-producing

properties 0.26} (1.52) (0.15) 0.31) (0.05)
Loss on disposal of fixcd assets - - . . R

Other items:

Pro-rata share of real estate depreciation

from joint ventures - 0.02 - - 0.01

Funds from operations per dituted share § 1.4 8 143 § 1.67 §$ 1.5 % 146

* Egrnings per diluted share reflect the ddd-buck of interest on convertible parinership units and the minority interesi(s) in earnings of
consolidated subsidiaries which are canvertibie 1o shares of our common stock,
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

The following should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereio, appearing
in “liem 8. Financial Statements and Svupplementary Data” of this annual report.

Overview

We are a real estate investment trust ("REIT”) that owns, manages, acquires, develops and redevelops neighborhood and
community shopping centers, As of December 31, 2007, our propeny portfolio comprised 169 properties, including 152
shopping centers consisting of approximately 17.1 million square feet of gross leasable area (“GLA"), seven
development/redevelopment properties, six non-retail properties and four parcels of land. As of December 31, 2007, our core
portfolio was 93.2% leased and included national, regional and local tenants.

Our principal business objective is to maximize long-lerm stockholder value by generating sustainable cash flow growth and
increasing the long-term value of our real estate assets.

Operating Strategies. We derive substantially alt of our revenue from tenants under existing leases at our properties. Qur core
operating stralegy is to maximize and sirengihen this revenue by atiracting and retaining a strong and diverse base of tenants.
In 2007, this steategy resulted in:

* 2 3.3% increase in same property net operating income as compared to 2006;

¢ an increase in the average rental rate of 14.6% to $16.02 per square foot on 370 lease renewals aggregating
approximately 940,000 square feet; and

* 200 additional new leases totaling 758,122 square feet at an average rental rate of $12.64 per square (oot

In the long-term, our operating revenues are dependent on the continued occupancy of our properties, the rents that we are able
to charge 10 our tenants and the ability of these tenants to make their rental payments. The main long-term threat to our
business is our dependence on the viability of our anchor and other tenants. We believe, however, that our general operating
risks are mitigated by concentrating on high-density neighborhoods in major metropolitan areas, leasing to strong tenants in the
markets in which we own properties and maintaining a diverse tenont mix,

Investment Strategies. Our invesiment strategy is to deploy capital in projects that generale a return that exceeds our cost of
capital and, at the same time, to sell assets thal no longer meet our investment criteria. In 2007, this strategy resulled in:

*  the sale of 14 non-core propenties and six land parcels for an aggregate consideration of $77.5 million and an
aggregate gain of $21.2 million;

*  the acquisition of four retail properties, threc outparcels and one tand parcel for an aggregate consideration of
$133.2 million; and

*  the completion of approximately $35.! millian of development and redevelopment projects.

Capital Strategy. Our business during 2007 was financed using our revolving lines of credit, proceeds from the sale of
properties, the issuance of debt and assumed mortgages. Specifically, in 2007, our capital strategy resulied in:

¢ the issuance of $150.0 million of 6.0% unsecured fixed-rate notes maturing in September 2017; and

*  the prepayment of $11.5 million of certain mortgage notes.

At December 31, 2007, the outstanding balances on our lines of credit aggregated $37.0 million, with $238.4 million of
availability under those facilities subject to covenants that may restrict our use of additional borrowings, One of these facilities
with borrowing limits of $275.0 million expires in early 2009. We have the option to extend this agreement for one year or we
may seek other financing arrangements in 2008. In order to fund our business in the fulure, we anticipate using similar
financing sources. However, there can be no assurances that these sources will be available to us in the future at reasonable
terms or at all. In addition, although we have enjoyed a low interest rate environment in recent years, fluctuations in interest
rates over the last 18 months has had, and any future increases will have, an adverse effect on the cost of our future
borrowings, including borrowings under our revolving credit facilitics, which are based on variable interest rates. As interest
rates rise, the interest expense we incur on these loans will increase.
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2008 Outlook. We will continue to focus in 2008 on disposing of assels that no longer meet our invesiment criteria. These
sales may negatively affect our rental revenue and earnings in the short term. In the long run, we believe that our business and
the earnings generated from the remaining properties will benefit from the quality, location and demographic characteristics of
that portfolio, as well as new properties developed or acquired, in part, with capital from those sales.

We continue to see a posilive impact on our income as a result of the redevelopment of our shopping centers and higher rental
rates on existing spaces that are experiencing tenant turnover. We anticipate that approximately $100 million of developments
and redevelopment projects will be completed in the next two years. As redevelopment properties stabilize, spaces that were
out of service begin generating revenue. In addition, spaces that were not out of service and thal have expiring leases may
generate higher revenue because we generally receive higher rent on new leases. Further, leases signed in 2006 and 2007 on
spaces for which there was a previous tenant has on average been renewed at higher base rent than the prior lease.

QOur business is generally dependen! on the performance of the economy in the areas in which we own properties and the cost
of financing available 10 fund our growth. Changes in the economic environment tend to have a direct effect on our tenants’
businesses and, therefore, their ability 1o continue to pay us rent or remain in occupancy of our properties, as well as the
willingness of businesses to lease locations. The markets in which we currently own properties have continued to show signs
of economic and population growth during 2007, and we expect those trends to continue in 2008, However, general economic
slowdowns or other macro-economic chianges in these markets may adversely affect our business.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, which we refer to as GAAP, requires management 10 make estimates and assumptions that in certain circumstances
affect the reponed amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and revenues and expenses.
These estimates are prepared using our best judgment, afier considering past and current events and econamic conditions. In
addition, cerain information relied upon by us in preparing such estimates includes internally generated financial and
operating information, external markel information, when available, and when necessary, information obtained from
consultations with third party experts. Actual results could differ from these estimates. A discussion of possible risks which
may affect these estimates is included in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” of this annual report. We consider an accounting cstimate o
be critical if changes in the estimate or accrual results could have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations or
financial condition.

The most significant accounting policies, which involve the use of estimates and assumptions as to future uncertainties and,
therefore, may resull in actual amounts that differ from estimates, are as follows:

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

Leases with tenants are classified as operating leases. Generally, our leases comain fixed escalations which occur at specified
times during the term of the lease. Base rents are recognized on a straight-line basis from when the tenant controls the space
through the term of the related lease, net of valuation adjustments, based on our assessment of credit, collection and other
business risk. We make estimates of the collectability of our accounis receivable related 1o base rents, straight-line rents,
expense reimbursements and other revenue or income taking into account our experience in the retail sector, available internal
and external tenant credit information, payment history, industry trends, tenant credit-worthiness and remaining lease terms. In
some cases, primarily relating to straight-line rents, the collection of these amounts extends beyond one year. The extended
collection period for straight-line rents along with our evaluation of tenant credit risk may result in the non-recognition of a
portion of straight-line rental income until the collection of such income is reasonably assured. These estimates have a direct
impact on our earnings.

Real Estate Properties and Development Assets

The nature of our business as an owner, developer and operator of retail shopping centers means that we invest significant
amounits of capital into our properties. Depreciation and maintenance costs relating to our properties constitute substantial costs
for us as well as the industry as a whole. We capitalize real estate investments and depreciate them based on estimates of the
asse1s’ physical and economic useful lives. The cost of our real estate investments is charged 10 depreciation expense over the
estimated life of the asset using straight-line rates for financial statement purposes. We periodically review the estimated lives
of our assets and implement changes, as necessary, to these estimaies and, therefore, 1o our depreciation rates.

Properties and real estate under development are recorded ai cost. We compute depreciation using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of up to 40 years for buildings and improvements, the minimum lease term or economic useful
life for tenant improvements, and five to seven years for furniture and equipment. Expenditures for ordinary maintenance and
repairs are expensed o operations as they are incurred. Significant renovations and improvements, which improve or exiend
the useful life of assets, are capitalized. The useful lives of amortizable intangible assets are evaluated each reporting period
with any changes in estimated usefu} lives being accounted for over the revised remaining useful life.

Properties also include construction in progress and land held for development, These properties are camied at cost and no
depreciation is recorded. Properties undergoing significant renovations and improvements are considered under development.
All direct and indirect costs related to development activities are capitalized into properties in construction in progress and land
held for development on our condensed consolidated balance sheets. Costs incurred include predevelopment expenditures
directly related to a specific project including, development and construction costs, interesl, insurance and real eslate tax
expense. Indirect development costs include employee salaries and benefits, travel and other related costs that are directly
associated with the development of the property. The capitalization of such expenses ceases when the property is ready for its
intended use, but no later than one year from substantial completion of major construction activity, If we determine that a
project is no longer probable all predevelopment project costs are immediately expensed. Similur costs related to properties
not under development are expensed as incurred.

Our method of calculating capitalized interest is based upon applying our weighted average borrowing rate to that portion of
actual costs incurred. We cease interest cost capitalization when the property is held available for occupancy upon subsiantial
completion of tenant improvements, but no later than one year from the completion of major construction.
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Long Lived Assels

When assets are identified as held for sale, we estimate the sales prices, net of seiling costs, of such assets, Assets that will be
sold together in a single transaction are aggregated in determining if the net sales proceeds of the group are expected to be less
than the net book value of the assets. If, in our opinion, the net sales prices of the assets, which have been identified for sale,
are expected 1o be less than the net book value of the assets, an impairment charge is recorded. An impairment charge may also
be recorded for any asset if it is probable, in our estimation, thar aggregate future cash flows (undiscounted and withou! interest
charges) 1o be generated by the property are less than the carrying value of the property.

We are required 1o make subjective assessments as to whether there are impairments in the value of our real estate properties
and other investments, The assessments have a direct impact on our nel income because recording an impairment charge
results in an immediate charge to expense.

Real Eswate Acquisitions

Upon acquisition of operating real estate properties, we estimate the fair value of acquired tangible assets (consisting of land,
building and improvements), identified intangible assets and liabilities (consisting of above- and below-market leases, in-place
leases and lease origination costs), and assumed debt in accordance with SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. Based on
these estimates, we allocate the purchase price to the applicable assets and liabilities based on their estimated fair value. We
evaluaie the usefu] life of each amortizable intangible asset in each reponing period and account for any changes in such
estimated vseful life over the revised remaining useful life.

Securities

We have investments that consist primarily of equity securities. The equity investments are classified as available-for-sale and
recorded at fair value based on current market prices. Changes in the fair value of the equity investments are included in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss} unless a decrease in fair value is deemed to be other than temporary,

Goodwill

We are required to perform annual, or more frequently in certain circumstances, impairment tests of our goodwill. The
goodwill impairment test is a two-step process that requires us to make decisions in determining appropriate assumptions 10
use in the calculation. The first step consists of estimating the fair value of each reporting unit and comparing those estimated
fair values with the carrying values, which include the allocated goodwill. If the estimated fair value is less than the carrying
value, a second siep is performed to compute the amouni of the impairment by determining an “implied fair value™ of
goodwill. The determination of reporting units (each property is considered a reporting unit) implied fair value of goodwill
requires us to allocate the estimated fair value of the reporting unit 10 its assets and liabilities. Any unallocated fair value
represents the implied fair value of goodwill which is compared 1o its corresponding carrying value.

We cannot predict the occurrence of centain future events that might adversely affect the reponied vilue of goodwill that totaled
approximately $12.5 million at December 31, 2007. Such events include, but are not limited to, strategic decisions made in
response to economic and competitive conditions, the impact of the economic environment on our tenant base, or a materially
negative change in our relationships with significant tenants,

Share Based Compensation and Incentive Awards

We recognize all share-based awards to employees, including grants of stock options, in our financial stalements based on fair
values. Because there is no observable market for our options, management must make critical estimates in determining the
fair value at the grant date. Variations|in the assumptions will have a direct impact on our net income. Critical estimates in
valuing the fair value at the grant date and the assumptions that marketplace participants would use in making estimates of fair
value include: expected volutility, expected dividend yield, risk-free interest rate, involuntary conversion due to change in
control and expected exercise history of similar grants,

In addition, we have employment agreements for three of our executive officers, the employees have the right to an additional
cash bonus at the end of the initial term of those agrcements, or earlier as provided in the agreements, based on the
performance of our stock versus a group of our peers. ln assessing the annual compensation costs related to these future
payments, we are required 1o make critical assumptions and estimates in determining the future payment.

Our estimates of the compensation costs under SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” and these agreements are based
upen assumptions believed to be reasonable, but which arc inherently uncertain and unpredictable. Assumptions may not
always reflect unanticipated events and changes in circumstances may occur,
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issuved SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,”" (SFAS No. 157), which defines fair value,
establishes o framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No.
157 is cffective for fiscal years beginning afier Noverber 15, 2007 and interim periods within thosc fiscal years. The adoption
of this standard is not expected lo have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Asseis and Financial Liabilities”
(SFAS No. 159) which allows entities 10 voluntarily choose, at specified clection dates, to measure many financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value. The clection is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis and is irrevocable. Subsequent to
the adoption of SFAS No. 159, changes in fair value for the particular instruments shall be reported in camnings. Upon initial
adoption, SFAS No. 159 provides entities with a one-time chance Io elect the fair value option for existing cligible items. The
effect of the first measurement to fair value should be reported as a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of
retained eamings in the year the statement is adopted. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007, The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (R), *Business Combinations” (SFAS 141(R)). In summary, SFAS 14 I{R)
requires the acquirer of a business combination to measure at fair value the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any
noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date, with limited exceptions. The standard is effective for fiscal ycars
beginning after December 15, 2008, and is to be applied prospectively, with no earlier adoption permitied. The adoption of this
standard may have an impact on the accounting for certain costs related to our fulure acquisitions.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements™ (SFAS
160) which requires consolidated net income to be reported at amounts that include the amounts atributable to both the parent
and non-controlling interest. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The adoption of
this standard is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.
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Results of Operations

We derive substantially all of our revenues from rents received from tenanis under existing leases on each of our properties.
These revenues include fixed base rents, recoveries of expenses that we have incurred and that we pass through to the
individual tenants and percentage rents that are based on specified percentages of tenants’ revenues, in each case as provided in
the particular leases,

Qur primary cash expenses consist of our property operating expenses, which include real cstate taxes, repairs and
maintenance, management expenses, insurance, utilities and other expenses, gencral and administrative expenses, which
include payroll, office expenses, professional fees and other administrative expenses, and interest expense, primarily on
morigage debt. unsecured senior debt and revolving credit facilities. In addition, we incur substantial non-cash charges for
depreciation and amortization on our propertics. We also capitalize centain expenses, such as taxes and interest related (o
properties under development or redevelopment until the property is ready for its intended use.

Our consolidated results of operations often are not comparable from period to period due to the impact of property
acquisitiens, dispositions, developments and redevelopments. The resulls of operations of any acquired propeny are included
in our financial statements as of the date of its acquisition. A large portion of the change in our statement of operations line
itemns is related to these changes in our property portfolio.

The following summarizes certain Iine:ilems from our audited consolidated statements of operations which we think are
impontant in understanding our operations and/or those items which have significantly changed in 2007 compared to 2006:

For the year ended December 31,

200m 2006 % Chaage
{in thousands)
Total rental revenue $ 246613 § 207717 9.7%
Property operating expenses 4,500 61,161 5.5%
Management and leasing §ervices expenses 963 1,861 -48.3%
Rentat property depreciation and amortization 46,103 40,312 14.4%
General and administrative expenses 25,846 29,757 -13.1%
Investment income 7.329 7.487 -2.1%
Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures - 1.650 -100.0%
Interest expense 66,663 53.983 23.5%
Gain on salc of real estate 2.537 6937 -63.4%
Impairment loss . 1,851 - N/A
Income from discontinued operations 20,597 124,315 -83.4%
Net income 69,385 176,955 -60.8%

Total revenue increased by $21.8 million, or 9.7%, to $246.6 million in 2007. The increase is primarily attributable to the
following:

* anincrease of approximately $20.0 million associated with properties acquired in 2007 and 2006,

* an increase of approximately $2.2 million in same-property revenue due primarily 10 higher rental raies, tenant
expense recovery income and percentage rent income;

* an increase of approximat:ely $1.5 million related 1o the completion of various development/redevelopment
projects, partly offset by a decrease of $300,000 for development/redevelopment projects currently under
construction; '

® a decrease of approximately $1.0 million associated with property management, leasing and accounting services
revenue for a portfolio of Texas properties, which services were terminated in the second quarter of 2007; and




a decreasc of approximately $600,000 in non-retail property revenue.

: Property operating expenses increased by $3.3 million, or 5.5%, to $64.5 million in 2007. The increasc primarily consists of
i the following:
I

an increase of approximately $5.4 million related to properties acquired in 2007 and 2006;

an increase of $300,000 related to the completion of various development/redevelopment properties:

a decrease of approximately $2.0 million in property operating costs partly due to lower common arca
maintenance expense, properly management/maintenance salary, lease termination expense, hurricane expense
and real estalc tax expense partially offset by higher insurance and bad debt provision expense;

a decrease of $200,000 in gencral operating expenses for our non-retail properties; and

a decrease of approximately $700,000 in office-related expense primarily related to closing the operation of
various property management satellite locations.

Management and leasing services expense decreased by $898,000 as a result of no longer providing property management,
leasing and accounting services for the Texas properties.

Rental property depreciation and amortization increased by $5.8 million, or 14.4%, to $46.1 miltion for 2007 from $40.3

million in 2006. The increase tn 2007 was primanly related to the following activily:

$4.9 million related w the operations of properties acquired in 2007 and 2006;

the completion of various developmentredevelopment projects increased depreciation and amortization by
$400,000, partially offset by a decrease of approximately $200,000 of depreciation expense related 10 projects
currenily in various stages of construction; and

same properly depreciation and amortization increased by $700,000 related 1o increased leasing and tenant
improvement activity.

General and administrative expenses decreased by $3.9 million, or 13.1%, to $25.9 million for 2007 from $29.8 million in
2006. The decrease resulted primarily from:

$1.5 million decrease in compensation and employment-related expenses paid in 2006 related to executive
management changes partly offset by higher scverance-related expense paid to former employees in 2007 as well
as higher payroll and payroll-related expenses;

$1.0 million decrease auributable to lower pre-acquisition costs;

a decrease of approximately $700,000 related to lower travel and entertainment expenses;

a decrease of approximaitely $400,000 related to lower income 1axes;

$400,000 decrease in fees reflecting fewer directors and fewer meetings;

a decrease of approximately $200,000 related to lower general office expenses, and

an increase of approximately $300,000 of professional fees mainly related to higher audit fees.

Investment income decreased by $158,000 in 2007, mostly due to a $1.6 million decrease in interest income related 1o lower
cash balances, partially offsct by an increase of $1.4 million of dividend income primarily related to our ownership of 3.8

| million ordinary shares of DIM Vastgoed N.V.

During 2007, we had no transactions related to equity in income from unconsolidated joint ventures as compared to $1.7
million in 2006, which was the result of the sale of a land parcel held in a joint venture in which we had a 50% interest.

Interest expense increased by $12.7 million, or 23.5%, to $66.7 million for 2007 as compared to $54.0 million for 2006. The
increase is primarily attributable to the following:




* anincrease of approximately $7.8 million related to higher tota) unsecured senior debt outstanding;

* an increase of approximately $1.7 million related to the decrease in the amortization of the fair value debt
premium related to two unsecured senjor notes that were paid off in April and August 2006;

* an increase of approximately $2.6 million of interest expense related to lower capilalized interest for completed
development/redevelopment projects;

* an increase of $1.5 million in mortgage interest which is primarily related to properties acquired in 2007 and
2006 partly offset by the repayment of certain mortgages; and

¢ a decrease of approximately $900,000 related 1o lower interest expense associated with our unsecured line of
credit facility.

Gain on sale of real estate in 2007 includes the sale of six land parcels for proceeds of nearly $5.5 million, generating $2.5
million in ne1 realized gains, compared to gains in the same period of 2006 of approximately $6.9 mittion. The 2006 gain was
primarily related o $5.9 million of gain on the sale of six land outparcels in connection with the Texas JV transaction and
approximately $900,000 of gain on three additional outparcels.

As of December 31, 2007, we recognized impairment losses of approximately $1.9 million related to changes in the market
condition of certain properties that are still owned by us. The carrying amounts of the assets were deemed unrecoverable and
were written down to the estimated fair market value,

We sold 14 income-producing propeniés in 2007 and had one land parcei held for sale at December 31, 2007. The $1.7
million operating results of these propefties are reflected under discontinued operations as operations of income-producing
properties sold or held for sale. The sales of these properties produced a gain of $18.9 million in 2007. The 2006 discontinued
operations of $9,1 million reflect a reclassification of operations of properties sold or held for sale. The gain of $106.9 million
in 2006 is related to the sale of the Texas properties and the sale of three other income-producing properties for approximately
$8.2 million.

As a result of the foregoing, net income decreased by $107.6 million, or 60.8%, to $69.4 miltion for 2007 from $177.0 miltion
in 2006.
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Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005.

The following summarizes items from our audited consolidated stalements of operations that we think are ymportant in
understanding our operations and/or those items which significantly changed in 2006 as compared 1o 2005:

For the year ended December 1,

2006 2005 % Change
(in thousands)
Total rental revenue $ 224777 S 201781 11.4%
Property operaling expenses 61,161 51,355 19.1%
Managemeni and leasing services expenses 1,861 229 712.7%
Rental property depreciation and amortization 40,312 33,467 20.5%
General and administrative expenses 29,757 19,734 50.8%
Investmen! income 7,487 7.941 -5.7%
Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures 1,650 - N/A
Interest cxpense 53,983 47,308 14.1%
Gain on sale of real estate 6,937 - N/A
Income from discontinued operations 124,315 36.749 238.3%
Net income 176,955 92,741 90.8%

Total revenue increased by $23.0 million, or 11.4%, 1o $224.8 million in 2006 from $201 8 million in 2005. The increase was
mostly composed of the following:

¢ anincrease of $14.9 million associated with properties acquired in 2006 and 2005,

» an increase of $7.6 million in same propeny revenue due to higher termination fees, expense recovery revenue
and increases in rental rates;

e anincrease of $1.7 million in property management and leasing services revenue as a result of providing property
management and leasing services for the Texas propentics; and

¢ adecrease of approximately $1.2 miltion due 10 various development/redevelopment projecls.

Propenty operating expenses increased by $9.8 million, or 19.1%, 10 $61.2 million for 2006 from $51.4 million in 2005. The
increase in 2006 is largely a result of the following activity:

¢ anincrease of approximately $7.0 million related to properties acquired in 2006 and 2005,

e an increase of approximately $1.7 million in property operating expenses primarily due to higher repairs and
maintenance expenses; and

* the completion of various development/redevelopment projects increased operating expenses by approximately
$1.1 million.

Management and leasing services expense increased by $1.6 million as a result of providing property management, leasing and
accounting services for the Texas properties,

Rentai property depreciation and amontization increased by $6.8 million, or 20.5%, to $40.3 million for 2006 from $33.5
million in 2005. The increase is primarily attributable 10 the following:

& anincrease of $5.6 million related to propenies acquired during 2006 and 2003;

-37.




¢ same property depreciation and amortization increased by approximately $!.1 million related to leasing and
tenant improvement amortization; and

* anincrease of approximately $§00,000 related to the completion of various development/redevelopment projecis.

General and administrative expenses increased by $10.1 million, or 50.8%, 10 $29.8 miilion for 2006 from $19.7 million in
2005. Included in this increase were $5.8 million of employment-related expenses due to our executive management changes,
write-offs of $1.0 million of abandoned pre-acquisition due diligence costs, $1.1 million related to abandoned corporate
transactions that did not materialize, approximately $600,000 in higher fees paid to our non-employee members of the board of
directors, approximately $600,000 of computer and related services, depreciation related to additiona) furniture and fixture
purchases and professional services, approximately $500,000 of additional office expenses and approximately $400,000 in
additional travel and entertainmeni expenses.

Invesument income for 2006 primarily relates 1o an increase in interest inconie related to higher cash balances and $4.3 million
of dividend income primarily related to our ownership of 2.8 million ordinary shares of DIM Vastgoed N.V. The 2005
investment income primarily relates o a gain of $5.2 million on the sale of common and preferred stock of Cedar Shopping
Centers, Inc.

Equity in income from unconsolidated joint venture was $1.7 million for 2006, The income was related to the sale of a land
parcel held in a joint venure in which we had a 50% interest,

Interest expense increased by $6.7 million, or 14.1%, to $54.0 million for 2006 from $47.3 million in 2005. The increase is
mainly attributable to the following:

* anincrease of $13.6 million attribuiable to the issuance in September 2005 of $120.0 million principal amount of
5.375% unsecured senior notes, the issuance in March 2006 of $125.0 millien principal amount of 6.0%
unsecured senior notes and the issuance in August 2006 of $125.0 million principal amount of 6.25% unsecured
senior notes, al) of which-was panially offset by the decrease of $1.9 million in interest on the repayment in
March 2006 of the $50.0' million principal amount of 7.779% unsecured senior notes and the prepayment in
August 2006 of the $75.0 million principal amount of 7.25% unsecured senior notes;

= an increase of $843,000 in interest expense attributable to an increase in the variable interest rate on the $100.0
million notional principal swap of our unsecured notes;

* adecrease of $2.5 million of interest expense related to an increase in capitalized interest related to increased
development/redevelopment activity;

*  adecrease of $2.0 million of interest expense related to the repiyment of certain mortgage notes; and
s adecrease of $1.3 million of interest expense atuributable to a lower outstanding balance on our line of credit.

Gain on sale of real estate was $6.9 million for 2006 as a result of setling nine land parcels, of which six were relaied to the
sale of the Texas properties, for a gross sales price of $18.5 million. There were no land sales during 2005.

During 2006, we sold four income-producing properties in individual transactions and the 29 Texas properties. At December
31, 2006, we had onc property held for sale. The $9.1 million of operating results of these propenies are reflected as
operations of income-producing properties sold or held for sale. The sales of the propenties during 2006 produced an aggregate
gain of $1152 million, The 2005 operations of income-producing properties sold or held for sale of $25.3 million reflects a
reclassification of operations for properties sold during 2005 and 2006 and the one property held for sale a1 December 31, 2006
that qualifies as discontinued operations. We recognized gains of $11.5 million in 2005 related to the sales of propenties during
that year.

As a result of the foregoing, net income increased by $84.3 million, or 90.8 %, to $177.0 million for 2006 from $92.7 million
in 2005. '

Liquidity and Capital Resources '

Due to the nature of our business and strategy, we typicatly generate significant amounts of cash from operations. The cash
generated from operations is primarily paid to our shareholders in the form of dividends. Our status as a REIT requires that we
distribute at least 90% of our REIT lnxab;le income (including net capital gain) each year, as defined in the Code, OQur short-
term liquidity requirements consist primarily of obligations under our capital and operating leases, normal recurring operaling

!
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expenses, regular debt service requirements (including debt service relating to additional or replacement debt, us well as
scheduled debt maturities), recurring company expenditures, such as general and administrative expenses, non-recurring
company cxpenditures (such as tepant improvements and redevelopments) and dividends to common stockholders.
Historically, we have satisfied these requirements principally through cash generated from operations.

Our long-term capital requirements consist primarily of maturities under our long-term debt, development and redevelopment
costs and the costs related to acquisitions. We expect to fund these through a combination of sources which we believe will be
available 1o us, including additional and replacement secured and unsecured borrowings, issuance of additional debt or equity
securilies, capital from institutional partners that desire (o form joint venture relationships relating 10 existing propertics or new
acquisitions, and property dispositions. Overall capital requirements in 2008 will depend upon future acquisition
opportunities, the pace of our disposition program, the level of improvements and redevelopments on existing properties and
the timing and cost of future development.

We anticipate the cash needed to execule our operating and investing stralegies, as well as Lo pay our debt at maturity, will
come from one or more of the following sources:

» cash provided by operations that is not distributed to stockholders,
» unsecured debt financing and/or monigage financings,

*  proceeds from the issuance of new debt or equity securities,

* proceeds of property dispositions, or

» other debt and equity aliematives, including formation of joint ventures, in a manner consistent with our
intention to operate with a conservative debt structure.

It is our intention that we have access to the capital resources necessary 10 operate, expand and develop our business. As a
result, we intend (o operate with, and maintain, a conservative capital structure that will allow us to maintain strong debt
service coverage and fixed-charge coverage ratios as part of our commitment to invesiment-grade debt ratings.

While we believe that cash generated from operations, borrowings under our unsecured revolving credit facilities and our
access to other longer term capital sources will be sufficient to meet our short-term and long-term liquidity requirements, there
are risks inherent in our business, including those risks described in Item 1A - “Risk Factors,” that may have a material adverse
effect on our cash flow, and, therefore, on our ability 1o meet these requirements.

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately $54.5 million of cash held in escrow primarily related to twelve property
dispositions in the fourth quarter. These funds will be used primarily for the repayment of certain debt. In addition, we had
$1.3 million of cash and cash equivalents available. We have 1wo revolving credit facilities with aggregate potential
borrowing limits up to $280.0 million, which we can utilize initially to finance the acquisition of properties and meet other
short-term working capital requirements. One of these facilities with borrowing limits of $275.0 million expires in early 2009.
We have the option to extend this agreement for one year or we may seek alternative financing arrangement in 2008. As of
December 31, 2007, we had $238.4 million available that can be drawn under our revolving credit facilities. Subsequent to
year-end, we have also repaid $37.0 million of outstanding balances under our lines of credit with proceeds from our 2007
dispositions.

Summary of Cash Flows. The following summary discussion of our cash flows is based on the consolidated statements of cash
flows and is not meant to be an all-inclusive discussion of the changes in our cash flows for the periods presented below:
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For the year ended December 31,

Increase
‘ 2007 2006 (Decrease)
(in thousands)
Cash provided by operating activitics $ 107016 $ 94643 0§ 12,373
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities {104,602) 114,813 (219.415)
Cash used in financing activities (1,101) (209.558) 208,457
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 1,313 - 1,313

Net cash from operating activities consists primarily of cash flow generated from our rental propenies (rental and other
revenue less properly operating expenses), plus dividends and interest income received from investments, less general and
administrative expenses and less interest expense. In 2007, our nel cash from operating activilies increased by $12.4 million.
or 13.1%, compared (o 2006 primarily due (o the acquisition and development of additional shopping centers and a decrease in
general and administrative expenses.

Net cush from investing activities consists primarily of proceeds {rom dispositions of properties, repayment of notes
receivables, and sales of securities, less cash paid for acquisitions, development, redevelopment, capitalized expenditures, and
leasing costs, and less cash held in escrow. In 2007, our net cash from investing activities decreased by $219.4 million
compared 10 2006 primarily because we sold fewer rental properties in 2007, partly offset by lower additions 10 and purchases
of remal property and lower additions to'construction in progress.

Net cash from financing activities consists primarily of proceeds from financings and issuance of common stock, less
repayment of debt and dividends paid to stockholders. In 2007, our cash from financing activities increased by $208.5 million

compared 1o 2006 primarily because we paid a special dividend 10 stockholders, repurchased common stock. and repaid senior
debt in 2006. :
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Contractual Commimmenis. The following tables set forth cenain information regarding future contractual obligations,
excluding interest, as of December 31, 2007:

m

Paymenis due by period
Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total | yeur 1-3 years 3-§ years S years
{In thousands)

Mongage notes payable:

Scheduled amonization $ 98.601 s 10986 § 29874 8§ 20638 3 37,103
Balloon payments 298,511 23.104 183,435 79211 12,761
Toal mortgage obligations 397,112 34.090 213.309 99.849 49,854
Unsecured revolving credit facilities 37,000 - 37,000 - -
Unsecured senior notes'” 745,000 - 200,000 25,000 520,000
Capita} lenses - - - - -
Operating lcases 547,253 202.670 180,392 90,524 73,667
Construction commitmenis 8,108 6,908 1,200 - -
Total contractual obligations =% 1,744373 "% 243668 § 631901 5 215373 ~§ 635y

$100 million of the outstanding balance has been swapped 10 a Moating interest rate based on the six-month LIBOR in wrears, plus
0.4375%. The contractual obligations for the unsecured senior notes do not reflect this interest rate swap,

The following table sets forth cenain information regarding future interest obligations on outstanding debt as of December 31,

2007:

)

&)

Poyments due by period
{055 than More than
Total ] year 1.3 vears 3.5 years 5 years
{in thousands)
Mongage notes 3 121,212 s 28,187 H 4737 8 2391 s .797
Unsecured scmior notes™ 293,415 41,632 68,366 63,648 119.769
Unsecured revolving credit facilities'” 1,936 1,850 86 - -
Total interest ohtigations $ 422563  § 71669 § 115769 § 87559 § {142,566

£100 million of the ouwstanding principal balance has been swapped 10 a floating interest rate based on the six-month LIBOR in
arrears, plus 0.4375%. The inicrest obligations for the unsecured senior notes presented sbove assume that the rate that was in
effect at December 31, 2007 remains the same for this interest rate swap.

Interest on the unsecured revolving credit facility is variable; these amounis assume that the weighted average interest rate remains

the same as the raie at December 31, 2007.
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Indebtedness. The {ollowing table sets forth certain information regarding our indebtedness as of December 31, 2007:

. Balance at Muaturity Balance Due
Property ' December 31, 2007 Rate " date of Maturity
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Mortgoge debt .
Pine Island/Ridge Plaza $ 23.336 6.910% 07/01/08 s 23,104
North Pon Shopping Center 3.667 6.650% 02/08/09 3,526
Prosperity Centre 4,728 1.875% 03/01/09 4,137
Shoppes at Ibis , 5.077 6.730% 09/01/09 4680
Tamarac Town Square . 5.816 9.190% 10109 5583
Park Promenade ! 6,019 8.100% o201140 5833
Jonathan's Landing l 2,152 8.050% 05/01 110 2,639
BlufTs Square 9,706 8.740% 0601710 9,401
Kitkman Shoppes 9.166 B.740% 0601410 8.878
Ross Plaza 6,393 8.740% 0601110 6,192
Shoppes of Andros Isle 6.259 7.900% 06/1010 5.800
Boynton Plaza 7.167 8.030% orine 6,902
Poinic Royale 3,409 7.950% 0130 2,502
Shops at Skylake 12,956 7.650% 08/B1/10 11,644
Parkwest Crossing ' 4527 8.100% 09101710 4,352
Spatding Village \ %.146 8.190% 09010 7,932
Charloite Square 3 9.190% QB 2992
Forest Yillage 4273 1.270% 04/01/11 4,044
Boca Village ' 7,900 7.200% 05/01/1) 7.466
MacLand Pointe 5.58) 7.250% B5/0H11 5,268
Pine Ridge Square 6,988 7.020% 0504111 6.580
Sawgrass Promenade 7.900 7.200% 050111 71,466
Prestdential Markets 26,225 7.650% 067011 24,863
Lake Mary Centre ; 23,406 1.250% 1101411 21,973
Lake St. Charles ! 3.691 1.130% 1/t 3461
Belfuir Towne Village , 10,509 7.320% 120111 9,322
Marco Town Center 8,046 6.700% auawz 1,150
Riverside Square : 7.209 9.190% 030112 6,458
Cashmere Comers 4,793 5.880% 11412 4,084
Eastwood o 571 5.880% 110112 4,866
Meadows Shopping Center 6,001 5.870% 1101/12 5113
Sparkleberry Square (Koh!'s) ! 6.242 6.170% 173012 5374
Lutz Lake Crossing 7.500 6.280% 1201412 7.012
Midpoint Center ' 6.552 5.770% 0i0/13 5.458
Buckhead Station 271,155 6.830% 0901/13 23,584
Alofays Village ' 4,032 5.990% HAIN3 1,603
Summeriin Square 2672 6.750% 0201 /14
South Point 8.014 5.720% o4 6,509
Bird Ludlum 7.365 7.680% 02715415 -
Treasure Coast Plaza 31575 8.000% 04/01115 -
Shoppes of Silverlakes [ , 2,085 1.750% 0101/15
Grasstand Crossing ' 5274 71.870% 120116 2,601
Mubleton Crossing ' 3,736 6.850% 08/15/18 1,869
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Batonce a1 Maturity Balance Due

Property December 3}, 2007 Rate'? date al Matuority
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Mortgage debt
Sparkleberry Square (Kroger) ? ; 6.954 6.750% 06730120 [ -
BridgeMill 8,829 7.940% 05/05/2) 3.761
Westport Plaza 4,573 7.490% 08724723 1,221
Chastain Square 3491 6.500% 02128124
Daniel Village 3.816 6.500% 022814 -
Douglas Commons 4,546 6.500% 0228124 -
Fairview Oaks 4,303 6.500% 022824 -
Madison Centre 3498 6.500% 02128124 .
Paulding Commons 5.926 6.500% 02128124 -
Sicgen Village 3.855 6.500% 02128124
Wesley Chapel Crossing 3.044 6.500% 02728724 -
Webster Plaza 1.968 8.070% 08/15724 2,746
Total morigage debt (55 loans outstanding) 5 w7112 1.420% 4.5 $ 297948
(wtd-avg (wid-avg
interest rate} maturity}

U} The rate in cffect on December 31, 2007.
@ Sparkicberry Square is encumbered by two separate morigages.

The weighted average interest rate of the mortgage notes payable at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was 7.42% and 7.26%,
respectively, excluding the effects of the premium adjustment.

Each of the existing mortgage loans is secured by a morigage on one or more of our properties. Certain of the mortgage loans
involving an aggregate principal balance of approximately $74.9 million contain prohibitions on transfers of ownership which
may have been violated by our previous issuances of common stock or in connection with past acquisitions and may be
violated by transactions involving our capital stock in the future. If a violation were established, it could serve as a basis for a
lender 10 accelerate amounts due under the affected mortgage. To date, no lender has notified us that it intends to accelerate its
mortgage. In the event thal the mortgage holders declare defaults under the mongage documents, we will, if required, prepay
the remaining mortgage from existing resources, refinancing of such mortgages, borrowings under our other lines of credit or
other sources of financing. Based on discussions with various lenders, current credit market conditions and other factors, we
believe that the mortgages will not be accelerated. Accordingly, we believe that the violations of these prohibitions will not
have a material adverse impact on our results of operations or financial condition.
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Our outstanding unsecured senior notes at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 consist of the following:
t

1
1
| Bazlance at Malurity Balance Due
Unsecured senjor notes payable : December 31, 2007 Rate " date at Maturity
[ {(in thousands) {in thousands)
[
3.875% senior notes ' ; s 200,000 3875% 04/15/09 $ 200,000
Fair value of $100MM fixed-to-floating interest (315)  G-month Libor + 0.4375% 0471509 (315)
rate swip |
7.84% senior potes ' 25,000 7.340% 01723/12 25,000
5.375% senior notes | 120,000 5375% 10/15/15 120,000
6.00% scnior notes ' 125,000 6.000% 09/15/16 125,000
6.25% senior notes | 125,000 6.250% 01/15/17 125,000
6.00% senior notes | 150,000 6.000% 09/15/17 150,000
Total unsecured senior notes payable : $ 744,685 5674% 7.55 § 744,635
] (wtd-avp (wid-avg
\ interest rate) maturity)

(" The rate in effect on December 31, 200:'1‘.

@ £100.0 million of the outstanding balance has been swapped to 2 floating interest rate based on the six-month LIBOR in arrears, plus
0.4375%. The indicated rate and weighted average rate for the unsecured senior notes do not reflect this interest rate swap.

The weighted average interest rate of the unsecured senior notes at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 was 5.67% and
5.58%, respectively, excluding the effects of the interest rate swap and net premium adjustment. In April 2007, we completed
a private placement of $150.0 million sénior unsecured notes that mature on September 15, 2017. Interest is due semi-annually
on March 15 and September 15 of each year, with the ficst payment paid on September 15, 2007, The notes were issued at a
discount of $151,500 that is being amortized as interest expense over the life of the notes. On December 5, 2007, we
completed an exchange offer of registered notes for the private placement notes.

The indentures under which our unsecured senior notes were issued have several covenants which limit our ability to incur
debt, require us to maintain an unencumbered assets ratjo above a specified level and limit our ability to consolidate, sell, lease,
or convey substantially all of our assets to, or merge with any other entity. These notes have also been guaranteed by most of
our subsidiaries. :

On March 24, 2004, we swapped $100.0 million of the $200.0 million 3.875% senior notes to a fleating interest rate based on
six-month LIBOR in arrears plus 0.4375%. The swap matures April 15, 2009, concurrently with the maturity of the 3.875%

senior notes. l

The foliowing table provides a summary of our unsecured revolving lines of credit balances at December 31, 2007:

Batance at Maturity Batance Due
Revolving credit facilities ! December 31, 2007 Rate ' date at Maturity
. (im thousands) (in thousands)
I
$275MM Wells Fargo Unsecured i $ 37,000 5.000% 01/17/09 $ 37000
$5MM City National Bank Unsecured [ - LIBOR + 1.0% 05/11/07 -
Total revolving credit facilities . s 37,000 $ 37000

M The rate in effect on December 31, 2007,




In January 2006, we amended and restated our unsccured revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks for which Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association is the sole lead arranger and administrative agent. This facility has a maximum principal
amount of $275.0 million and bears interest at our option at (i) LIBOR plus 0.45% to 1.15%, depending on the credit ratings of
our senior unsecured long term noies, or (i) the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5%. The facility is guaranteed by most of our
subsidiaries. Based on our current rating, the LIBOR spread is 0.80%. The facility also includes a competitive bid option
which allows us to conduct auctions among the participating banks for borrowings in an amount not 1o exceed $137.5 million,
a $35.0 million swing line facility for short-term borrowings and a $20.0 million leuer of credit commitment and may, at our
request, be increased up to a total commitment of $400.0 million. The facility cxpires January 17, 2009 with a one-ycar
extension option. In addition, the facility contains customary covenants, including financial covenants regarding debt levels,
total liabilities, interest coverage, EBITDA coverage ratios, unencumbered propertics and permitied investments which may
limit the amount available under the facility. 1f a default under the facility exists, our ability to pay dividends would be limited
to the amount necessary to maintain the Company’s staus as 2 REIT unless the default is a payment default or bankrupicy
event in which case we would be prohibited from paying any dividends. The interest rate in effect at December 31, 2007 and
December 31, 2006 was 5.00% and 5.65%, respectively. The facility also provided collateral for $3.2 million in outstanding
letters of credit.

We also have a $5.0 million unsecured credit facility with City National Bank of Florida, of which there was no outstanding
balance as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006. This facility also provides collateral for $1.4 million in outstanding
letters of credit. In addition, we also have a $55,000 outstanding letter of credit with Bank of America.

As of December 31, 2007, the aggregated availability under the both credit facilities was approximately $238.4 million, net of
ourstanding balances and letters of credit.

We may not have sufficient funds on hand to repay balloon amounts on our indebtedness at maturity. Therefore, we expect to
refinance this indebtedness either through additional mortgage financings secured by individual properties or groups of
properties, by unsecured private or public debt offerings or by additional equity offerings. Our results of operalions could be
affected if the cost of new debl is greater or lesser than the cost of the maturing debt. [If new financing is not available, we
could be required (o sell assets and our business would be adversely affected.

Equity. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we issued 412,375 shares of our common stock pursuant to the exercise of
stock options at prices ranging from $10.00 10 $27.28 per share. No shares were purchased (rom the Dividend Reinvestment
and Stock Purchase Plan which was suspended in March 2006, with approximately 5.4 miltion shares still available for sale.

Future Capital Requirements. We believe, based on currently proposed plans and assumptions relating to our operations, thal
our existing financial arrangements, together with cash generated from our operations, will be sufficient to satisfy our cash
requirements for a period of at least twelve months. In the event that our plans change, our assumptions change or prove to be
inaccurate or cash flows from operations or amounts available under existing financing arrangements prove o be insufficient
to fund our expansion and development efforts or 10 the exient we discover suitable acquisition targets the purchase price of
which exceeds our existing liquidity, we would be required to seek additional sources of financing. There can be no assurance
that any additional financing will be available on acceptable terms or at all, and any future equity financing could be dilutive 10
existing stockholders. If adequate funds are not available, our business operations could be materially adversely alfecied.

Distributions. We believe that we currently qualify, and intend 1o continue 1o qualify in the future, as a REIT under the
tnternal Revenue Code. As a REIT, we are allowed 1o reduce taxable income by all or a portion of our distributions to
stockholders. As distributions have exceeded taxable income, no provision for federal income taxes has been made. While we
intend to continue to pay dividends to our stockholders, we also will reserve such amounts of cash flow as we consider
necessary for the proper maintenance and improvement of our real estate and other corporate purposes while still maintaining
our qualification as a REIT. Our cash distributions for the year ended December 31, 2007 were $88.6 million.
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Off-Balance-Sheet Arvangements

From time 10 time, we may have off-balance-sheet joint ventures and other unconsolidated arrangements with varying
structures. As of December 31, 2007 we had no unconsolidated joint ventures.

We consolidate entities in which we own less than a 100% equity interest if we have a controlling interest or are the primary
beneficiary in a variable-interest entity, as defined in Financial Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entiries.

Letters of Credit. As of December 31, 2007, we have pledged letters of credit for $4.7 million as additional security for certain
propenty matters. The letters of credit afe secured by our revolving credit facilities.

1
Construction Commitments. We have outstanding obligations as of December 31, 2007 to fund $8.1 million of construction
commitments, based on curtent plans and estimates, in order to complete current development and redevelopment projects.
These obligations, comprised principally of construction contracts, are generally due as the work is performed and are expected
to be financed by our available credit faicilities.

Operating Lease Obligations. Centain of our properties are subject (o a ground lease, which are accounted for as operaling
leases and have annual obligations of approximately $100,000.

Non-Recourse Debt Guarantees. Under certain of our and joint venture non-recourse mortgage loans, we could, under certain
circumstances, be responsible for poriions of the mortgage indebtedness in connection with certain customary non-recourse
carve-out provisions, such as environniental conditions, misuse of funds and material misrepresentations. In management’s
judgment, it would be extremely unlikely for us to incur any malerial liability under these guarantees that will have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, or cash flow.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to numerous environmental laws and regulations. The operation of dry cleaning facilities or gas stations at our
shopping centers is the principal environmental concern. We require that the tenants who operate these facilities do so in
material compliance with current laws and regulations and we have established procedures to monitor their operations.
Additionally, we use all legal means 10 cause tenants 10 remove dry cleaning plants from our shopping centers. Where
available, we have applied and been accepted into state sponsored environmentat programs. Several properties in our portfolio
will require or are currently undergoing varying levels of environmental remediation. However, we have environmemal
insurance policies covering mosl of our properties.

We believe that the ultimate disposition of currently known environmental matters will not have a material effect on our
financial position, liquidity or operatioris.

Inflation and Recession Considerations

Most of our leases contain provisions designed to partially mitigate the adverse impact of inflation. Most of our leases require
the tenant to pay its share of operating cxpenses, including common area maintenance, real estate taxes and insurance, thereby
reducing our exposure 1o increases in costs and operating expenses resulting from inflation. A small number of our leases also
include clauses enabling us to receive percentage rents based on a tenant’s gross sales above predetermined levels, which sales
generally increase as prices rise, or escalation clauses which are typically related to increases in the Consumer Price Index or
similar inflation indices.

Our financial results are affected by general economic conditions in the markets in which our properties are located. An
economic recession, or other adverse changes in general or local economic conditions, could resull in the inability of some of
our existing tenants to meel their lease obligations and could otherwise adversely affect our ability to artract or retain tenants.
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ITEM 7A. = QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

Interest Rate Risk, The primary market risk to which we have exposure is interest rate risk. Changes in interest rates can affect
our net income and cash flows. As changes in market conditions occur and interest rates increase or decrease, interest expense
on the variable component of our debt will move in the same direction. We intend to wtilize vanable rate indebtedness
available under our unsecured revolving credit facilities in order to initially fund future acquisitions, development costs and
other operating needs. With respect to our fixed rate mortgage notes and senior unsecured notes, changes in interest rates
generally do not affect our interest expense as these notes are at fixed rates for extended terms. Because we have the intent 1o
hold our existing fixed-rate debt either to maturity or until the sale of the associated property, these fixed-tate notes pose an
interest rate risk to our results of operations and our working capital position only upon the refinancing of that indebtedness.
Our possible risk is from increases in long-term interest rates that may occur as this may increase our cost of refinancing
maturing fixed-rate debt. I[n addition, we may incur prepayment penalties or defeasance costs when prepaying or defeasing
fixed-rate debt.

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately $137.0 million of outstanding floating rate debt, including $100.0 million of
fixed rate borrowings that we have converted to floating rate borrowings through the use of hedging agreements. We do not
believe that the interest rate risk represented by our floating rate debt is material as of December 31, 2007, in relation te our
$1.3 billion of outstanding debt, $2.2 billion of total assets and $1.7 billion total equity market capitalization as of that date.

If interest rates on our variable rate debt increase by 1%, the increase in annual interest expense on our variable rate debt would
decrease future earnings and cash flows by approximately $1.4 million. If interest rates on our variable rate debt decrease by
1%, the decrease in interest expense on our variable rate debt would increase future eamings and cash flows by approximately
$1.4 million. This assumes that the amount outstanding under our variable rate debt remains at approximately $137.0 million
(including the $100.0 million of fixed rate debt converted to floating rate debt through the use of hedging agreements), the
balance as of December 31, 2007,

The fair value of our fixed-rate debt is $1.031 billion, which includes the mortgage notes and fixed-rate portion of the senior
unsecured notes payable {excluding the unameortized premivm and the $100.0 miltion of fixed-rate debt converted to floating-
rate debt through maturity). If interest rates increase by 1%, the fair value of our total fixed-rate debt would decrease by
approximately $49.0 million. If interest rates decrease by 1%, the fair value of our total cutstanding debt would increase by
approximatety $52.6 million. This assumes that our total outstanding fixed-raie debt remains at $1.042 billion, the balance as
of December 31, 2007.

Hedging. To manage, or hedge, our exposure 1o interest rate risk, we follow established risk management policies and
procedures, including the use of a variety of derivative financial instruments. We do not enter into derivative instruments for
speculative purposes. We require that the hedges or derivative financial instruments be effective in managing the interest rate
risk exposure that they are designated to hedge. This effectiveness is essential to qualify for hedge accounting. Hedges that
meet these hedging criteria are formally designated as such at the inception of the contract. When the terms of an underlying
transaction are modified, or when the underlying hedged item ceases to exist, resulting in some ineffectiveness, the change in
the fair value of the derivative instrument will be included in earnings. Additionally, any derivative instrument used for risk
management that becomes ineffective is marked-to-market each period and would be charged to operations.

We are exposed to credit risk, in the event of non-performance by the counter-parties to the hedge agreements. We believe that
we mitigate our credit risk by entering into these agreements with major financial institutions. Net interest differentials to be
paid or received under a swap contract and/or collar agreement are included in interest expense as incurred or earned,

[n 2006, we entered inio an aggregate notional amount of $85.0 million of treasury locks. The treasury locks were executed to
hedge the benchmark interest rate associated with forecasted interest payments relating to an anticipated issuance of fixed-rate
borrowings. The treasury locks were terminated in connection with the issuance of $150.0 million of unsecured senior notes in
April 2007. The realized loss on these hedging relationships has been deferred in other comprehensive income and will be
reclassified against carnings over the term of the debt as an adjustment to interest.

During 2004, concurrent with the issuance of $200 million unsecured senior notes, we entered into 2 $100.0 million notional
principal variable rate interest swap with an estimated fair value of $315.000 as of December 31, 2007. This swap converted
fixed rate debt to varizble rate based on the six-month LIBOR in arrears plus 0.4375%, and matures April 15, 2009.
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The estimated fair value of our derivative financial instruments has been determined using available market information and
appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is necessarily required in interpreting market data to
develop the estimates of fair value. Accordmgly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts
that we could realize in a current markel exchange. The use of different market assumptions or estimation methodologies may
have a material effect on the estimated fair value,

Other Market Risks |

As of December 31, 2007, we had no material exposure to any other market risks (including foreign currency exchange risk,
commodity price risk or equity price risk),
1

In making this detcrmination and for purposes of the Securitics and Exchange Commission's market risk disclosure
requirements, we have estimated the fair value of our financial instruments at December 31, 2007 based on pertinent
information available to management as of that date. Although management is not aware of any factors that would significantly
affect the estimated fair value amounts as of December 31, 2007, future estimates of fair value and the amounts which may be
paid or realized in the future may differ sligniﬁcantly from amounts presented.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STA’I‘E;MENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements and supplementary data required by Regulation S-X are included in this Form 10-K commencing on
page F-1. |

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE i

None. |

ITEM9A.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

i
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

1

Under the supervision and with the participation of our managemenl, including the principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as of
December 31, 2007, the end of the pcrio;d covered by this report. Bascd on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer concluded as of the December 31, 2007 that our disclosure controts and procedures were effective at
the reasonable assurance level such that the information relating to us and our consclidated subsidiaries, required to be
disclosed in our Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) reports (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including our principal executive ofﬁcc:r and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure, )

H
Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The report of our management regarding internal control over financial reporting is set forth on page F-1 of ltem & of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption “Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting” and
incorporated herein by reference. \

Attestation Report of Independent Reglstered Public Accounting Firm

The report of our independent rcg1slercd public accounting firm regarding our internal contro] over fnancial reporting is set
forth in page F-2 of [tem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption “Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm” and incorporated herein by reference.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal comrol over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2007, that have
materizlly affected, or are reasonably llkely to matenially affect, our imernal contro! over financial reporting.

]
ITEM 9B, OTHER INFORMATION

None. |
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PART 11

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days afier the end of our fiscal year
covered by this Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy stalement to be filed within 120 days afier the end of our fiscal year
covered by this Form 10-K.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATD STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2007

Number of securities
Number of securities to Weighted-average remaining available for
. . . future issuance under
be issued upon exercise of exercise price of .
Plan category i . . . equily compensation
outstanding options, cutstanding options, .
. X plans (excluding
warrants and rights warrants and rights ryr .
securities reflected in
column {a)}
) ) ©
Equity compensation plans
approved by security
holders™ 1,959.943 $23.69 3,669,716
Equity compensation plans
not approved by security
|rolders” 364,660 $24.70 -
Total 2,324,603 $23.85 3.669.716

M ncludes information related to our 1995 Stock Option Plan, 2000 Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, 1989 IRT Stock Option
Plan and 1998 IRT Long-Term Incentive Plan.

The other information required by this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement to be filed within
120 days after the end of our fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Incorporated by reference from cur definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days after the end our fiscal year covered
by this Form 10-K.

ITEM 4. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days after the end our fiscal year covered
by this Form 10-K.
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ITEM 15.
(a)

(b)

EXHIBIT NO.

3.1
3.2
4.1
4.2
43
44
45
46
4.7
4.8
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PART IV

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following consolidated financial information is included as a separate section of this Form 10-K:

1.

Exhibits: The followingf exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this annual report.

Financial Stateménts:

H Page
|
Management Repiorl on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting F-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on
Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting F-2
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-3
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December
31,2007, 20(}6 and 2005 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended
December 31! 2007, 2006 and 2005 -6
Consolidated Staiements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 F-7
|
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December
31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 F-8-F9
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements F-10
Financial statement schedules required to be filed
Schedule 111 4 Real Estate Investments and Accumulated
Depreciation 5-1-54
Schedule IV -% Morigage Loans on Real Estate S-5

Schedules 1 and V are not required to be filed.

DESCRIPTION '

Composite Chancr of the Company (Exhibit 3.1) (1)

Amended and Reslnled Bylaws of the Company (Exhibit 3.2) (2)

Indenture dated 'November 9, 1995 between the Company, as successor-by-merger to IRT
Property Company, and SunTrust Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4(c)) (3)

Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated March 26, 1996, between the Company, as successor-by-
merger to IRT Property Company, and SunTrust Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4) (4)

Supplemental lndcnture No. 2, dated August 15, 1997, between the Company, as successor-by-
merger ta IRT Property Company, and SunTrust Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4) (3)

Supplemental Indenture No. 3, dated September 9, 1998, between the Company, as successor-
by-merger to IRT Property Company, and SunTrust Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.1) {6)

Supplemental Indenture No. 4, dated November 1, 1999, between the Company, as successor-by-
merger 10 IRT Property Company, and SunTrust Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.1) (7)

Supplemental Indenture No. 5, dated February 12, 2003, between the Company and SunTrust
Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.1) (8)

Supplemental Indenture No. 6, dated April 23, 2004, between the Company and SunTrust Bank,
as Trustee (Exhibit 4.2) (9)

Supplemental Indenture No. 7, dated May 20, 2005, between the Company and SunTrust Bank,
as Trusiee (Exhibit 4.1) (10)

Indenture, dated' September 9, 1998, between the Company, as successor-by-merger lo IRT
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EXHIBIT NO.

DESCRIPTION

4.10
4.11
4,12
4.13
4.14
4.15

4.16

4.18
4.19
4.20
10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7

0.8
10.9

10.10
10.11
10.12

10,13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

Property Company, and SunTrust Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.2) (6)

Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated September 9, 1998, between the Company, as successor-
by-merger to IRT Property Company, and SunTrust Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.3) (6)

Supplemental Indenture No. 2, dated November 1, 1999. between the Company, as successor-by-
merger to IRT Property Company, and SunTrust Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.5) (7)

Supplemental Indenture No. 3, dated February 12, 2003, between the Company and SunTrust
Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.2) (8)

Supplemental Indenture No. 4, dated March 26, 2004, between the Company and SunTrust
Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.1} (11)

Supplemental Indenture No. 5, dated April 23, 2004, between the Company and SunTrust Bank,
as Trustee (Exhibit 4.1) (9)

Supplementa) [ndenture No. 6 dated May 20, 2005, between the Company and SunTrust Bank,
as Trustee (Exhibit 4.23(10)

Supplemental Indenture No. 7 dated September 20, 2005, between the Company and SunTrust
Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.1)(12}

Supplemental Indenture No. 8 dated December 30, 2003, between the Company and SunTrust
Bank, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.1)(13)

Supplemental Indenture No. 9 dated March 10, 2006 between the Company and SunTrust Bank,
as Trustee (Exhibit 4.1} (14)

Supplemental Indenture No. 10 dated August 18, 2006 between the Company and SunTrust
Bank, as Trustee {Exhibit 4.1) {15)

Supplemental [ndenture No. 11 dated April 18, 2007, between the Company and U.S. Bank
National Association, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.1} (27)

Form of Indemnification Agreemem (Exhibit 10.1)(16)

1995 Siock Option Plan, as amended (17)*

Amended and Restated 2000 Executive Incentive Plan (Annex A) (32)*

Form of Stock Option Agreement for stock options awarded under the Amended and Restated
2000 Executive Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.3) (19)*

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for restricted stock awarded under the Amended and
Restated 2000 Executive Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.4) (19)*

IRT 1989 Stock Option Plan, assumed by the Company (20)*

IRT 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan, assumed by the Company (21)*

2004 Employee Stock Purchase Pian (Annex B) (18)*

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of January I, 1996 by and among the Company, Chaim
Katzman, Gazit Holdings, Inc., Dan Overseas Lid., Globe Reit Investments, L., Eli
Makavy, Doron Valero and David Wulkan, as amended. (Exhibit 10.6, Amendment No. 3)
(22)

Stock Exchange Agreement dated May 18, 2001 among the Company, First Capital Realty Inc.
and First Capital America Holding Corp (23)

Use Agreement, regarding use of facilities, by and between Gazit (1995), Inc. and the Company,
dated January |, 1996. (Exhibit 10.15, Amendmem No. 1) (22)

Subscription Agreement, dated October 4, 2000, made by Alony Hetz Propenties & Investments,
Lid. (Exhibit 10.13) (24)

Stockholders Agreement, dated October 4, 2000, among the Company, Alony Hetz Properties &
Investments, Lid.. Gazit-Globe (1982), Lud., M.G.N. (USA), Inc. and Gazit (1993), Inc.
{Exhibit 10.14) (24)

First Amendment to Stockholders Agreement, dated December 19, 2001, among the Company
Alony Hetz Properties & Investments, Ltd., Gazit-Globe (1982), Ltd., M.G.N. {(USA), Inc.
and Gazi1 (1995), Inc. (Exhibit 10.15) (24)

Second Amendment to Stockholders Agreement, dated October 28, 2002, among the Company
Alony Hetz Properties & Investments, Lid., Gazit-Globe (1982), Ld.. M.G.N. (USA), Inc.
and Gazit (1995), Inc, (25)

Third Amendment 1o Stockholders Agreement, dated May 23, 2003, among the Company Alony
Hetz Properties & Invesiments, Lid., Gazil-Globe (1982), Lid., M.G.N. (USA), Inc. and Gazit
(1995), Inc. (9)

Chairman Compensation Agreement effective as of January 1, 2007 between the Company and
Chaim Katzman (Exhibit 10.1) (26)*

First Amended and Restated Employment Agreement effective as of September 15, 2006
between the Company and Jeffrey S. Olson (Exhibit 10.2) (26)*
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EXHIBIT NO. DESCRIPTION

10.19 Employment Agreement effective as of November 135, 2006 between the Company and Gregory
R. Andrews (Exhibit 10.3) (26)*

10.20 Employment Agreement, effective as of November 6, 2006 between the Company and Jeffrey S.
Stauffer (Exhibit 10.4) (26)*

10.21 Fourth Amendment to Stockholders Agreement, dated June 23, 2004, among the Company,
Alony-Hetz Propcrucs & Investments, Ltd., Gazit-Globe, Lid., MGN (USA), Inc. and Gazit
{1995), Inc.

10.22 Registration Rights Agreement, dated Ociober 28, 2002, between the Company and certain
Purchasers (Exhibit 99.3) (28)

10.23 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of January 17, 2006, among the Company,

each of the financial institutions initially a sigmatory thereto, Wachovia Bank National
Association and SunTrust Bank, as Co-Syndication Agents, PNC Bank National Association
and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Co-Documentation Agents, Bank of America, N.A.,
Harris Nesbitt (Bank Of Monitreal) and Branch Banking and Trust Company, as Managing
Agents, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association as Administrative Agent and as Sole
Lead Arranger. (Exhibit 10.1)(29)

10.24 Clarification Agreement and Protocol, dated as of January 1, 2004, among the Company and
Gazit-Globe (1982), Ltd. (Exhibit 10.2) (30

10.25 Equity One, inc. Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan. (Exhibit 10.1) (31)*

10.26 Consulting Agreement effective as of January 1, 2007 betwecn the Company and Doron Valero
(Exhibit 10.6) (26)

12.1 Ratios of Eamings to Fixed Charges

211 List of Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

3 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

3.2 Centification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant 10 Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

32,1 Centification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to I8 U.S.C. 1350,

as created by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*Identifies employee agreements, managemenl contracts, compensatory plans or other arrangements.

(m
@
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
M

®
9

Previously filed as an exhibil 1o our Quancrly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002, and incorporated by reference
herein.

Previously filed as an exhibit o our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2003, and incorporatcd by
reference herein.

Previously filed by IRT Property Company as an exhibit to [RT's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31,
1995, and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed by IRT Praperty Company as an exhlbll to IRT's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 26, 1996, and
incorporated by reference herein,

Previously filed by IRT Property Company as an exhibit to IRT's Current Report on Form B-K filed on Auwgust 13, 1997, and
incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed by IRT Property Company as an exhibit to IRT's Current Repont on Form §-K filed on September 15, 1998, and
incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed by IRT Property C0n’1pany as an exhibit to JRT's Cument Report on Form 8-K filed on November 12, 1999, and
incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed as an exhibit 16 our Current Repon on Form 8-K filed on February 20, 2003, and incorporated by reference herein.

Previously filed as an exhibit to our Quanerly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2004, and incorporated by reference
herein.

(10) Previously filed as an exhibit 1o our Qbarterly Report on Form 10-Q For the period ended June 30, 2005, and incorporated by reference

herein.

(1) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 31, 2004, and incorporated by reference herein,
{12) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Ctl;rrcnt Report on Form 8-K filed on September 20, 2005, and incorporated by reference herein.
(13} Previously filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K on March 3, 2006. and incorporated by reference herein.

(14) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K on March |3, 2006, and incorporated by reference herein.

(15) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 22, 2006, and incorporated by reference herein.
{16) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form [0-K on March 16, 2005, and incorporated by reference herein.
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{17) Previously filed with our definitive Proxy Staiement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on June 30, 1999, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(18) Previously filed with our definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Mceting of Stockholders held on May 21, 2004, snd incorporated
herein by reference.

(19) Previcusly fited with our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 18, 2005, and incorporated by reference hercin,

(20) Previously filed by IRT Property Company as an exhibit to IRT's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 22, 1989, and
incorporated herein by reference.

(21) Previously filed by IRT Property Company with IRT's definitive Proxy Statement for the Annuadl Mecting of Stockholders held on May
22, 1998, and incorporaled hertin by reference.

(22) Previously filed with our Regisiration Staternent on Form S-11, as amended {Registration No, 333-3397), and incorporated herein by
reference.

(23) Previously filed as Appendix A to our definitive Proxy Statement for the Special Meeting of Siockholders held on September 6, 200
and incorporated herein by reference.

(24) Previously filed with our Annual Report Form 10-K/A filed on March 18, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference,

(25) Previously filed as Exhibit 10.} to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2002, and incorporated by
reference herein.

£26) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Quanterly Report on Form 10-Q on November 9, 2006, and incorporated by refercnce herein,
{27} Previously filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 20, 2007, and incorporated by reference herein.
(28) Previously filed as Exhibit 2,1 to our Current Repont on Form 8-K filed an October 30, 2002, and incorporated by refercnee herein,
(29) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 20. 2006, and incorporated by reference herein.
(30) Previously filed as an exhibit 10 our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 16, 2004, and incorporated by reference herein.
(31) Previously filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Ferm 8-K filed on July 7. 2005, and incerporated by reference herein.

(32) Previously filed as Annex A 1o our definilive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on June 4, 2007 and
incorporaied herein by reference,
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! SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report 1o be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 22, 2008 . EQUITY ONE, INC.

By: fsf Jeffrey S. Olson
Jeffrey S. Olson
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Sec::urilies Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities, and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/s/ Jeffrey S. Qlson President and Chief Executive Officer February 22, 2008
Jeffrey S. Olson ~ (Principal Executive Officer
and Director)
s/ Gregory R. Andrews Executive Vice President and February 22, 2008
Gregory R. Andrews - Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Accounting and
Financial Officer)

/s/ Chaim Katzman Chairman of the Board February 22, 2008
Chaim Kalzman

/s! Noam Ben-Ozer Director February 22, 2008
Noam Ben-Ozer '

fsf James S. Cassel Director February 22, 2008
James S. Cassel

/s/ Cynthia Cohen Director February 22, 2008
Cynthia Cohen !

fs/ Neil Flanzraich Director February 22, 2008
Neil Flanzraich

/s/ Nathan Hetz f Director February 22, 2008
Nathan Hetz

fs/ Peter Linneman Director February 22, 2008
Peter Linneman

/s! Dori ). Segal Director February 22, 2008
Dori J. Sepal !
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Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of Equity One, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the Company's principal executive
and principal financial officers and effected by the Company’s board of directors, management and other personnel,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting, which requires the use of certain
estimates and judgments, and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and includes thase policies and procedures that:

s  Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

e Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and

e Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Reasonable assurance is based on the premise that the cost of intemal controls should not exceed the benefits
derived. Reasonable assurance includes the understanding that there is a remote likelihood that material
misstatements will not be prevented or detected in a timely manner, Because of its inherent limitations, internal
control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.

The Company’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2007. In making this assessment, the Company’s management used the criteria set forth by the
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committec of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Based on this assessment, management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2007, the
Company’s intemal control over financial reporting is effective.

Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued a report on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. This report appears on the following page of this Annual Report.

F-1




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Equity One, Inc.

{
We have audited Equity One: Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Commiliee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Equity One, In¢c. and subsidiaries’
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial rcporung, and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managemem Report
on Intemal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

1
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Those standm‘ds require that we plan and perform the audil to oblain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit
included obtaining an undemandmg of internal contro} over {inancial reporting, assessing the nisk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluatmg the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a n:asonablc basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting pnnclples. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes these policies and procedurcs that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) prowde reasonable
assurance that transactions arc recorded as necessary te permil preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

[}
Because of its inherent limitations, internal controi over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements,
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. .
|
In our opinion, Equity One, In¢. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria,

We also have audited, in accorglancc with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balancc sheets of Equity One, Inc. and subsidiarics as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and
the related consolidated statcmenls of operations, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 of Equity One, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report
dated February 21, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

‘ /s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Certified Public Accountants
February 21, 2008
Miarni, Florida

]
|
|
|
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Equity One, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Equily One, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December
31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, stockholders'
equily, and cash flows for each of the three years in ihe period ended December 31, 2007. Our audits also included
the financial statement schedules listed in the Index at em 15(¢a). These financial statements ‘and schedules are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial
statements and schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a tesl basis,
evidence supporting the amounis and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred \o above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Equity One, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results
of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial siatement
schedules, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein,

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), "Share-
Based Payment,” applying the modified prospective method at the beginning of fiscal year 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), Equity One, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based
on crileria established in lInternal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 21, 2008 expressed an unqualified
opinion thercon.

/s/ Emst & Young LLP
Certified Public Accountants
February 21, 2008
Miami, Flerida




EQUITY ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2007 and 2006

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

ASSETS
PROPERTIES:
Income producing
Less: accumulated depreciation
Income-producing properties. net

Construction in progress and land held for development
Propertics heid for sale
Properties, net

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash held in escrow

Accounts and other receivables. net
Securitics
Goodwill
Other asseis

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Notes Payable
Mortgage notes payoble
Unsecured revolving credit lacilities
Unsecured senior notes payable

Unamortized pwnu'urnfdiscounl on notes payable
Total notes payable

Other liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Tenant security deposits
Other liabilities
Tolal liahbilities
Minority interest

COMMIITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 pa.:r value — 10,000 shares authorized bul unissued
Common stock, $0.01 par valuc - 100,000 shares authorized, 73,300 and
72,756 shares issucd and outstonding for 2007 and 2006, respectively

Additional paid-in capital
Relained eamings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total stockholders’ equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AN_'D STOCKHOQLDERS' EQUITY

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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December 31, December 31,
2007 2006
$ 2047993  § 1,896,343
(172.651) {144,825)
1.875.342 1.752.018
81,574 113,340
323 20,353
1,957,239 1,885,711
1,313 -
54,460 1.547
14,148 18,967
72299 75,102
12,496 13,092
62.429 75,356
3 2,174,384 s 2,069,775
$ 397,012 s 391,647
317.000 76,500
744,685 591,187
1.178,797 1,059.334
10,042 10,322
1.188.839 1,069,656
30.499 16,565
9,685 9,622
28,440 27,265
1,257,463 1,143,108
989 989
733 728
906.174 895,247
17,987 37,201
(8.962) (7.498)
915,932 925,678
s 2,174,384 $ 2,069,775
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EQUITY ONE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2007 2006 2005
REVENUE:
Minimum rents $ 189.727 § 171602 $ 157,136
Expense recoveries 53,523 49076 42,461
Percentage rent 2,200 2,032 1,686
Management and leasing services 1,163 2,067 498
Total revenue 246,613 2247177 201,781
COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Property operating 64,500 61.161 51,355
Management and leasing services 963 1,861 229
Rental property depreciation and amortization 46,103 40,312 331,467
General and administrative 25.846 29,757 19.734
Totaf costs and expenscs 137,412 133,091 104,785
INCOME BEFORE OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES, MINORITY
INTEREST AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 109,201 91.686 96.996
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE;
Investment income 7,329 7487 7.94)
Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures - 1,650 -
Qther income 310 389 -
Interest expense (66,663) (53,983) (47.308)
Amonization of deferred financing fees (1.680) (1.485) {1.449)
Gain on the sale of real estate 2537 6,937 -
Loss on the sale of fixed assets (28)) - -
Gain on extinguishment of debt - 165 .
Impainment loss (1,851) - -
INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST AND DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS 48,900 52,846 56,180
Minority Interest 112} (206} (188)
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 48,788 52,640 55,992
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:
Operations of income-producing propenies sold or held for sale 1,712 9,147 25,289
Gain on disposal of income-producing propenics 18,885 115,168 11,460
Income lrom discontinued operations 20,597 124,315 36.749
NET INCOME 5 69385 § 176955 § 92,741
EARNINGS PER SHARE:
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Income from continuing operations s 067 § 07t § 0.76
Income from discontinued operations 0.28 1.69 0.50
-5 0.95 5 240 S 1.26
Number of Shares Used in Computing Basic Earnings per Share 73—% 73,598 73,840
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Income from continuing operations s 067 3 07t § 0.75
Income from discontinued operations 0.28 1.67 0.49
Toual diluted earnings per share 3 095 § 238 5 1.24
Number of Shares Used in Computing Diluted Eamings per Share 73,362 74,324 74,790

See accompanying notes fo the consolidated (inancial stalements.
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EQUITY ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
"CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
! YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

{In thousands)
)
! 2007 2006 2005
NET INCOME : $ 69,385 $ 176,955 ) 92,741
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Net unrealized holding (loss)/gain on sccurities available for sale (1,386) (9,780) 4330
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 75 (2.574) .
Reclassification adjustment for gain/(loss} on the sale of securities and
cash flow hedges included in net income 2322 29 (5.559)
Net realized gainf(toss) on settlerrient of interest rate contracts (2,498) 1,543 -
Net amortization of interest rate cbmracts 2] (120) -
Other comprehensive income adjuslmgnt {1,464) {10,902) {1,229)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 67921 $ 166,053 $ 91,512

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
|
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EQUITY ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005
{In tbousands, except per share data)

Notes
Accumulated Unamortized Receivable
Additional Ciber Restricted from the Total
Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Stock Lssuance of Stockholders'
Common Stock Capital Earnings Loss Compensatlon  Common Stock Equity

BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2005 $ 36 8 220616 § 17480 % 4631 § (11928 3§ (150) § 9313388
Issuance of common stock 18 34,943 - - 2,236 . 37197
Stock issusnce cost - {181) - - - . (1581}
Repayments of notes receivable from
issvance of common stock - - - - - 85 85
Net income - - 92,7141 - - - 92,741
Dividends paid . - (87.272) - - B (81.272)
Onher comprehensive income adjusiment - . - (1.229) - . (1.229)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2005 754 955,378 22,950 3,404 (9,692) 65 972,729
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle (5 (5.188) . - 9.692 - 4,499
Issuance of common siock 9 8074 - - - - §.083
Stack issuance cosl - (69) - - . (3]
Repurchase of common siock (30 (69.073) - - . (69.103)
Share-based compensation expense - 6,125 - - - 6,125
Repoyments of notes receivable from

issuance of common stock - - - - 63 65
Net income . . 176,955 - . 176,955
Dividends paid - - (162,704) - - - (162,704)
Other comprehensive income adjustment - - - {10,902) - (10.902)
BALANCE. DECEMBER 31, 2006 728 895,247 37,20t (7.498) - - 925,678
Issuance of common stock 5 3,877 - - - - 3,882
Share-based compensation ¢xpense - 7050 - - - - 7050
Net income . - 69385 - - - 69,385
Dividends paid - - (88.599) - - - (88.599)
Other comprehensive income adjustment . - - {1.464) - - (1.464)
BALANCE. DECEMBEER 31, 2007 $ 733§ 906,174 $ 17987 8§ (3.862) § H - 3 915.932

See accornpanying notes (o the condensed consolidated findncin) statements.




EQUITY ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2007, 2006 snd 2005

(In thousandsd}

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments 1o reconcile net income 10 net cash provided hy
opcraling uctivities:
Strsight ling tent adjusiment
Amortization of shove/(below) market lease intangibles
Pruvision for fosses on nccuun::s receivable
Amonization of premivm on notes payable
Amontization of deferred finuncing fees
Rentol praperty deprecistion and wnertizotion
Share-based compensation
Amarization of derivatives
Gain an dispasual of real estate und income-producing properties
Impairmem loss
Luss on catinguishment of debr
Loss on sale of fixed assels
Lossf(gain) on sale of securities
Equily in intome of unconsolidated joint ventures
Operuting distributions from unconsolidated joint venlures
Minory inerest
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts und vther receivables
Other asscis
Accounus paynble und uccrued cxpenses
Tenant security deposits
Dther Nabilitics
Net caxh provided by operating uctivities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES: ;
Additions to und purchases of rentul propeny
Land held for development |
Additions w construction in progress
Prucceds from disposal of rentyl properties
Incrrase in cash held in cscrow
Increase in deferred Icasing cosis
Additions to nolcs receivable
Prucceds from repayment of noles receivable
Proceeds from sale of securitics
Cash used w purchase securities
Distributivns from (10} unconsolidated joint ventures from sale of
property

Nct cush (used in) provided by investing aclivitics

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repuyments of mortgage notes payable
Met repuyments under revol ving credit facilities
Pruceeds from senior debt ofTerings
Repuyment of scnior debt
Cash paid for setllement of interest rate contructs
Increuse in deferred financing costs
Procceds from issuance of common slock
Repuyment of nutes receivable from issunnce of common stock
Stck iSsunnce costs
Repurchusc of commuon stk |
Caxh dividends puid to stuckholders
Distributiuns 1o minonity interest

Net cush used in finuncing uctivities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalenis al beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2007 2006 2005
69,385 $ 176,955 92,741
(1,582) (4,066} (4,450)
(4,586) (2.612) (1.006)

1.559 742 #93
(2,102) (5.864) (5.159)
1,684 1,503 1512
47,514 44,791 43,445
7,050 6.125 54973
23 (120} .
21,423) (122,105} (11.460)
3.360 . .
491 - -

283 . .
(325) (282} (5.223)

- (1.853) -

- 1.373 -

112 206 188
3,262 (1,988) (1.832)
B.465 1.807 (2.768)
2.191) 2.946 3,674
63 60 1,002
(4,026) (2.975) (33R)
107,016 94,643 117,192
(107.587) $  (186,006) 136,081)
(2.651) {45,784) (29.290)
15212 (47,429} (23.058)
71,273 411,090 44,024
(52,913) {1.547) {51)
(3.884) (6,163) (S.877)
(14 33 (4.227)
4,745 5,735 40
2.822 12,852 32,764
(1.181) (29.837) (61,603)
. 1,935 (12)
(104.602) 114,813 (82,3717
(222700 5 (88.880) (48,131)
(39.500) (16,665) (53.435)
148,874 246,868 118,606
- (125.000) -
(2.498) - -
(B78) (1.947) (463}
3,882 £.083 ILSI0

. 65 BS

- (69} (181

- (69,103) -
(88,599} (162.704) (K7.272)
(112) (206) (160
(raon (209,558} (3g.841)
1,313 (102} (5.020)

- 102 3,122

1,313 [ . 102

—




EQUITY ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

{In thousands)

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid for interest (ne1 of capitalized interest of $3.2 million, $5.8

million and $3.4 million in 2007, 2006 ond 2005. respectively) M 66,386 $ 57.684 5 55,249
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Change in unrealized holding toss on securilies b (1.386) § 9.753) § (1.229)
Change in cash flow hedges s 13 Sg('l.‘ﬂ‘!)
The Company acquired and assumed mortgages on the acquisition of
cenain rental propenties:
Fair value of remtal propenty 5 69.069 $ 58,551
Assumption of morngage notes payable (27.740) {33.602)
Fair value adjustment of morigage notes payuble (1,974) {1.863)
Cash paid for rental propenty : $ 39.155 $ 23086
The Company issired senior unsecured notes:
Face value of notes $ 150,000 $ 250,000 $ 120,000
Underwriting Costs (975) (1.624) (780)
Drscount (151} {1,508) {614)
Cash reccived $ 148.874 s 246,868 3 118,606
(Conchaded)

See gccompanying notes to the consolidated financial stotements,




EQUITY ONE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 AND 2005

I
1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

Organization

Equity One, Inc. operates as'a self-managed real estate investment trust {“REIT™) that principally acquires,
renovates, develops and manages neighborhood and community shopping centers anchored by leading
supermarkets, drug stores or discount retail store chains, As of December 31, 2007, we owned or had interests in
169 propenies consisting of 152 shopping centers, seven development/redevelopment properties, six non-retail
properties and four parcels of land.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Equity One, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries
and those other subsidiaries or partnerships where it has financial and operating control. Equity One, Inc. and its

subsidiaries are hereinafier referred to as the “Company”, “we”, “our”, “us” or similar terms. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Investments in joint ventures not controlled by us are accounted for under the equity method of accounting where
we have concluded that the venture is not a variable interest entity or we are not the primary beneficiary and subject
to the consolidation rules of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS 46(R), “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Enrities.”

Certain prior-year data have been reclassified to conform to the 2007 presentation.

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

Rental income includes minimum rents, expense reimbursements, termination fees and percentage rental payments.
Minimum rents are recognized on an accrual basis over the terms of the relatcd leases on a straighi-line basis. As
part of the leasing process, we may provide the lessee with an allowance for the construction of leasehold
improvements. Leasehold improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the
improvements or the lease term. If the allowance represents a payment for a purpose other than funding leaschold
improvements, or in the event we are not considered the owner of the improvements, the allowance is considered a
lease incentive and is recognized over the lease term as a reduction to revenue. Factors considered during this
evaluation include, among others, the type of improvements made, who holds legal title to the improvements, and
other controlling rights provided by the lease agreement. Lease revenue recognition commences when the lessee is
given possession of the leased space and there are no contingencies offsetting the lessee's obligation to pay rent.

Substantially all of the lease agreements contain provisions that require the payment of additional rents based on the
respective tenamt’s sales volume (contingent or percentage rent) and reimbursement of the tenant’s share of real
estate laxes, insurance and common area maintenance, or CAM, costs. Revenue based on percentage of tenants’
sales is recognized only afier the tenant exceeds their sales breakpoint. Revenue from tenant reimbursements of
taxes, CAM and insurance is recognized in the period that the applicable cosis are incurred in accordance with the
lease agreements. -

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of tenants to make

required rent payments. The computation of this allowance is based on an assessment of the tenants’ payment
history and current credit quality using the specific identification method.
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We recognize gains or losses on sales of real estate in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 66 “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate.” Profits are not recognized until (a) a sale has been consummated; (b)
the buyer's initial und continuing investments are adequate to demonstrate a commitment to pay for the property: (c)
our receivable, if any, is not subject to future subordination; and (d) we have transferred 1o the buyer the usual risks
and rewards of ownership, and we do not have a substantial continuing involvement with the property. The sales of
operating properties where we do not have a conlinuing involvement are presented in the discontinued operations
section of our condensed consolidated statements of operations.

During 2007, we were engaged by joint ventures and other third partics to provide property management and leasing
services. The fees were generally calculated as a percentage of either revenues received or reimbursement of cosis
and were recognized as services were rendered. As of May 31, 2007, we are no longer providing these services.

Properties

Income-producing properties are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Costs include those
related 1o acquisition, development and construction, including tenant improvements, interest incurred during
development, costs of predevelopment and certain direct and indirect costs of development. All costs related to
unsuccessful acquisition opportunities are expensed when it is probable that we will not be successful in the
acquisition.

Depreciation and amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, as follows:

Buildings 30-40 years

Buildings and Land Improvements 5-40 years

Tenant improvemenis Minimum lease tern or
economic useful life

Furniture and Equipment 5-7 years

Expenditures for ordinary maintenance and repairs are expensed to operations as they are incurred. Significant
renovations and improvements that improve or extend the useful life of assets are capitalized. The useful Jives of
amortizable intangible lease assets are evatuated each reporting peried with any changes in estimated useful lives
being accounted for over the revised remaining useful life.

Construction in Progress and Land Held for Development

Properties also include construction in progress and tand held for development. These properties are carried at cost
and no depreciation is recorded. Properties undergoing significant renovations and improvements are considered
under development. All direct and indirect costs celated to development activities are capitalized into properties in
construction in progress and land held for development on our condensed consolidated balance sheets. Costs
incurred include predevelopment expenditures direcily related 1o a specific project including development and
construction costs, interest, insurance and real estate tax expense. Indirect development costs include employce
salaries and benefits, travel and other related costs that are directly associated with the development of the property.
The capitatization of such expenses ceases when the property is ready for its intended use and has reached
stabilization but no later than one-year from substantial completion of construction activity. If we determine that a
project is no longer probable, all predevelopment project costs are immediately expensed. Similar costs related to
propertics not under development are expensed as incurred.

Cur method of calculating capitalized interest is based upon applying our weighted average borrowing rate to that
portion of actual costs incurred. Total interest expense capitalized to construction in progress and land held for
development was $3.2 million, $5.8 million, and $3.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

F-11




Business Combinations

When we purchase real estate properties, we allocate the initial purchase price of assets acquired (net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets) and liabilities assumed based on their relative fair values at the date of acquisition
pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinaiions”. Qur initial fair value purchase price
allocations may be refined as final information regarding fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed is
received. The allocations are finalized within one year of the acquisition date. We allocaie the purchase price of the
acquired property to land, building, improvements and intangible assets. The aggregate value of other acquired
intangible assets, consisting of in-place leases, is measured by the excess of (i) the purchase price paid for a propenty
after adjusting existing in-place; leases to market rental rates over (ii) the cstimated fair value of the property as-if-
vacant, determined as set forth above. The value of in-place leases exclusive of the value of above-marker and
below-market in-place leases is amortized to expense over the remaining non-cancelable periods of the respective
leases. If a lease were to be terminated prior o its stated expiration, all unamortized amounts relating to that lease
would be written off. There are three categories of intangible assets 10 be considered: (1) value of in-place leases;
{2) above and betow-markei vatue of in-place leases and; (3) customer relationship value.

The value of in-place leases is €stimated based on the fair value of at-market in-place leases considering the cost of
acquiring similar leases, the foregone rents associated with the lease-up period and carrying costs associaled with the
lease-up period. [Intangible assets associated with at-markel in-place leases are amortized as additional lease
expense over the remaining contractual lease term.

Above-market and below-market in-place lease values for acquired propertics are computed based on the present
value of the difference between the contractugzl amounts to be paid pursuant to the leases ncgoliated and in-place at
the time of acquisition and our estimate of fair market lease rates for the property or comparable property, measured
over a period equal 1o the remaining contractual lease period. The value of above-market lease assets is amortized
as a reduction of rental income over the remaining terms of the respective leases. The value of below-morkel lease
liabilities is amortized as an increase to rental income over the remaining terms of the respective leases.

We do not allocate value to customer relationship intangibles if we have pre-exisling business relationships with the
tenanis in the acquired property. Other than as discussed above, we have determined that our real eslate properties
do not have any significant identifiable intangibles.

The results of operations of acquired properties are included in our financial staiements as of the dates they are
acquired, The lease intangibles associated with property acquisitions are included in other assets and other liabilities
in our condensed consolidated balance sheets. In the event that a tenant terminates it$ lease, all unamortized costs
are written-off as a charge to depreciation expense.

1

Properties Held for Sale

Under SFAS No. 144, “Accournting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Asseis”, the definition of a
component of an entity, assuming no significant continuing involvement, requires that operating properties that are
sold or classified as held for sale ;be accounted for as discontinued operations. Accordingly, the resulls of operations
of operating propetties disposed of or classified as held for sale for which we have no significant continuing
involvement are reflected as discontinued operations. Given the nature of real eslate sales contracts, it is customary
for such contracts o allow potential buyers a period of time to evaluate the property prior to committing to its
acquisition. In addition, certain ‘conditions to the closing of a sale, such as financing contingencies, often remain
following the completion of the buyer's due diligence review. As a result, properties under contracl may not ¢lose
within the expected time period, or may not close at all. Due to these uncertainties, we generally do not classify a
property as “discontinued operations” until it is sold. unless we have otherwise determined that the property meets
the criteria of SFAS No. 144 and is likely to close within the time requirements.
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Long-lived Assets

Our properties are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the property may not be recoverable. If there is an event or change in circumstance indicating the potential for
impairment in the value of a property, we evaluate our ability to recover our net investment in the long-lived assets
by comparing the carrying value (net book value) of such asset to the estimated future undiscounted cash flows over
their expected useful life. Future cash flow estimates are based on probability-weighted projections for a range of
possible cutcomes.

During 2007 and 2006, we determined that the carrying amounts of certain of our assets were unrecoverable, and,
therefore, we wrote down such amounts to their estimated fair market values. For the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, $3.4 million, $86,000 and $0 of impairment losses were recognized of which $1.5 million,
$86,000 and $ O, respectively, was included in income from discontinued operations,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less 10 be cash equivalents.
Cash Held in Escrow

Cash held in escrow represents the cash proceeds of property sales that are being held by qualified intermediaries in
anticipation of the acquisition of replacement properties in tax-free exchanges under Section 1031 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Subsequent to year-end, we repaid $37.0 miltion of outstanding balances under our lines of credit
with proceeds from our 2007 dispositions

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounis of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 1he financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable include amounts billed to tenants and unbilled but accrued expense recoverics due from tenants,
We evaluate the probability of collection for these receivables and adjust the allowance for doubtful accounts to
reflect amounts estimated to be uncollectible, The allowance for doubtful accounts was approximately $2.2 million
and $1.6 million a1 December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively.

Securities

Our investments in securities are classified as available-for-sale and recorded at fair value based on current market
prices. Changes in the fair value of the securities investments are included in accumulated other comprehensive
income.

As of December 31, 2007, we indirectly owned appsoximately 3.8 million ordinary shares of DIM Vastgoed N.V.,
or DIM, representing 47.9% of the total outstanding ordinary shares of DIM. DIM is a public company organized
under the laws of the Netherlands, the shares of which are listed on Euronext Amsterdam and which operates as a
closed-end investment company owning and operating o portfolio of 21 shopping center properties aggregating
approximately 2.6 million square feet in the southeastern United States. DIM's capital structure includes pricrity
shares and ordinary shares. The priority shares are 100% owned by a foundation that is conirolled by its supervisory
board. The ordinary shares have voting rights; however, only the priority shares have the right to nominate
members to the supervisory board and to approve certain other corporate matters. As of December 31, 2007, we
believe that the investment in DIM should be accounted for as an available-for-sale security because, as of that dae,
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we were unable to exert significant influence over DIM's operating or financial policies and, based on DIM's
organizational and capital structure, we were unable to participate in the affairs of DIM’s supervisory board.

As of December 31, 2007, the fair value of DIM’s ordinary shares is less than the carrying amount of our total
investment, Our apgregate cost is approximately $79.1 million and, based on the closing market price on December
31, 2007, the ordinary shares of DIM had a fair value of approximately $71.3 million. This ¢quates to an unrealized
loss of $7.8 million. In making a judgment as to whether our investment is impaired, we consider a number of
factors including, but not necessarily limited to the following:

* our inient and ability to hold the sccurities for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated
recovery in fair value;

* our assessment of the net asset value of the propenies held by DIM based upon our expertise in the
shopping center real estate business;

» the assessment by DIM’s management of its net assel value, or NAV, based upon its use of fair value
accounting;

¢ the financial and operational condition of DIM’s properties;

+ markel and economic conditions that might affect DIM’s prospects:

* the extent to which fair value of DIM is below our cost basis and the period of time over which the decline
has existed;

*  the relevance of the market price given the thin trading in DIM shares and the concentration of share
ownership between ourselves and one other institutional investor; and

e the share-price premium that might be warranted given our ownership of a large block of the outstanding
commen stock.

We have evaluated the severity and duration of the possible impairment, together with the near-term prospects of
DIM, the thin trading market for DIM shares and our ability and intent to hold the investment for a reasonable
period sufficient for a forecasted recovery of the camrying ¢ost, Based upon our intent and ability to hold DIM
shares, our own evaluation of the NAV of the underlying properties held by DIM, and the duration and ¢xtent of the
possible impairment, we do not consider the invesiment to be other-than-temporarily impaired a1 December 31,
2007. Changes in estimates, ‘assumptions, or e¢xpected outcomes could impact the determination of whether a
decline in value is other-than-temporary and whether the effects could materially impact our financial position or nel
income in future periods. If the market value of DIM remains less than our carrying amount for an extended peried
of time and/or the financial condition and ncar-term prospects of DIM deteriorate or do not otherwise improve in the
future, among other factors, we:may be reguired to record an other than lemporary impairment of the investment.

As of December 31, 2007, we owned 44,200 shares of preferred stock of a publicly-traded REIT that had a fair value
of $1.04 million, & carrying amount of $1.1 million and an unrealized loss of approximately $66,000.

During 2006, we held debt seci:rities of Winn Dixie Stores, Inc. (“Winn Dixie"). In November 2006, a ponion of
the debt securities were converted into common stock of Winn Dixie when it emerged from bankrupicy. During the

second quarter of 2007, we sold our remaining shares of Winn Dixic common stock and realized a gain of
approximately $227,000,

The specific identification method is used to determine realized gain or loss on securities sold.
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The following table reflects the gross unrealized losses and fair value of our investments with unrcalized losses that
are not deemed other-than-temporarily impaired:

_As of December 31,
2007 2006
{In thousands) {In thousands)
Fair Unrealized Fair YUnrealized
Investment Volue Loss Yalue Loss
Equity securities $ 72300 3 911§ 75103 S 6,349
——————————— - ——————— ]

Deferred Costs and [ntangibles

Deferred costs, intangible assets included in other assets, and intangible liabilities included in other liabilities consist
of loan origination fees, leasing costs and the value of iniangibles when a property was acquired. Loan and other
fees dircctly related to rental property financing with third parties are amortized over the term of the loan using the
effective interest method. Direct salaries, third-party fees and other costs incurred by us to originate a lease arc
capitalized and arc being amortized using the siraight-line method over the 1erm of the related leases. Intangible
assets consist of in-placc lease values, tenant origination costs and above-market rents that were acquired in
connection with the acquisition of the properties. Intangible liabilities consist of below-market rents that are also
acquired in connection with the acquisition of properties. Both intangible assets and liabilities are amortized using
the straight-line method over the term of the related leases.

Deposits

Deposits included in other assets are comprised of funds held by various institutions for future payments of property
Laxes, insurance and improvements, utility and other service deposits.

Goodwill

Goodwill has been recorded 1o reflect the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired in various business
acquisitions. We adopted SFAS No, 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Asseis™ on January 1, 2002 and no lenger
amortize goodwill.

We are required to perform annual, or more frequently in certain circumstances, impairment tests of our goodwill,
We have elected to test for goodwill impairment in November of each year, The goodwill impairment test is a two-
step process thal requires us to make decisions in determining appropriate assumptions to use in the calculation. The
first step consists of estimating the fair value of each reporting unit and comparing those estimated fair values with
the carrying values, which include the ailocated goodwill, I the estimated fair value is less than the carrying value,
a second step is performed 1o compute the amount of the impairment by determining an “implied fair value” of
goodwill. The determination of reporting units (each propeny is considered a reporting unit) implied fair value of
goodwill requires us to allocate the estimated fair value of the reporting unit to its assets and liabilities. Any
unallocated fair value represents the implied fair value of goodwill which is compared to its corresponding carrying
amount. During the periods presented, no impairment of goodwill was incurred.

We cannot predict the occurrence of certain future events that might adversely affect the reported value of goodwill
that totaled approximately $12.5 million at December 3), 2007. Such events include, but are not limited to, straiegic
decisions made in response 10 economic and competitive conditions, the impact of the economic environment on our
tenant base, or a materially negative change in its relationships with significant tenants,

Goodwill was included in the detcrmination of the gain on disposal of real estate due to the disposition of certain
propenties. For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, $595,000, $604,000 and $325,000, respectively,
was included in the gain on sale.




Minority Interest

On January 1. 1999, Equity One (Walden Woods) Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of ours, entered into a limited
partnership as a general partner. An income-producing shopping center (“Walden Woods Village") was contributed
by its owners (the "Minority Partners”), and we contributed 93,656 shares of our common stock (the “Walden
Woods Shares™) to the limited partnership at an agreed-upon price of $10.30 per share. Based on this per share price
and the net value of property contributed by the Minority Partners, the limited partners received 93,656 partnership
units. We have entered into a Redemption Agreemenm with the Minority Partners whereby the Minority Partners can
request that we purchase either their limited partnership units or any shares of common stock, which they received in
exchange for their partnership units at a price of $10.30 per unit or per share at any time before Janvary I, 2014,
Because of the Redemption Agreement, we consolidate the accounts of the partnership with our financial data. In
addition, under the terms of the limited parinership agreement, the Minority Partners do not have an interest in the
Walden Woods Shares except io the extent of dividends, Accordingly, a preference in earnings has been allocated
to the Minority Partners to the exient of the dividends declared. The Walden Woods Shares are not considered
outstanding in the condensed consclidated financial statements and are excluded from the share couni in the
calculation of primary earnings per share.

We have controlling interests in two joint ventures that, together, own our Sunlake development project. We have
funded all of the acquisition costs, are required to fund any necessary development and operating costs, receive an
8% preferred return on our advances and are entitled o 60% of the profits thereafter. The minority partners are not
required to make contributions and, 1o date, have not contributed any capital. The joint ventures are in the process
of obtaining the required approvals and permits to continue their mixed-use business plan. No minority interest has
been recorded as the venture has incurred operating losses after taking into account our preferred return.

We also have a contrelling mer’nbership imerest in Dolphin Village Partners, LLC, a venture that owns our Dolphin
Village shopping center. We have funded all of the acquisition costs, are required to fund any necessary
development and operating cosls, receive an 8% preferred return on our advances and are entitled to 50% of the
profits thereafter. The minority paniner is not required to make contributions and, to date, has not contributed any
capital. The joint venture has obtained preliminary approval of its redevelopment plans and is evaluaiing the
feasibility of those plans. No minority interest has been recorded as the venture has incurred operating losses after
1aking into nccount our preferred relum.

Use of Derivative Financial lqstruments

We account for derivative and hedging activitics in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instiruments and Hedging Activiries™, as amended ard interpreied. These accounting standards require us to measure
derivatives, including certain derivalives embedded in other contracts, at fair value and to recognize them in the
consolidated balance shects as assets or liabilities, depending on our rights or obligations under the applicable
derivative contract. For derivaiives designated as fair value hedges, the changes in the fair value of both the
derivative instrument and the hedged item are recorded in eamings. For derivatives designated as cash flow hedges,
the effective portions of changes in fair vatue of the derivative are reported in other comprehensive income and are
subsequenily reclassified into earnings when the hedged item affects camings. Changes in fair value of derivative
instruments not designated as hedging instruments, and ineffective ponions of hedges, are recognized in earnings in
the current period.

We do not enter into derivative instruments for speculative purposes. We require that the hedges or derivative
financial instruments be effective in manoging the interest rate risk exposure that they are designated to hedge. This
effectiveness is essential to qualify for hedge accounting. Hedges that meet these hedging criteria are formally
designated as such at the inception of the contract. When the terms of an underlying transaction are modified, or
when the underlying hedged itém ceases to exist, resulling in some ineffectiveness, the change in the fair value of
the derivative instrument will be included in earnings. Additionally, any derivative instrument used for risk
management that becomes ineffective is marked-to-market each period. We believe that our credit risk has been
mitigated by entering into these agreements with major financial institutions. Net interest differentials 10 be paid or
received under a swap contract and/or collar agreement are included in interest expense as incurred or eamned.
|
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The estimated fair value of our derivative financial instrumenis has been determined using available market
information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is necessarily required in
interpreting market data 10 develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts that we could realize in a current market exchange. The use of differem
market assumptions or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value.

In 2006, we entered into an aggregate notional amount of $85.0 million of treasury locks. The treasury locks were
exccuted to hedge the benchmark interest rate associated with forecasted interesi payments relating to an anticipated
issuance of fixed-rate borrowings. The treasury locks were terminated in connection with the issuance of $150.0
million of unsecured senior notes in April 2007. The realized loss on these hedging relationships has been deferred
in other comprehensive income and will be amortized against earnings over the term of the debt as an adjustment to
interest expense.

On March 24, 2004, concurcent with the issuance of the $200.0 million 3.875% senior unsecured notes, we entered
into a $100.0 million notional principal variable rate interest swap with an estimated fair value of $315,000 as of
December 31, 2007. This swap converted fixed rate debt to variable rate based on the six-month LIBOR in arrears
plus 0.4375%, and matures April 15, 2009,

Investments In and Advances to Unconsolidated Ventures

As of December 31, 2007, we did not have invesiments in unconsolidated joint ventures.

Contentration of Credit Risk

A concentration of credit risk arises in our business when a national or regionally based tenant occupies a substantial
amount of space in multiple properties owned by us. In that event, if the tenam suffers a significant downturn in its
business, it may become unable to make its contractual rent payments 10 us, exposing us to a potential loss in rental
revenue, expensc recoveries, and percentage rent that is magnified as a result of the tenant renting space in multiple
locations. Generally, we do not oblain security from its national or regionally based tenants in support of their tease
obligations to us. We regularly monitor our tenant base to assess potential concentrations of credit risk. As of
December 31, 2007, Publix Super Markets accounted for over 10% of our annualized minimum rent, or
approximately $19.1 million of annualized minimum rent. No other tenant accounts for over 5% of our annualized
minimum rent.

Earnings Per Share

Eamings per share are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share”, which requires a
dual presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share on the face of the consolidated staicment of operations.
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income attributable 10 common stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted eamings per share reflects the potential
dilution that could occur if securitics or other contructs to issue common stock were exercised or converted into
common stock or resulted in the issvance of common stock that then shared in the eamings of the Company. We
calculate the dilutive effect of stock-based compensation arrangements using the treasury stock method. This
method assumes that the proceeds we receive from the exercise of stock options and non-vested stock are used
to repurchase commeon shares in the market. The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”, requires
that we include as assumed proceeds the amount of compensation cost attributed to fulure services and not yet
recognized, and the amount of tax benefits (both deferred and current), if any, that would be credited 10 additional
paid-in capital assuming exercise of the uptions and vesting of the restricted shares.




Income Taxes

We clected to be taxed as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code (“Code™). commencing with our taxable ycar
ended December 31, 1995. To qualify as a REIT, we must meet a2 number of organizalional and operational
requirements, including a requirement that we currently distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income 1o our
stockholders. Also, at least 95% of our gross income in any year must be derived from qualifying sources. The
difference between net income available to common stockholders for financial reporting purposes and taxable
income before dividend deductions relates primarily to temporary differences, such as real estaie depreciation and
amortization, deduction of deferred compensation and deferral of gains on sold properties utilizing like kind
exchanges. 11 is our intention 1o adhere to these requirements and maintain our REIT status. As a REIT, we
generally will not be subject 10 corporate level federal income fax on taxable income that we distribute currently to
our stockholders. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will be subject to federal income taxes at
regular corporate rates (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) and may not be able to qualify as a REIT
for four subsequent taxable years. Even if we qualify for 1axation as a REIT, we may be subject to certain state and
local taxes on our income and property, and to federal income and excise taxes on our undistributed taxable income.
Accordingly, the only provision for federal income taxes in our condensed consoclidated financial statements relates
to our consoliduted 1axable REIT subsidiaries (“TRSs"). Our TRSs did not have significant tax provisions or
deferred income tax itlems during the periods reported hereunder,

In June 2006, the FASB issued SFAS Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Unceriainty in Income Taxes (FIN
48)." In summary, FIN 48 requires that all 1ax positions subject to SFAS No. 109, “Acceunting for Income Taxes,”
10 be analyzed using a two-step approach. The first step requires an entity 1o determine if a tax position would more
likely than not be sustained upon examination, In the second step. the tax benefit is measured as the largest amount
of benefil. delermined on a cumulative probability basis that is more likely than not to be realized upon uliimate
settlement.  FIN 48 was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, with any adjustment in a
company's tax provision being accounted for as a cumulative effect of accounting change in beginning equity. The
adoption of the standard did not have a material impact on our consolidaled financial statements.

Further, we belicve that we have appropriate suppon for the 1ax positions taken on our tax returns and that our
accruals for the tax liabilities are adequate for all years still subject to tax audit afier 2003.

]
At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the accompanying financial statement basis of assets and liabilities exceeds the tax
basis by approximately $356.0 million and $225.5 million, respectively.

The following summurizes the.1ax status of dividends paid:

[l

' Years Ended December 31,

. 2007 2006 2005
Dividend poid pershare  §$ 120§ 220 $ 1.17
Ordinary income 51.26% 23.62% 68.17%
Rewum of capital 2041% 29.86% 2692%
Capital gains 28.33% 46.52% 491%
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Stock-Based Compensation
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for stock-based compensation under the recognition and measurement
provisions of Accounting Principle Board Opinion (*"APB") No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,”
and related interpretations, as permitted by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Under
APB No. 25, no stock-based compensation costs were recognized in the statement of operations as our options
granted had an exercise price cqual to thc market value of our common shares on the date of grant. Effective
January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Paymem”,
using the modified-prospeciive-transition method. Under this transition method, compensation costs recognized
beginning January 1, 2006 includes: (a) compensation costs for all share-based payments granied prior to, but not
vested as of, January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimaied in accordance with the original provisions
of SFAS No. 123, and (b) compensation costs for all share-based payments granted subsequent to January 1, 2006
based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). We use the
binomial model o value stock options.

On January , 2006, we recorded the cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 123(R}. This cumulative ef fect
resulted in decreasing accrued liabilities by $4.5 million and increasing shareholder equity by $4.5 million. These
balunce sheet changes related to deferred compensation on unvested shares. There was no effect on the consolidated
stalement of operations or cash flows. Under SFAS No. 123(R), deferred compensation is no longer recorded at the
time unvested shares are issued. Share-based compensation is now recorded over the requisite service period with
ar offsetting credit to equity (generally additional paid-in capital).

Share-Based Compensation Subsequent to the Adoption of SFAS 123(R)

Share-based compensation expense charged against earnings for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 is
summarized as follows:

2007 2006
(In thousands)
Restricted Stock $ 5234 $ 5,543
Options 1,799 . 747
Employee stock purchase plan 12 12
less: amounis capitalized (494) (178)
Nel share-based compensation expense $ 6,551 $ 6,124
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Pro Forma Information for Periods Prior to Adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if we had applied the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) to our stock-based compensation for the year ended December 31, 2005:

2005
. (in thousands, exccpt per share amounts)
Net Income As reported $ 92,741
Add:
Siock-based employee compensation
expense included in reported net income 5.660
t
. Deduct:
Total fair value stock-based employce
compensation expense for all awards (6.486)
Proforma s 91.915
3
Basic earnings per share As reported 3 1.26
Proforma 3 1.29
L ——————— ]
Diluted easnings per share  As reported $ 1.24
Proforma 3 T.23
— - ——

Segment Information 1

Our properties are community and neighborhood shopping centers located predominantly in high-growth and high-
barrier markets in the southern and northeastern United States. Each of our centers is a separate operating segment.
all of which have characteristics so similar they are expected 1o have essentially the same future prospects and have
been aggregated and reported as one reportable segment. The economic characteristics include similar returns,
occupancy and tenants. No individual property constitutes more than 10% of our combined revenue, net income or
assets. The individual propefiies have been aggregated into one reportable segment based upon their similarities
with regard to both the nature and economics of the cenlers, tenants and operational processes, as well as long-term
average financial performance. In addition, no shopping center is Jocated outside the United States.

Recent Accounting Prorouncements

In September 2006, the FASB, issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements,” (SFAS No. 157), which defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value méasurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material
effect on our consolidated financial sialements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Asseis and Financial
Liabilities” (SFAS No. 159) which allows entities to voluntarily choose, at specified election dates, to measure many
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. The election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
is irrevacable. Subsequent w the adoption of SFAS No. 159, changes in fair value for the particular instruments
shall be reported in eamings. Upon initial adoption, SFAS No. 159 provides entities with 2 one-time chance to elect
the fair value option for existing eligible items. The effect of the first measurement to fair value should be reporied
s a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained carnings in the year the siatement is adopted.




SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are not electing to measure our
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value pursuant to this standard.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 {R), “Business Combinations” (SFAS 141(R)). In summary,
SFAS 141(R) requires the acquirer of a business combination to measure at {air value the assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date, with limited exceptions.
The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and is to be applied prospectively, with
no carlier adoption permitted. The adoption of this standard may have an impact on the accounting for certain costs
related to our future acquisitions.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncentrotling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements™ (SFAS 160) which requires consolidated net income to be reported at amounts that include the amounts
attributable to both the parent and non-controlling interest. SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or
after December 15, 2008. The adoption of this standard is not expecied to have a material effect on our consolidated
financial statements.

Fair value of financial instruments

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by us using available market information
and appropriate valuation methods. Considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the
estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amouns
that the Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or
estimation methods may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts. We have used the following
market assumptions and/or estimation methods:

Cash and Cash Equivaients and Accounts and Other Receivables. The carrying amounts reported in the balance
sheets for these financial instruments approximate fair value because of their short maturities.

Notes Receivable. The fair value is cstimated by using the current interest rates at which similar loans would be
made. The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets approximate fair value.

Available for Sale Securities. The fair value estimated at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $72.3 million and $75.1
million, respectively, based on the closing market prices of the securities. The unrealized holding toss was §7.9
million at December 31, 2007, and $6.3 million at December 31, 2006.

Marigage Notes Payable. The fair value estimated a1 December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $426.4 million and $413.4
million, respectively, calculated based on the net present value of payments over the term of the loans using
estimated market rates for similar mortgage loans and remaining terms.

Unsecured Revolving Credit Facilities. The fair valuc was estimated by using the current rates at which similar
loans would be made and remaining terms. The carrying amounis reporied in the balance sheets approximate fair
value,

Unsecured Senior Notes Payable. The fair valve estimated at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $704.7 million and
$568.8 million, respectively, calculated based on the net presem value of payments over the term of the loan using
estimated market rates for similar notes and remaining terms.
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3. Properties

The following table is a summury of the comgosition of properties in the consolidated balance sheets:

December 31,
2007 2006
(thousands)

Land and land improvemenis S 891431 3 B0292s
Building and building improvements 1,116,936 1,054,467
Tenant improvements 39,626 39,451
: 2,047,993 1,896,843

Less: accumulated depreciation (172.651) (144,825)
Income-producing property, net % 1,875,342 $ 1,752018

Acquisitions

The following 1able reflects the individual properties that were acquired during 2007:

Gross
Leasable Purchase
Date  Property . City, State Area Price

{In square feet) (Lo thowsands)

01/09/07 Concord Shopping Plaza Miami, FL. 298,986 $ 43433
02/)7/07 Shelby Plaza Land Shelby, NC N/A 505
02/15/07 Alafaya Commons Qutparcel Orlando, FL. NIA 2,146
03/09/07 Buckhead Station Atlanta, GA 233,930 68,000
06/13/07 Shoppes of Sunsct Miami, FL 21,704 5,000
06/21/07 Medical & Merchanis - Crown Bank Outparcel  Jacksonvitle, FL. 3,392 1,333
11/01/07 Sunsetll Miami, FL. 21,767 5,400
11/36/07 Concord Qutparcel Miami, FL N/A 2,400

Total $ 133217

No equily interests were issued or issuable in connection with the above purchases and no contingent payments,
options or commitments are provided for in the agreements. No goodwill was recorded in conjunction with any of
the individual propeny acquisitions.

The amounts assigned Lo intangibles consisting of in-place leases, lease origination costs, above-market leases and

below-marken leases are $12.2 million, $3.5 million, $3.0 million and ($21.2 million), respectively. The weighted
average amartization period is 4.6 years.
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4. Accounts and Other Receivables

The following table is a summary of the composition of accounts and other receivables in the consolidated balance

t sheets:
December 31,

' 2007 2006

1 (in thosands)
Tenants 3 15,654 3 18,312
Other 737 2,264
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2,243) (1,609)
Toial accounts and other receivables, net 3 14,148 $ 18,967

{

1

f

5. Other Assets

The following is a summary of the composition of other assets in the consolidated balance sheets:

December 31,
2007 2006

{(In thousands)
Notes receivable 5 69 $ 4,800
Deposits and escrow impounds 9,175 11,909
Deferred financing fees, net 6,474 6,307
Leasing commissions, net 10,743 11,134
Tntangible assets, net 18,649 20,579
Fumiture and equipment, net 2,370 2,700
Prepaid and other assets 14,949 17,927
Total other assets 5 62429 § 75,356

All amounts included as intangible assets (other than goodwill) are subject to amortization. The gross carrying
amount and accumulated amortization of our intangible assets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $18.8 million
and $14.9 million, and accumulated amortization of $6.6 million and $3.8 millicn, respectively, for in-place leases,
$5.7 million and $5.0 million, and accumulated amortization of $2.2 million and $1.3 million, respectively, for lease
origination costs; $4.7 million and $4.8 millior, and accumuiated amortization of $1.7 million, and $755,000,
respectively, for above-market leases; and $8.000 and $1.8 million accumulated amortization of $1,000 and
$38,000, respectively, for lease incentives. For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the amortization
for intangible assets was $1.2 million, $1.8 million and $624,000 respectively. The amortization for the next five
years for the recorded intangible assets is approximately $4.1 million, $3.4 miliion, $2.7 million, $2.1 million and
$1.7 million. The amontization for the next five years for the recorded intangible liabilitics is approximately $5.0
million, $4.6 million, $3.1 million, $2.3 million and $1.8 million, respectively.
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6. Borrowings

The following is a summary of our borrowings, consisting of mortgage notes payable, unsecured senior notes
payable and unsecured revolving credit facilities:

December 31,
2007 2006
Mortgage Notes Payable (In thousands)
Fixed rate mongage joans $ 3970112 % 391,647
Unamortized ner prefnium on mongage notes payable 10,455 10,463
Total $ 407.567 % 402,110

+

The weighted average interest fate of the mortgage notes payable at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 was
7.42% and 7.26%, respectively, excluding the effects of the net premium adjustment,

Each of the existing morigage loans is secured by a mortgage on one or more of our properties. Certain of the
mortgage loans involving an aggregate principal balance of approximately $74.9 million contain prohibitions on
transfers of ownership which may have been violated by our previcus issuances of common stock or in connection
with past acquisitions and may be violated by transactions involving our capital stock in the futre. If a viclation
were eslablished, it could serve as a basis for a lender to accelerate amounts due under the affected morngage. To
date, no lender has notified us that it intends 10 accelerate its morigage. In the event that the mortgage holders
declare defaults under the mortgage documents, we will, if required, repay the remaining morigage from existing
resources, refinancing of such mortgages, borrowings under its revolving lines of credit or other sources of
financing. Based on discussions with various lenders, current credit market conditions and other factors, we belicve
that the mortgages will not be accelerated. Accordingly, we believe that the violations of these prohibitions will not
have a material adverse impact on our results of operations or financia) condition.

December 31,
2007 2006
(In thousands)
Unsecured Senior Notes Payable
3.875% Senior Notes, due 4/15/09 5 200000 § 200,000
Fair value of interesi rate swap (315} (3.813)
7.84% Senior Notes, due 1/23/12 25,000 25,000
5.375% Senior Notes, due 10/15/15 120.000 120,000
6.0% Senior Notes, due 9/15/16 125,000 125.000
6.25% Senior Noles, due 1/15/17 125.000 125,000
6.0% Senior Notes, due 9/15/17 150,000 -
Unamortized nel p;'cnﬁum (discount) on unsccured senior
noics payable (413) (141)
Total $ 744,272 $ 591,046
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The weighted average interest rate of the unsecured senior noles at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was 5.67% and
5.58%, respectively, excluding the effects of the interest rate swap and net premium adjustment. In April 2007, we
completed a private placement of $150.0 million senior unsecured notes that mature on Scpiember 15, 2017,
interest is due semi-annually on March |5 and Sepiember 15 of each year, with the first payment paid on September
15, 2007. The notes were issued at a discount of $151,500 that is being amortized as interest expense over the life of
the notes. The notes are guaranteed by cenain of our subsidiaries. On December 3, 2007, we completed an
exchange offer of registered notes for the private placement notes.

The indentures under which our unsecured senior notes were issued have several covenants, which limit the ability
to incur debt, require us to maintain an unencumbered assets ratio above a specified level and limit the ability to
consolidate, sell, lease, or convey substantially all of the assels to, or merge with any other entity. These notes have
also been guaranieed by most of our subsidiaries,

On March 24, 2004, we swapped $100.0 million notional principal of the $200.0 million, 3.875% senior notes to a
floating interest rate based on the six-monih LIBOR in arrears plus 0.4375%. The swap matures Aprl 15, 2009,
concurrent with the 3.875% senior notes.

December 31,
2007 2006
Unsecured Revolving Credit Facilitics (In thousands)
Wells Fargo 3 37.000 3 76,500
City National Bank - -
Towl s 37,000 3 76,500

In January 2006, we entered into an amended and restated unsecured revolving credit facility, with a syndicate of
banks for which Wells Fargo Bank, National Association is the sole lead arranger and administrative agent. This
facility has a maximum principal amount of $275.0 miltion and bears interest at our option at (i) LIBOR plus 0.45%
to 1.15%, depending on the credit ratings of our senior unsecured notes or (ii) Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5%. The
facility is guaranieed by most of our subsidiaries. Based on our current rating, the LIBOR spread is 0.80%. The
facility also includes a competitive bid option, which allows us 1o conduct auctions among the participating banks
for borrowings in an amount not to exceed $137.5 million, a $35.0 million swing linc facility for short term
borrowings, and a $20.0 million letter of credit commitment. At our request, the facility may be increased up to a
total commitment of $400.0 million. The facility expires January 17. 2009 with a one-year extension option. In
addition, the facility contains customary covenants, including financial covenants regarding debt levels, total
liabilities, interest coverage, EBITDA coverage ratios, unencumbered propenies and permitted investments which
may limit the amount available under the facility. If a default under the facility exists, our ability to pay dividends
would be limited to the amount necessary (o maintain our status as a REIT unless the default is a payment default or
bankruptcy event in which case we would be prohibited from paying any dividends. The interest rate in effect at
December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, was 5.00% and 5.65%, respectively. The facility also provides
collateral for $3.2 million in outstanding letters of credit.

We have a $5.0 million unsecured credit facility with City National Bank of Florida, of which there was no
outstanding balance at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006. This facility also provides collateral for $1.4
million in outstanding letters of credit. [n addition, we also have an additional $55,000 outstanding fetter of credit
with Bank of America.
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As of December 31, 2007, the availability under the various credit facilities was approximately $238.4 million net of
outstanding balances and letters of credit.

Principal maturities (including scheduled amortization payments) of the notes payable as of December 31, 2007 are

as follows: .
]

Principal Maturitles Year ending

December 31, Amount

' (In thousands)

| 2008 $ 34,090
’ 2009 228.843
i 2010 119,268
, 2011 102,197
. 2012 72,645
. Thereafier 622,069
! Total 3 1,179,112

1
Interest costs incurred, excluding amortization of discount/premium, were $72.4 million, $64.8 million and $60.5

million in the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, 2005, respectively, of which $3.2 million, $5.8 million and
$3.4 million were capitalized, respectively.

7. Consolidating Financial Information

As of December 31, 2007, most of our subsidiarics have guarantced the Company’s unsecured senior debt. The

guarantees are joint and several and full and unconditional.
]

Combined Non-
Condensed Balance Sheet iEquity One, Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating
As of December 31, 2007 ) Inc. Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated
ASSETS | (En thousands)
Propenties, net $ 320,703 $ 1.258413 3 378,123 s - 5 1,957,239
Investment in affiliates 628,309 - - (628.309) -
Orther assets : 81,989 43,874 91,282 - 217,145
Tatal Assets , & 1,031,001 $ 1,302,287 3 469,405 5 (628,309 $ 2174384
LIABILITIES ;
Martgage notes payable ; $ 45366 0§ 134311 5 217435 $ -8 392
Unsecured revolving credit .
facilities 37,000 - - - 37.000
Unsccured senjor notes payable 744,685 - - 744,685
Unamortized premium on notes
payable 1 (310} 3,379 6,973 - 10,042
Other ligbilities ) 69,775 15.536 (16,687) - 68,624
Totul Liabilities ! 896,516 133,226 207.721 - 1,257,463
MINORITY INTEREST , - - - 989 989
STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY ' 134,485 1,149,061 261,684 (629,298} 915,932
Total Liabilities and
Stockholders' Equity ‘$ 1031000 § 1302287 § 469405 $ (628309) §  2.174.3%4
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Combined Non-
Condensed Balance Sheet Equity One, Guarantor Guarantor Eliminnting
As of December 31, 2006 Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entrics Consolidated
ASSETS (In thousands)
Properties, net $ 355817 S 1,003,181 s 526713 L3 - 5 18857
Investment in afliliates 700,622 140,14 {201,618) {639,138) -
Other assets 48,917 38,575 96,572 - 184,064
Total Assets _$ 1.10s5.356 $ 1181890 § 421667 S_L__”_B_), ;&
LIABILITIES
Meangage notes payable 5 47,113 % 99,867 § 244,667 s - 3 391,647
Unsecured revolving credit
lacilities 76.500 - - - 76.500
Unsecured senior notes payable 591,187 - - - 391,187
Unamortized premium on noles
payable 3] 2.346 7.965 - 10,322
Other liabilitics 26,217 28.623 18,612 - 73,452
Total Liabilities 741,028 130,836 271,244 1,143,108
MINORITY INTEREST - - - 989 989
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 364,328 1,051,054 150,423 (640,127) 925,678
Total Liabilities and
Stockholders’ Equity $ 1,105.356 S 1,181,890 $ 421667 § (639.138) $  2.069.775
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Condensed Statement of Operations Combined Non-
for the year ended Equity One Guarantor Guaruntor Eliminating
December 31, 2007 Ine. Subsidinries Subsidiories Entries Consolidated
(in thousands)
REVENUE:
Minimum rens $  12.8%9 3 115,901 $ 40.937 s - s 189,727
Expense recoverics 9.507 30577 13,439 - 53.523
Perceniage rent 194 1,292 114 - 2,200
Management and leasing services 1.163 - - 1,163
Total revenuc 42,590 148.93) 55050 . 246,613
EQUITY IN SUBSIDIARIES EARNINGS 103,208 - - (403,208) -
COSTS AND EXPENSES: '
Property operating : 10,919 38.704 14,877 - 64,500
Management and leasing services - 963 - - 963
Rental propeny depreciation and amontization 7.059 29.098 9,946 - 46,103
Genernl and administrative 22,621 3,109 116 - 25,846
Total costs and expenses 40.59% 71874 24.939 - 137412
INCOME BEFORE OTHER INCOME AND
EXPENSES. MINQRITY INTEREST AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 105.199 77.059 30.151 (103,208) 109.201
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES:
Investment income 1147 k) 6.148 - 7.329
Cther income 310 - - - 310
Interest expense . (43,381) (£.293) (14,989) - (66,663}
Amortization of deferred financing fees (1,474) (76} (130 (1.680)
Gain on the sale of real estale 1.027 1.510 - 2,537
Loss on the sule of fixed asscis (283) - - - (283)
Impairment loss ! - - (1,851) - {1.851)
INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS , 62,545 70,234 19329 (103.208) 48,900
Minority Interest - (112} N {112}
L)
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 62,545 70.234 19,217 (103,208) 48,788
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:
Operations of income producing-propentics sold or
held for sate . 418 1.460 (166} - 1712
Guin on disposal of income-producing propertics 65422 9,761 2,702 - 18.885
Income from discontinued operations 6.840 11,221 2.536 - 20,597
NET INCOME 5 69385 S 81,455 s 21,753 § (103,208) $ 69.385
————————— B ———a] p——
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Condensed Statement of Operations Combined Non-
far the year ended Equity One Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating
December 31, 2006 Ine. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated
(In thousands)
REVENUE:
Minimurn rents $ 34,766 s 90,610 § 46,226 $ - 3 171,602
Expense recoveries 9.474 26,289 13,313 - 45,076
Percentage rent 178 1,303 551 - 2,032
Management and leasing services - 2.067 - - 2,067
Total revenue 44,418 120.269 60.090 - 224777
EQUITY IN SUBSIDIARIES EARNINGS 203,222 - - (203,222) -
COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Property operaling 10,387 36,319 14,455 - 61.161
Management and leasing services 275 1,406 180 . 1.861
Rental property depreciation and amontization 6,785 22,047 11,480 - 40,312
General and administrative 25.851 3,906 - - 29,757
Total costs and expenses 43,298 63,678 26,115 - 133,091
INCOME BEFORE OTHER INCOME AND
EXPENSES, MINORITY INTEREST AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 204,342 56,591 33,975 (203,222) 91,686
QTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES:
Investment income 2,883 265 4,339 7487
Equity in income of unconsolidated joint ventures - 1,650 . - 1,650
Cther income 389 - - 389
Interest expense (33,040) 5,110 (15,172) - (53,983)
Amortization of deferred financing fees {1.280) (76) (129) - (1.435)
Gain on the szle of real estare - 5,651 1,286 - 6,937
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of debt 457 - (292) . 165
INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST AND
DISCONTINUED QPERATIONS 173,751 58.310 24,007 (203.222) 52,846
Minority [nterest - (206) ~ (206)
[INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 173.751 58.310 23,801 (203,222) 52,640
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS:
Operations of income preducing-propertics seld or
held for sale 2,144 7.582 (5719 - 9,147
Gain on disposal of income-producing properties 1,060 108,317 5,771 115,168
Income from discontinued operatiens 3.204 115919 5.192 124315
NET INCOME 3§ 176,955 b 174,229 3 28,993 $ (203.222) $ 176,955
[ ~————————— =}
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Condensed Statement of Operations

Combined Non-
for the year ended Equity One Guarantor Guarantor Eliminating
December 31, 2005 ) Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Cansolidated
! (In thousands)
|
REVENUE:
Minimum rents | S 34929 s 79,753 $ 42,454 5 $ 157,136
Expense recoveries 1 9,104 20,695 12,662 42,461
Perceniage rent 173 947 566 - 1,686
Management and leasing services : S0 448 - - 498
Total revenue ! 44,256 101,843 55,682 - 201,781
|
EQUITY IN SUBSIDIARIES EARNINGS 91.447 - - {91.447)
i
COSTS AND EXPENSES: |
Property operating I 10,054 28,560 12,741 51,355
Management and leasing services | - 229 - - 229
Rental propeny deprecialion and amortization 6,292 18,174 9.001 - 33467
General and administrative 16,962 2478 294 - 19,734
Total costs and expenses | 33,308 49,441 22,036 104,785
INCOME BEFORE OTHER INCOME AND
EXPENSES, MINORITY INTEREST AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS ! 102,395 52402 33,646 (91.447) 96,996
OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES!
Investment income ‘ 7,503 280 158 7941
Interest expense ' (22,891) (7.910) (16,507 ; (47,308)
Amortization of deferred financing fees {1,209) (57) {183) - (1,449)
INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 85,798 44715 17,114 (91.447) 56,180
Minority Intcrest ; (78) - (110) - (188)
|
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPFRA'HONS 85.720 44,715 17.004 (91,447) 55,992
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS: !
Operations of income-producing properties sold or
held for sale . 3,155 20,305 1,829 - 25,289
Gain on disposal of income-producing propertics 3,866 3,837 3,757 - 11,460
Income from discontinued opcmtior:ls 7,021 24,142 5,586 - 36,749
NET INCOME ' § 92741 $ 68,857 s 22590 3§ (91.447) s 92,741
I———— p——————aa————} B ——]
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flows Combined Non-

for the year ended Equity One, Guaruntor Guarantor

December 31, 2007 Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Consolidated

(In thousands)

Net cash provided by operating activities {17,171) 95,255 28,932 107,016

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to and purchase of rental property (2,421) (106,323) 1,157 (107.587)
Purchased s of land held for development - (2.529) (122) (2.651)
Additions to construciton in progress (58) (14,256) (398) (15,212)
Proceeds from disposal of rental properties 20,833 37,793 3.647 71,273
Increase in cash held in escrow (52,913) - . (52,913)
Proceeds from sale of securities 2,822 - - 2.822
Cash used 10 purchase securitics {1.181) - (1.181)
Addtions to notes receivable ) - (14) ()]
Proceeds from repayment of notes receivable 4,706 26 13 4,745
Increase in deferred financing costs (3.884) - . (3.884)
Advances from (10) affiliates 22.271 (3.157) {19,114) -
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (825) (88.460) {15.317) (104.602)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of mongage notes payable (1.860) (6.795) {13.615) (22,270)
Net repayments under revolving credit focilities (39.500) - - (39,500)
Proceeds from senior debt offering 148.874 - - 148.874
Cash paid for sett!ernent of interest rate contracts (2,498) - . (2,498)
Increase in deferred financing costs (878) - - (878)
Stock issuance costs 3,882 . - 3.882
Cash dividends paid (o stockholders (88.599) - - (88.599)
Distributions 10 minority interest (¢1FA) - - (12
Net cash used in financing activities 19,309 (6.795) {13.615) (1,101)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,313 - - 1.313

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period Yy 1315 3 - -3 1373
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Ceondensed Statement of Cash Flows Combined Non-

for the year ended Equity One, Guarantor Guaruntor

December 31, 2006 Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Consolidated

{In thousands)

Net cash provided by operating aclivitics ¥ (39286) % 106419  § 27510 $ 94,643

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to and purchase of rental propenty (5,648 (72,671) (107,687) (186,006)
Land held for development - (20,740) (25,044) (45,784)
Additions to construction in progress (2,462) 32,011 (12,956) (47.429)
Proceeds from disposal of rental properties 2,569 381,348 27,173 411,090
Increase in cash held in escrow (1,547 - - (1,547
Increase in deferred leasing costs, (810) (4.505) (848) (6.163)
Additions to notes receivable (18) (15 (33)
Proceeds from repayment of notes reccivable 5,693 28 14 5,735
Proceeds from sale of securities * 12,852 - . 12,852
Cash used to purchase securities ! (434) - (29.403) (29,837
Advences from (1o} affiliaes 151,090 (330,322) 1719.232 -
Distributions from unconsolidated joint ventures from sale
of propeny - - 1,935 1,935
Net cash (used in) provided by investing aclivities 161,303 (78.891) 32401 114,813

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of mongage noles payable (1,619 (27.350) (59.911) (B8.830)
Nei repayments under revelving credit facilities (16.665) - . {16.665)
Proceeds from senior debt offering 246,868 - - 246.868
Repayment of senior debt (125,000) - - (125.000)
Increase in deferred financing costs (1,947 - . (1.947)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 8.083 - . 8,083
Repayment of notes receivable from issuance of common
stock 65 - - 65
Stock issuance costs (69} - - 69
Repurchase of common stock (69,103) - - (69,103)
Cush dividends paid to stockholders (162,704} - - (162,704)
Distributions to minority interest’ (28) (178) - (206)
Nex cash used in financing activities (122,119) (27.528) (59511 (209,558)

Net increase in cash and cash equivdlents (102) - - (102)

Cash and cash equivalents ot beginning of the period 102 - - 102
Cash and cash cquivalents ot end of the period > - 3 3 - > -
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flows Combined Non-

for the year ended Equity One, Guarontor Guarantor
December 31, 2005 Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Consolidated
{[n thousands)

Net cash provided by operating activities 3 2477y $ 90685 § 28984 8 117,192

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to and purchase of rental propenty (2.673) (31,991) {(L4LT) (36,081)
Land held for development (1,215) (28,075) - (29,290)
Additions to construction in progress - (15.551) (7.507) (23,058}
Proceeds from disposal of rental propenties 15.482 12,682 15.860 44,024
Increase in cash held in escrow (11} - - (+1)]
Increase in deferred leasing costs (1,239) (3.962) (676) (5.877}
Additions to notes receivable (4.215) (12) - (4,227)
Proceeds from repayment of notes receivable 18 17 5 40
Proceeds from sale of secunities 32,764 - - 32,764
Cash used to purchase securilies (12,212) - (48.391) (60,603)
Advances from (to) affiliates (36.139) (1.915) 38,054 -
Distributions to unconsolidated joint ventures from sale of
property - - (12 {12)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (9,480) (68,807} (4,084) (82,371)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of morigage notes payable (1.513) (21.828) (24,790) (48.131)
Net repayments under revolving credit facilitics (53,835) - . {53,835)
Proceeds from senior debt offering 118,606 - - 118.606
Increase in deferred financing costs (461) - - (463)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock .50 - - 31,510
Stock issuance costs (181) - - (181)
Repayment of notes receivable from issuance of common
stock 85 - - BS
Cash dividends paid to stockholders (87.272) . - (87.272)
Distributions (o minerity interest - (50) (110} (160}
Net cash used in financing activitics 6,937 (21.878) (24.900) (39.841)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (5.020) -, - (5.020)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the peried 5122 - - 5022
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 3 104 3 - 3 - 3 102
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9. Property Held for Sale and Dispositions
Portfolio Dispositions '

In April 2006, we sold 29 of our properties located in Texas (the “Texas Properties™) to EQYInvest Texas, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, in which we retained a 20% interess {the “JV"). In connection with the sale, we
agreed 1o manage and lease the Texas Properties on behalf of the JV. In December 2006, we disposed of our 20%
interest in the JV, bui conlinued to manage and lease the properties under the management agreement.  As of May
31, 2007, all services provided under that agreement ceased.

We had guaranteed the joint venture an operating return based on certain predetermined targets for the first twelve
months following the sale, which required us to pay to the joint venture an amount up to $2.0 million in the event
that the joint venture did not achieve its targeted operating returns. We had also agreed to fund remaining
construction cosis to complete various projects in an amount up to $1.6 million. In August 2007, we paid
approximately $1.5 million and $1.6 million, respectively, for each guarantee. As of December 31, 2007, we have
fulfilled all obligations related 1o the joint venture.

Individual Property Dispositions
As of December 31, 2007, one parcel of land was held for sale with a net book value of $323,000.
The following table reflects individval properties sold during 2007:

Gross
Leasable Sales Gain (Joss)
Date Property : City, State Aren Price On Sale
{bs square fect) {In thoesands)
01/11/07  Pinhook Plaza Office Building Lafayette, LA 4406 $ 350 s 266
03/14/07  Euslis Squarc Shopping Center Eustis. FL. 126.791 7.100 1,454
111907 Commonwealth Jacksonville, FL 81,467 1,307 3.290
12/11/07  Monument Point Jacksonville, FL 75,128 6,000 2,664
I211707  Skipper Palms ' Tampa, FL 86,355 7.750 2,656
12/13/07  Colony Square Fitzgerald. GA 50.000 575 (13
1213107 West Towne Square Rome, GA £9.596 3575 (92}
122007 Parkmore Plaza . Pensacola, FL 159.093 9.100 3047
1220/07  Pensacola Plaza Pensacola, FL 56.098 2,800 678
12/20/07  Shelby Plaza Shelby, NC 103,200 3,815 986
122007 Smyma Village Smyrma, TN 83,334 8,350 2,023
12720/07  Spring Vulley ' Columbia, SC 75415 7.900 1,698
12R0/07 Westgale Mobile, AL 64,378 5100 820
12/31/07  Plaza North Hendersonville, NC 47.240 2.300_ {826}
Subtotal $ 72022 5 18651
Sale of rral estale
03/22/07 Vcnice Plaza Outparcel Venice, FL NiA § 1500 % 1,028
06/13/07  Shops of Hampton Qaks Ourparcel Atlonia, GA N/A 1,300 303
06/29/07  Winchester Plaza Ouparcel Huntsville, AL N/A 550 254
08/31/07  Winchesier Plaza Quipareel Huntsville, AL N/A 575 408
1171907 Commonwealth Land Jacksanville, FL N/A 1,118 347
12/20/07  Shelby Land Shelby, NC N/A 450 197
Subtotal $ 5493 3§ 2.5¥7
1
Total \ $ 71515 § 21,188
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Pursuant to SFAS No. 144, the accompanying statements of operations have been retrospectively adjusted 1o reflect
the classification of discontinued operations. The summary selecied operating results for income-producing
properties disposed of or designated as held for sale as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 with no significant
continuing involvement, are s follows:

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Rental Revenue: $ 8206 § 23237 $ 53458
Expenses:
Property operating expenses 2,635 6,193 13,451
Rental property depreciation and
amortization 1,411 4,479 9,980
Interest expense 444 1,539 4,675
Amonization of deferred financing
fees 4 i8 63
Other (income) expense 2,000 1,861 -
Opecrations of income-producing
properties sold or held for sale 3 1,712 § 9,147 § 25239

10. Stockholders’ Equity and Earnings Per Share

Common Stock

The following table reflects the change in number of shares of common stock issued for the year ended December
31,2007

Common Options
Stock Exercised Total
{In thousands)

Board of Directors* 29 141 170
Officers* 83 267 350
Employees and other 20 5 25
Total 132 413 545

*Net of shares surrendered on the exercise of options.

Common Stock Repurchases

In May 2006, we commenced a program to repurchase up 1o $100.0 million of the Company's outstanding common
stock. During the period May 2006 through December 2006, through periodic open-market transactions or through
privaiely negotiated transactions, we repurchased and retired 3.0 million common shares, at an average purchase
price of $22.68 per share, at an aggregate cost of $69.1 million. No common stock repurchases were made during
2007,

F-35




Dividend Reinvestment Plan ,

We had a Dividend Reinvestmént and Share Purchase Plan whereby stockholders could invest cash distributions and
make optional cash purchases of our common stock. Effective March 2006, the plan was suspended, with
approximately 5.4 million shares siill available for sale,

Earnings per Share

The following is a reconciliation of the amounts of net income and shares of common stock used in calculating basic
and diluted per-share income (“EPS™) for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2007
Income Shares Per Share
{Numerator) (Denominator) Amouni
' (In thousands, cxcept per share amounts)

Net Income ! $ 69,385
I
Basic EPS
Income attributabie (o0 common stockholders 3 69.385 73.09 $ 0.95

EfTeet of Dilutive Secur!lies

Walden Woods Village, Lid, 112 94
Unvested restricted stock using the treasury method 99
Commen stock options using the treasury method 78
112 271
Diluted EPS
Income attributable 10 common stockholders
assuming conversions 3 69,497 73362 _$ 0.95

Options to purchase 119,660 shares of common stock at prices ranging from $26.41 o $28.05 per share were
outstanding at December 31, 2007, bul were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because the oplion price
was greater than the average market price of common shares.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
] Income Shares Per Share
{Numerator) {Denominator) Amount
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Net Income s 176,955
Basic EPS
Income '.ltu-ihum'l:vteI to comman stockholders £ 176.955 73,598 $ 2.40
Effect of Dilutive Securities

Walden Woods Villuge, Lid. 206 9%

Unvested cestricted stock - 439

Srock options - 193

206 726

Diluted EPS

Income attribulable 10 common stockholders

assuming conversions 3 177,161 74324 _$ 2.38
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Options to purchase 1.8 million shares of common stock at prices ranging from $24.12 to $28.05 per share were
outstanding at December 31, 2006, but were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because the option price
was greater than the average market price of common shares.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
(Tn thousands, except per share amounts)

Income Shaores Per Share
{Numerator) {Denominator} Amount

Net Income s 92,741
Basic EPS
Income attributable to common stockholders $ 92,741 73.840 8 1.26
Effect of Dilulive Securities

Walden Woods Village, Ltd. 109 94

Unvested restricted stock - 575

Stock options - 281

109 950

Diluted EPS

[ncome attributable 10 common stockholders

assuming conversions $ 92,850 74,790 _§ 1.24

Options to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at $23.52 per share were outstanding a1 December 31, 2005, but
were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because the option price was greater than the average market
price of common shares.
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. Share-Based Compensation and Other Benefit Plans

On October 23, 1996, we adopted the Equity One, Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”), which was amended
December 10, 1998. The purpose of the Plan is to further cur growth by oflering incentives to our directors, officers
and other key employees, and to increase stock ownership by these directors, officers and employees. The effective
date of the Plan was January 1, 1996. The maximum number of shares of common stock as to which options may be
granted under this Plan is 1.0 million shares, which is reduced each year by the required or discretionary grant of
options. The term of cach oplion is determined by the compensation committee of our Board of Directors, but in no
event can be longer than ten years from the date of the grant. The vesting of the options is determined by the
committee, in its sole and absolute discretion, at the date of grant of the optioa.

On June 23, 2000, we, with sharcholder approval, adopted the Equity One 2000 Executive Incentive Cormpensation
Plan (the 2000 Plan™). The 2000 Plan provides for grants of stock oplions, stock appreciation rights (“SARs"),
restricted stock, and deferred stock, other stock-related awards and performance or annual incentive awards that may
be settled in cash, stock or other property. The persons eligible (o receive an award under the 2000 Plan are our
officers, directors, employees and independent contractors. Following an amendment to the 2000 Pilan, approved by
our stockhalders on June 4, 2007, the total number of shares of common stock that may be issuable under the 2000
Plan is 8.5 million shares, plus (i) the number of shares with respect to which options previously granted under the
2000 Plan terminate without being exercised, and (ii) the number of shares that are surrendered in payment of the
exercise price for any awards or any lax withholding requirements. [n an amendment to the 2000 Plan approved by
our stockholders in July 2004, the compensation committee expanded the list of business criteria that the commitice
may use in granting performance awards and annua) incentive awards under the 2000 Plan intended to qualify for
the exclusions from the limitations of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code and modified the definition of a
“change of control™ to include, in addition 1o other instances, following approval by stockholders of any
reorganization, merger or consolidation or other transaction or series of transactions if persons who were
stockholders immediately prior to such reorganizalion, merger or consolidation or other transaction do not,
immediately thereafter, own more than 509 of the combined voling power of the reorganized, merger or
consolidated company’s then outstanding voting securities (previously the threshold was 26%). The 2000 Plan will
terminate on the earlier of the day beforc the tenth anniversary of the stockholders’ approvat of the 2000 Plan or the
date on which all shares reserved for issuance under the 2000 Plan have been issued.

Options 1

As of December 31, 2007, we have options outstanding under four share-based compensations plans. The 2000 Plan
authorized the grant of options, common stock and other share-based awards for up to 8.5 millton shares of common
stock, of which 3.7 million shares are available for issuance. The IRT Propenty Company 1998 Long Term
Incentive Plan similarly authorized the grant of opiions, common stock and other share-based awards for up to
1,462,500 shares of common stock, of which 14,400 shares are available for issuance. The Plan authorized the grant
of option awards for up to 1.0 million shares of common stock, all of which have been issued. The IRT Property
Company 1989 Stock Option Plan authorized the grant of stock options and other share-based awards for up to
956,250 shares of common stock, of which no shares are available for issuance. In addition, in connection with the
initial employment of Jeffrey S. Olson, our Chief Executive Officer, we issued Mr. Olson 364,660 oplions to
purchase 364,660 shares of common stock.

The 1erm of each award is determined by our compensation committee, but in no event can be longer than ten years
from the date of the grant, The vesting of the awards is determined by the committee, in its sole and absolute
discretion, a1 the date of grant of the award, Dividends are paid on unvested shares of restricted stock. Certain
oplions and share awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is o change in control, as defined in the 2000 Plan.

The fair value of each option award during 2007 is estimated on the date of grant using the binomial option-pricing
model. Expected volatilities. dividend yields, employee exercises and employee terminations are primarily based on
historical data. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. We
measure compensation costs for restricted stock awards based on the fair value of our common stock at the date of
the grant and charge to expense such amounts to earnings ratably over the vesting period. For grants with a graded
vesting schedule we have elected to recognize compensation expense on a straight-linc basis.

{

]
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The following is a summary of our stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2008
Welghied-
Shures Under  Average Exercise  Sharen Under Welghted-A verage Shares Under Weighted-Averzge
Optlon Price Option Exercise Price Opton Exercise Price

{In thousands) {In thousands} (In thousands)
Outstanding m the beginning of the year 2437 8 2182 977§ 16.00 1481 s 1452
Granied 305 2340 1543 24.77 106 089 :
Exercised {412) 11.36 (381 14,85 (5%6) 1126
Forfeited or expired (5) 728 - - (14) 1293
Outstanding a1 the end of the year 2,125 H 23.85 2437 H 22.82 977 3 16.00

—— ——} —— ———

Veated of the end of year 678 § 2.29 168 3 14,93 428 ] 1411
Weighted avernge foir value of options
granted during the year 5 143 § 3.17 ] 448

Cash received from stock options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $3.8
million, $3.0 million and $2.1 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2007, the aggregate intninsic value of outstanding unvested options that are expected to vest was
less than the exercise price and the intrinsic value of options exercisable was $498,300.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $3.9
million, $3.6 million and $7.8 million, respectively,

The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the grant date using a binomial option-pricing model with the
following assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005 |
Dividend Yield 5.1% 4.7% - 50% 5.0% f
Risk-free interest rate 41%-49% 4.6% -4.8% 4.0%-42% |
Expected option life (years) 4.3 3.0-33 10 '
Expected volatility 20.0% - 22.0% 20.0% 19.0% - 22.0%

In determining the fair value of the option grants made during 2007, management included in the assumptions the
probabitity of involuntary early exercise based on historical patterns, actuarial dawa, and potential change of control
events.

The options were granted with an exercise price equivalent to the current stock price on the grant date or the ten-day
average of the stock price prior to the grant date.
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The following table summarizes information about outstanding stock options as of December 31, 2007:

Options
Options Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted
Number of Average Number of
’ Options Remalning Options
) Qutstanding Contractua) Life FExercisabie
) (In thousands}) (In years) (In thousands)
Exercise Price
$10.00-10.99 42 0.80 42
$11.00-11.99 1 0.50 l
$13.00-13.99 5 440 5
$17.00-17.99 135 6.00 135
$23.00-23.99 285 9.80 10
$24.00-24.99 1,237 8.70 310
$25.00-25.99 500 8.90 125
$26.00-26.99 95 8.80 42
$28.00-28.99 25 8.90 8
2,325 678

Restricted Stock Grants

Our compensation committee grants restricted stock 1o our officers, directors, and other employees. Vesting periods
for the restricted stock are determined by our compensation committee, We measure compensation costs for
restricted stock awards based on the fair value of our common stock at the date of the grant and expense such
amounts ratably over the vesting period. As of December 31, 2007, we had 492,000 shares of non-vested restricted

stock grants outstanding. :

The following table provides a summary of restricted stock aclivity:

Weighted-

. Unvested Average

[ Shares Price

: (In thousands)
Unvested at December 31, 2006 381 $ 23.58
Granted 393 26.38
Vested (252) 24.13
Forfeited (30) 2375
Unvested at December 31, 2007 492 3 25.52

As of December 31, 2007, there was $16.4 million of tolal unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested
share-based compensation arrangements (options and unvested restricted shares) granted under our plans. This cost
is expected to be recognized over the next 4.0 years. The total vesting-date value of the shares that vested during
the year ended December 31, 2007 was $4.0 million.
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401(k) Plan

We have a 401(k) defined comtribution plan (the “401(k) Plan™) covering substantially all of our officers and
employees which permits participants to defer compensation up to the maximum amount permitied by law. We
match 100% of each employee's contribution up to 3.0% of the employee’s annual compensation and, thereafter,
match 50% of the next 3.0% of the employee’s annual compensation. Employee’s contributions and our matching
contributions vest immediately. Our contributions to the 401(k) Plan for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005 were $249,000, $295,000, and $288,000, respectively. Effective January 1, 2007, the 401(k) Plan
discontinued purchasing publicly traded shares of the Company’s common stock as matching contributions.

Deferred Compensation Plan

During 2005, we established a non-qualified deferred compensation plan that permits eligible employees to defer a
portion of their compensation. The deferred compensation liability (included in accounts payable in the
accompanying balance sheet) was $569,000 at December 31, 2007. We have established a grantor trust (Rabbi
Trust) 10 provide funding for benefits payable under this plan. The assets held in the trust at December 31, 2007
amounted 10 $569.000. The Rabbi Trust’s assets consist of short-term cash investments and a managed portfolio of
equity securities. These assets are included in other assets in the accompanying balance sheets.

2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan {the “Purchase Plan™) (implemented in October 2004), our
employees, including our directors who are employees, are eligible to participate in quanierly plan offerings in which
payroll deductions may be used to purchase shares of our common stock. The purchase price per share is 90% of
the average closing price per share of our common stock on the NYSE on the five trading days that immediately
precede the date of purchase, provided, however, that in no event shall the exercise price per share of common stock
on the exercise date of an offering period be less than the lower 85% of (i) the market price on the first day of the
offering period or (ii) the markel price on the exercise date,

Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plans

Three of our executive officers are eligible for long-term incentive compensation subject to a performance-based
schedule at the end of an approximate four-year performance period. In order for participants to receive
compensation, our Total Shareholder Return (“TSR") over the performance period must exceed 6% and achicve a
certain spread against the average TSR of a defined peer group.

We determine the fair value of TSR grants annually based upon a Monte Carlo simulation model, and recognize

compensation expense accordingly over the vesting period. The level of cash compensation available depends on
the spread between our TSR and the average TSR of the peer group companies.
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12, Future Minimum Rental Income

Qur properties are leased to teriants under operating leases with expiration dates extending to the year 2032. Future
minimum renls under noncancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2007, excluding tenant reimbursements of
operating expenses and percentage rent based on tenants’ sales volume are as follows:

Year Ending Amount

{1n thousands)

. 2008 3 178,107
! 2009 157,233
' 2010 134,083
2011 111,144

2012 87,940

Thereafter 314,057

Total 5 982,564

13. Commitments and Contingent Linbilities

Lerters of Credit. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we have pledged letters of credit for $4.7 million and $6.1
million, respectively, as additional security for certain property matters. The letters of credit are generally secured
by our revolving credit facilities.

Construction Commitments. We have entered into construction commitments and, as of December 31, 2007, have
outstanding commitments of $8.1 million, based on current plans and estimates, in order to complete current
development and redevelopment projects. These obligations, comprised principally of construclion contracts, are
generally due as the work is performed and are expected to be financed by our available credit facilities.

Operating Lease Obligations. Centain of our properties are subject 10 ground leases, which are accounted for as
operating leases and have annua) obligations of approximately $100,000.

Non-Recourse Debt Guaramiees. Under certain of our non-recourse mortgage loans, we ¢ould, under certain
circumstances, be responsible for portions of the mortgage indebtedness in connection with certain customary non-
recourse carve-out provisions, such as environmental conditions, misuse of funds and material misrepresentations.
In our judgment, it would be extremely unlikely for us to incur any material lability under these guarantees that will
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, or cash flow.

Litigarion. We are subject to litigation in the normal course of business, none of which as of December 31, 2007 in
the opinion of management, will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, or
cash flows.

14. Environmental Matters

We are subject to numerous erivironmental laws and regulations. The operation of dry cleaning and gas station
facilities at our shopping centers are the principal environmental concerns. We require that the tenants who operate
these facilities do so in material compliance with current laws and regulations and we have established procedures
10 monitor their operations. Additionally, we use all legal means to cause tenants to remove dry cleaning planis from
our shopping centers. Where available, we have applied and been accepied into stale sponsored environmental
programs. Several properties in the portfolio will require or are currently undergoing varying levels of
environmental remediation. However, we have environmental insurance policies covering most of our properties.
Management belicves thai the ullimate disposition of currently known environmental maiters will not have a
material effect on our financial position, liquidity or operations.

1
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15. Subsequent Events

Subsequent (o year end, we entered into a joint venture with Global Retail Investors, LLC (GRI), an entity formed
by an affiliate of First Washington Reaity, Inc. and California Public Employees’ Retirement System, to invest in
shopping centers throughout the United States. The joint venture will be 90% owned by GRI and 10% owned by
one of our affiliates, We will manage and lease properties acquired by the joint venture. As its first investment, the
new joint venture acquired a Class-A grocery-anchored shopping center for approximately 337 million. The
property is located in Miami, Florida.

16. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter m Quarter M Quarter Y Quarter o Total ¥

2007:
Total revenues $ 61470 § 63153 0§ 61313 § 60672 § 246613

Income from continuing operations $ 17085 § 12688 § 10004 § 8911 § 48788
Net income $ 20019 $ 12868 § 10666 § 25832 § 69,385
Basic per share data

Income from continving operations 5 024 3§ 0.17 % 014 $ 012 § 0.67
Nei Income hy 027 § 018 $ 015 $ 035  § 0.95
Diluted per share data

Income from continuing operations $ 023 % 017§ 014 012 § 0.67
Net income $ 027 § 017 3 014 $ 035 § 0.95

" Reclassified to reflect the reporting of discontinued operations.
@ The sum of quarterly carnings per share amounts may differ from annual camings per share.
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First Second Third Fourth
Quarter”  Quarter  Quarter”  Quarter™  Total?

2006:
Total revenues $ 53404 $ 55199 § 55423 % 6095 S 224117

Income from continuing operations ~ § 15102 § 18358 § 10615 $ 8565 § 52,640
Netincome ' $ 22365 % 111,347 5 14120 0§ 29,123  § 176955
Basic per shure data

Income from continuing operations 5 020 $ 025 3 015 $ oaz 3 0.71
Net [ncome 5 030 § 1.50 % 019 § 040 $ 240

Diluted per share data

Ircome from continuing operations 5 020 $ 029 § 0.14 $ 012 s 0N
Net income $ 029 $ 143  § 0.19 $ 040 S 2.38

™ Reclassified to reflect the reporting of discontinued operations.

™ The sum of quarerly earnings per sharc amounts may differ from annual eamings per share.
N .

+
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Property

Locetlon

2400 PGA,

4101 South 1-B3 Indtustrial
Alafayr Commons
Alsfayr Village
Ambassador Row
Ambassuior Row Courtyard
Athiic Village

Banco Popuixr Building
Bay Poicte Plara
Reaociere Yillage
Bellth Towne Viltage
Bird Lodium
Bluchoonct Village
Blufls Sqaure Shoppes
Boca Village

Baoyoion Plsza
BridgeMil

Brookside Plazs
Buckhes) Slation
Buter Creek
Carrollnood
Casbenere Comers
Cotere Poie Plaza
Chape] Tral) Pazs
Charkinte Square
Chaztain Square
Chebiea Place
Chestooy Sqoare
Commeree Crouing
Concord Shopping Faza
Comway Crossing
Coral Reef Shopping Cemer
Corporsie
Couniry Club Flaza
Countrytide Shops
Crosgroads Square
Cutles Ridge

CVS Plus

Dardel Village

Dotphin Villags
Douglas Cormmona

£2 Nowillo

Elmwood Qals
Fairview Oals

Faren Village

Ft. Caroline

Gallerla

Grand Muarche
Gnanland Crosiing

Medical & Movhants
Middle Beach Shopping Cen
Midpoira Cenzer

Milesone Plars

e R L L LR I VR L L EEEEE L L IS TR P R L EE R IR R R EEERE R R A FERLIE EEEEE IR T

SCHEDULE 11
Equity One, Inc.

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
: December 31, 2007
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Reconciliation of total real estate
carrying value:

Balance at beginning of year

Additions during period:
Improvements
Acquisitions !

Deductions during period:
Cost of real estate sold/written off
Balance at end of year

Reconciliation of accumulated
depreciation: !

Balance at beginning of year

Depreciation expense

Cust of real estale sold/written of{

Balance at end ol year

Aggregate cost for federal

SCHEDULE HI

Equity One, Inc.
REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
December 31, 2007
Year ended Yearended  Year ended
12/31/07 £2/31/06 123105

2,030,947 $ 2020475 § 1,970,069

31,258 36,698 30.293

139,446 270,931 54054
(71.761) (297,157) (33,938)

2,129.8%0 § 2030947 § 2020475
(144,829) § (132925) § (96,382)
(39.921) (37.684) (38,581}

12,009 25,780 2,038
(172.651) $ (144.829) § (132,925

1.887,755 $ 1,999,063 § (825,102

income tax purposes
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SCHEDULE 1V

Equity One, Inc.
MORTGAGE LOANS ON REAL ESTATE
December 31, 2007
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Balance at beginning of period $ 4700 3 10381 3 6,18]
Additions during period:

New loans - - 4,215
Reductions during period:

Collection of principal (4,700) (5,681) (15}
Balance at end of peried $ - % 4700 § 10381

e e ee—————
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT NO. DESCRIPTION

10.21 Fourth Amendment to Stockholders Agreement

12.1 Ratio of Eamings to Fixed Charges

21.t List of Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

3.l Centification of Chicf Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
312 Cc(r,tt;lglgfgon of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
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Equity One, [n¢

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

For the Period Ended December 31, 2007
(in thousands, except ralio computation)

{
L]
L]

Income from Continuing Operations !

Adjustments:
Minority interest

Equity in (income} / loss of unconsolidated joint ventures

Fixed charges

.- ) - [
Disiributed income of equity investees

Capilatized interest
Earnings, os defined

Fixed Charges:
Interest expense
Capitalized intcrest

Amortization of debt premiums / discounts

Amortization of loan lees
Flxed Charges

{
i

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges ~

Exhible 12.1
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
48788 % 52640 $ 55992 5 45528 § 31,795
112 206 188 576 756
- {1,650) - - -
73.639 64,577 51.270 50,478 40,459
- 3308 (12) 3119 7.654
(3,194) (5.820) {3,154) (3,204) (3,822)
119345 & 113,261 §$ 110,084 § 96497 § 76842
66,663 & 53983 $ 47308 § 40987 § 32157
3,194 5.820 1354 3,204 3822
2,102 3,289 5,159 4,958 3,584
1,680 1,485 1.449 1,329 £96
73639 % 64577 % 5127 § 50478 0§ 40459
1.62 1.75 1.92 1.91 1.90
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Exhibit 21.1

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES OF EQUITY ONE, INC,

Below is a list of the direct and indirect subsidiaries of Equity One, Inc., 1 Maryland corporation, and the

corresponding states of organization:

Name of Entity

Boca Village Square, Inc.

Boca Village Square, Ltd.

Boynton Plaza Shopping Center, Inc.
Cashmere Developments, Inc. *
Centrefund (US), LLC *

CDG Park Place LLC "

Centrefund Development Group LLC "
Centrefund Realty (U.5.) Corporation *
Dolphin Village Partners, LLC @
Equity (Park Promenade} Inc.

Equity One (Alafuya Village) Inc.
Equity One (Andros) Inc.

Equity One (Belfair) inc.

Equity One (Bridgemill) Inc.

Equity One {Buckhead Manager) Inc.
Equity One (Buckhead Station) LLC
Equity One (Commonweahth) Inc, *
Equity One (Delta) Inc. *

Equity One {Florida Ponifolio) [nc, *
Equity One {Forest Village) Inc.

Equity One (Lake Mary) Inc.

Equity One (Louisiana Ponfolio) LLC *
Equity One (Mariner) Inc.

Equity One (Midpoint) Inc.

Equity One (North Pon) Inc. *

Equity One (Northeast Pontfolio) Inc. *
Equity One {Pine Island) Inc.

Equity One (Point Royale) Inc. *

Equity One (Presidential Markets} Inc.
Equity One (Shappes of Sunset) LLC
Equity One (Sky Lake) Inc. *

Equity One (Southeast Portfelio) Inc. *
Equity One {Southpoint} Inc.

Equity One (Sparkleberry Kohl’s) Inc.
Equity One (Sparkleberry Kroger) Inc.
Equity One (Summerlin) Inc. *

Equity One (Sunlake) Inc. *

Equity One (Waiden Woods) Inc. *
Equity One (Webster) Inc.

Equity One {Westport) Inc.

Equity One Acquisition Corp. ¥

Equity One Realty & Management FL, Inc. *
Equity One Realty & Management NE, Inc. *
Equity One Realty & Management SE, Inc. *
Equity One Realty & Management Texas, Inc. *
EQY Ponfolio [nvestor (GRI) Inc.

EQY Realty & Management (GRI) Inc.

State of Organization

Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Delaware
Texas
Delaware
Delaware
Flonda

Texas

Florida
Florida

South Carolina
Georgia
Georgia
Georgia
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Florida
Massachusetts
Florida
Florida
Georgia
Florida
Florida
Georgia
Florida

South Carolina
South Carolina
Florida
Florida
Florida
Massachusetts
Florida
Florida
Florida
Massachuselts
Georgia
Texas

Florida
Florida




EQY Realty & Management Texas, LP Texas

EQY Realty & Management Texas GP LLC Florida
EQY (Southwest Portfolio) Inc. * Texas
Gazit (Meridian) Inc, * Florida
IRT Alabama, Inc. * Alabama
IRT Capital Corporation 1 * Georgia
IRT Coral Springs, LLC Delaware
IRT MacLand Poinie, LLC Delaware
IRT Management Company * Georgia
iRT Parkwest Crossing, LLC Nerth Carolina
IRT Partners L.P. * Georgia
Louisiana Holding Corp. * Florida
Marco Town Cenler, nc, Florida
Parcel F, LLC * Florida
Prosperity Shopping Center Corp. * Florida
Sawgrass Promenade, Inc. Florida
Shoppes at Jonathan's Landing, Inc. * Florida
Skipper Palms Propenies, Inc. Florida
Southeast U.S. Holdings B.V. The Netherlands
Southeast U.S. Holdings Inc. * Florida
Sunlake — Equity One LLC ® Delaware
The Bluffs Shopping Center Corporation Florida
The Meadows Shopping Center, LLC * Florida
The Shoppes of Eastwood, LLC * Florida
The Shoppes of Ibis, LLC Florida
The Shoppes of North Port, Lid. Florida
Turkey Lake Shopping Center, Inc. Florida
UIRT - Lake St Charles, L.L.C. Flonida
UIRT - Rosemeade, Inc. Texas
UIRT - Skipper Paims, L.L..C. Florida
Walden Woods Village, Ltd. Florida
West Hills Shopping Center, Inc. Florida

™ CDG Park Place LLC is 100% owned by Centrefund Development Group LLC which is 50%
indirectly owned by Equity One, Inc.

Equity One, Inc. owns a 50% membership imierest in Dolphin Village Partners, LLC

@ Equity One, Inc. owns a 60?0 membership interest in Sunlake - Equity One LLC

@

*Guarantors
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form $-3 No. 333-98775 and Form §-8
Nos. 333-99597, 333-103368 and 333-118347) of Equity One, Inc. and subsidiaries and in the related Prospectuses
of our repons dated February 21, 2008, with respect (o the consolidated financial statements and schedules of Equity
One, Inc. and subsidiaries, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Equity One, Inc. and
subsidiaries included in this Annual Repon (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2007,

fs/ Emst & Young LLP
Certified Public Accountants
Fort Lauderdale, Florida
February 21, 2008




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Jeffrey S. Otson, certify that:,

L.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Equity One, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
1o state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, nol misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual repon;

Based on my knowledge, the financial stalements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition. results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The company’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the company and
have:

a Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures 1o be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
company, in¢luding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known 1o us by others within those
enlities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the company's internal control over linancial reporting that
occurred during the company’s most recent fiscal quartec (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the coimpany’s internal cenirol over financial reporting: and

The company’s other centifying officer(s) and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal contro! over financial reponing, to the company's auditors and the audit commitiee of the
company’s board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a, All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemmal conirol

over ﬁnnnciall reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company's ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over {inancial reporting.

Date: February 22, 2008 fs/ JEFFREY S. OLSON

Jeffrey S. Olson
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1, Gregory R. Andrews, certify that:

1.

2.

1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Equity One, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact nccessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financiat condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual repont;

The company’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(F) and 15d-15(f}) for the company and
have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that materia! information relating to the
company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such intemal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding 1he reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the company's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the company’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the company’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely 1o materiully
affect, the company’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The company’s other certifying officer(s) and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the company’s auditors and the audit commitiee of the
company's board of dircctors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencics and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invelves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date February 22, 2008 /s GREGORY R. ANDREWS

CGregory R. Andrews
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

E-?




, EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED
: PURSUANT TO SECTION %06 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as created by Section § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned
officers of Equity One, Inc. (the ;"Company“) hereby certify, to such officers’ knowledge, that:

() The accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 (the
“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicabie, of the
Secunities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(ii) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and resulils of operations of the Company.

1
Date: Febrary 22, 2DQ8 /s/ JEFFREY S. OLSON
| Jeffrey S. Olson
1 Chief Executive Officer
|
Date: February 22, 2008 /s GREGORY R. ANDREWS

! Gregory R. Andrews
! Executive Vice President and

I Chief Financial Officer
i

1

A signed original of this wriuen: statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be
retained by the Company and furnished 1o the Securities and Exchange Commission o its staff upon request.
|

The foregoing certification is being furnished as an exhibit to the Report pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of Regulation
5-K and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and, accordingly, is not being [iled with the Securities and
Exchange Commission as part of the Report and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the
Company under the Securities A¢t of 1933 or the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934 (whether made before or after the
date of the Repon, irrespective o!‘ any general incorporation language contained in such filing).

1

1




1600 N.E. Miami Gardens Drive
North Miami Beach, Florida 33179
(305)947-1664

April 17, 2008
Dear stockholder;

The board of directors and officers of Equity One, Inc., 8 Maryland corporation, join us in extending to you
a cordial invitation to attend the 2008 annual meeting of our stockholders. This meeting will be held on Tuesday,
May 27, 2008, at 10:00 a.m., local time, at the Westin Diplomat Resort and Spa, 3555 South Ocean Drive,
Hollywood, Flortda 33019,

Pursuant to the new rules reccntly adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission, we have provided
access to our proxy materials over the Internet.  Accordingly, we are sending a Notice of Internet Availability of
Proxy Materials, or E-proxy notice, on or about April 17, 2008 to our stockholders of record on March 31, 2008,
The E-proxy notice contains instructions for your use of this new process, including how (o access our proxy
statement and annual report and how to authorize your proxy to vote online. In addition, the E-proxy notice contains
instructions on how you may receive a paper copy of the proxy statement and annual report or elect to receive your
proxy statement and annual report over the Internet.

If you are unable to attend the meeting in person, it is very important that your shares be represented and
voted at the annua! meeting. You may authorize your proxy to vote your shares over the Internet as described in the
E-proxy noftice. Alternatively, if you received a paper capy of the proxy card by mail please complete, date, sign and
promptly return the proxy card in the self-addressed stamped envelope provided. You may also vote by telephone as
described in your proxy card. If you vote your shares over the Internet, return your proxy card by mail or vote by
telephone prior to the annual meeting, you may nevertheless revoke your proxy and cast your vote persanally at the
meeting.

]

We look forward to seeing you on May 27, 2008,

Sincerely,
(—? ‘r_——-—"-—-—-
CHAIM KATZMAN JEFFREY S. OLSON

Chairman of the Board Chigf Executive Officer




EQUITY ONE, INC,
1600 N.E. Miami Gardens Drive
North Miami Beach, Florida 33179

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To be held on May 27, 2008

To our stockholders:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2008 annual meeting of the stockholders of Equity One, Inc, 8
Maryland corporation, which will be held at The Westin Diplomat Resort and Spa, 3555 South Ocean Drive,
Hollywood, Florida 33019, on May 27, 2008 at 10:00 a.m., local time. At the meeting, stockholders will consider
and vote on the following matters:

1. The election of nine directors to hold office until our 2009 annual meeting of stockholders and until his
or her successor has been duly elected and qualifies;

2. The ratification of the appointment of Emst & Young LLP as our independent registered public
accounting firm for the 2008 fiscal year; and

3. Such other business as may properly come before the annual meeting, including any adjoumnments or
postponements of the meeting.

If you own shares of our common stock as of the close of business on March 31, 2008, you can vote those
shares by proxy or at the meeting.

Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting in person, please authorize your proxy to vote your shares
over the Internet, as described in the Notice of Intemet Availability of Proxy Materials, or E-proxy notice.
Alternatively, if you received a paper copy of the proxy card by mail, please mark, sign, date and promptly retun
the proxy card in the self-addressed stamped eavelope provided. You may also authorize your proxy to vote your
shares by telephone as described in your proxy card. Stockholders who vote over the Internet, who retumn proxy
cards by mail or vote by telephone prior to the meeting may nevertheless attend the mecting, revoke their proxies
and vote their shares in person.

By Order of the Board of Directors

ARTHUR L. GALLAGHER
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary

North Miami Beach, Florida
April 17, 2008
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2008 ANNUAL MEETING
OF
STOCKHOLDERS OF EQUITY ONE, INC.

PROXY STATEMENT

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

Why did I receive @ Notice of Internet
Availability of Proxy Materials?

Our board of directors is soliciting proxies to be
voted at our annual meeting. The annual meeting
will be held at the Westin Diplomat Resort and
Spa, 3555 South Ocean Drive, Hollywood,
Florida on Tuesday, May 27, 2008, at 10:00
am., local time. Pursuant to the new rules
recently adopted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, we have provided access to our
proxy materials over the Internet. Accordingly,
we are sending a Notice of Intenet Availability
of Proxy Materials, which is referred to herein as
the “E-proxy notice,” on or about April 17, 2008
to our stockholders of record on March 31, 2008.
The E-proxy notice and this proxy statement
summarize the information you need to know te
vote by proxy or in person at the annual meeting.
You do not need to attend the annual meeting in
person in order to vote.

When was the E-proxy notice mailed?

The E-proxy notice was mailed to stockholders
beginning on or about April 17, 2008.

Who is entitled to vote?

All stockholders of record as of the close of
business on March 31, 2008, the record date, are
entitled to vote at the annual meeting.

What is the quorum for the meeting?

A quorum at the annual meeting will consist of a
majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the
holders of all shares of common stock
outstanding, No business may be conducted at
the meeting if 2 quorum is not present. As of the
record date, 73,972,230 shares of common stock
were issued and outstanding. If less than a
majority of outstanding shares entitled to vote
are represented at the annual meeting, the
chairman of the mecting or a majority of the

shares so represented may adjoumn the annual
meeting to another date, time or place, not later
than 120 days after the original record date of
March 31, 2008. Notice need not be given of the
new date, time or place if announced at the
meeting before an adjournment is taken.

: How many votes do I have?

: Each share of our commen stock outstanding on

the record date is entitled to one vote on each
item submitted to you for consideration. Cur
stockholders do not have the right to cumulate
their votes for directors.

: How do I vote?

: Whether or not you plan to attend the annual

meeting, we urge you to authorize your proxy to
vote your shares over the Internet as described in
the E-proxy notice. Alternatively, if you received
a paper copy of the proxy card by mail please
complete, date, sign and promptly return the
proxy card in the self-addressed stamped
envelope provided. You may also authorize your
proxy to vote your shares by telephone as
described in your proxy card. Authorizing your
proxy over the Internet, by mailing a proxy card
or by telephone will not limit your right to attend
the annual meeting and vote your shares in
person. Your proxy (ome of the individuals
named in your proxy card) will vote your shares
per your instructions. If you fail to provide
instructions on a proxy properly submitted via
the Internet, mail or telephone, your proxy will
vote, as recommended by the board of directors,
to elect (FOR) the director nominees listed in
“Proposal 1 — Election of Directors” and in favor
of (FOR) “Proposal 2 - Ratification of the
Appointment of Independent Auditors.”




Q:

A:

o
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How do I vote my shares that are held by my
broker?

If you have shares held by a broker, you may
instruct your broker to .vote your shares by
following the instructions that the broker
provides to you. Most brokers allow you to
authorize your proxy by mail, telephone and on
the Internet.

What am f voting on?
You will be voting on:

» The election of nine directors to hold office
until our 2009 annual meeting of stockholders
and until his or her successor has been elected
and qualifies;

» The ratification of the appointment of Emst &
Young LLP to act as our independent auditors
for 2008; and

s Such other business as' may properly come
before the annual meeting, including any
adjournments or postponements thereof.

What vote is required to approve the proposals
assuming that a quorum is present at the
annual meeting?

Proposal 1; The election of the
Election of director nominces must be
Directors approved by a plurality of

the votes casi.

Proposal 2: Ratification of the
Ratification of  appointment of auditors
Independent requires a majority of the
Auditors

votes cast,

How are abstentions and broker non-votes
treated?

Pursuant to Maryland law, abstentions and
broker non-votes are counted as present for
purposes of determining the presence of &
quorum. For purposes ‘of the election of
directors and the vote on Proposal 2, abstentions
will not be counted as votes cast and will have
no effect on the result of the vote.

Under the rules of the New York Stock
Exchange, brokerage firrhs may have the
authority to vote their customers’ shares on
certain routine matters for which they do not
receive voting  instructions, including the
uncontested election of directors and ratification

©

of independent auditors. Therefore, brokerage
firms may vote such shares to approve Proposals
| and 2.

Will there be any other items of business on the
agenda?

The board of directors does not know of any
other matters that may be brought before the
annual meeting nor does it foresee or have
reason (o believe that proxy holders will have to
vole for substitute or alternate nominees for
¢lection to the board of directors. In the event
that any other matter should come before the
annual meeting or any nominee is not available
for election, the persons named in the enclosed
proxy will have discretionary authority to vote
all proxies with respect to such matters in
accordance with their discretion.

What happens if I submit my proxy without
providing voting instructions on all proposals?

Proxies properly submitted via the Internet, mail
or telephone will be voted at the annual meeting
in accordance with your directions. If the
properly-submitted proxy does not provide
voting instructions on a proposal, the proxy will
be voted to elect (FOR) the director nominees
listed in “Proposal 1 — Election of Directors”
and in favor of (FOR)“Proposal 2 -
Ratification of the Appointment of
Independent Auditors.”

Wiil anyone contact me regarding this vote?

No arrangements or contracts have been made
with any solicitors as of the date of this proxy
statement, although we reserve the right to
engage solicitors if we deem them necessary.
Such solicitations may be made by mail,
tclephone, facsimile, e-mail or personal
interviews.

Q: Who has paid for this proxy selicitation?

Qo

We have paid the entire expense of preparing,
printing and mailing the E-proxy notice and, to
the extent requested by our stockerholders, this
proxy statement and any additional materials
furnished to stockholders.

May stockholders ask questions at the annual
meeting?

Yes. There will be time allotted at the end of the
meeting when our representatives will answer
questions from the floor,




Q: How do I submit a proposal for the 2009

A:

ennual meeting?

Our bylaws currently provide that in order for a
stockholder to nominate a candidate for election
as a director at an annual meeting of
stockholders or propose business for
consideration at such meecting, written notice
gencrally must be delivered to our corporate
secretary not later than the close of business on
the 60th day, and not earlier than the close of
business on the 9Cth day, prior to the first
anniversary of the preceding year's annual
meeting. Accordingly, a stockhotder nomination
or proposal intended to be considered at the 2009
annual meeting, but not included in our proxy
statement, generally must be received by our
corporate secretary after the close of business on
February 27, 2009 and prior to the close of
business on March 28, 2009. Proposals should be
mailed to the attention of our corporate secretary
at 1600 N.E. Miami Gardens Drive, North
Miami Beach, Florida 33179. A copy of the
bylaws may be obtained from our corporate
secretary by written request to the same address.

Our board of directors will review any
stockholder proposals that are timely submitted
and will determine whether such proposals meet
the criteria for inclusion in the proxy solicitation
materials or for consideration at the 2009 annual
meeting. In addition, the persons named in the
proxies retain the discretion to vote proxies on
matters of which we are not properly notified at
our principal executive offices on or before
60 days prior to the annual meeting and also
retain such authority under certain other
circumstances.

0:

A:

What does it mean if I receive more than one E-
proxy notice?

It means that you have multiple accounts at the
transfer agent or with stockbrokers. Please
submit all of your proxies over the Intemet,
following the instructions provided in the E-
proxy notice, by mail or by telephone to ensure
that all of your shares are voted.

Can I change my vote after I have voted?

Yes. Proxics properly submitted over the
Internet, by mail or by telephone do not preclude
a stockholder from voting in person at the
meeting. A stockholder may revoke a proxy at
any time prior to its exercise by filing with our
corporate secretary a duly cxccuted revocation of
proxy, by properly submitting, either by Internet,
mail or telephone, a proxy to our corporate
secretary bearing a later date or by appearing at
the meeting and voting in person. Attendance at
the meeting will not by itself constitute
revocation of a proxy.

Can [ find additional Information on the
Company’s website?

Yes. Our  website is located  at
www.egquityone.nel. Although the information
contained on our website is not part of this proxy
statement, you can view additiona) information
on the websile, such as our corporate governance
guidelines, our code of conduct and ethics,
charters of our beard committees and reports that
we file with the SEC. A copy of our corporate
governance guidelines, our code of conduct and
ethics and cach of the charters of our board
committees may be obtained free of charge by
writing to Equity One, Inc., 1600 N.E. Miami
Gardens Drive, North Miami Beach, Florida
33179, Attention: Investor Relations.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND RELATED MATTERS

Our business, property and affairs are managed under the direction of our board of directors, except with
respect to those matters reserved for our stockholders. Our board of directors establishes our overall corporate
policies, reviews the performance of our senior management in executing our business strategy and managing our
day-to-day operations and acts as an advisor to our senior management. Cur board's mission is to further the long-
term interests of our stockholders. Members of the board of directors are kept informed of our business through
discussions with our management, primarily at meetings of the board of directors and its committees, and through
reports and analyses presented to them. Significant communications between our directors and senior management
occur apart from such meetings. The board and each of its committees — audit, compensation, executive and
nominating and corporate governance — also bave the autherity to retain, at our expense, cutside counsel, consultants
or other advisors in the performance of their dutics.

Charters for the audit, compensation and nominating and corporate governance committess, our corporate
governance guidelines and our code of conduct and ethics may be viewed on our website at www.equityone.net
under the “Corporate” tab. These documents are also available without charge to stockholders who request them by
contacting Equity One, Inc. — Irivestor Relations, at 1600 N.E. Miami Gardens Drive, North Miami Beach, Florida
33179, :

Independent Directors

Under the corporate governance standards of the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, at least a majority
of our directors and all of the members of our audit committee, compensation committes and nominating and
corporate governance committee must meet the test of “independence” as defined by the NYSE. The NYSE
standards provide that to qualify as an “independent” director, in addition to satisfying certain bright-line criteria,
the board of directors must affirmatively determine that a director has no material relationship with.us (either
directly or as a partner, sharcholder or officer of an organization that has a relationship with us). In 2007, the board
of directors determined that each of Messrs. Ben-Ozer, Cassel, Flanzraich, Hetz and Linneman and Ms. Cohen
satisfy the bright-line criteria and that none has a relationship with us that would interfere with such person’s ability
to exercise independent judgment as a member of our board. Therefore, following the election of the director
candidates at the annual meeting, we believe that 67% of our board will be independent under those rules.

Nominations for Directors

The nominating and corporate governance committee will consider nominees for director suggesied by
stockholders in written submissions to our corporate secretary. In evaluating nominees for director, the committee
does not differentiate between nominees recommended by stockholders and others. In identifying and evaluating
candidates to be nominated for director, the rominating committee reviews the desired experience, mix of skills and
other qualities required for appropriate board composition, taking into account the current board members and our
specific needs as well as those of the board. This process is designed so that the board of directors includes
members with diverse backgrounds, skills and experience, and represents appropriate financial and other expertise
relevant to our business. In addition to the personal qualifications of each candidate, the committee will consider,
among other things, the following:

s ifthe nominee will consent to being named in the proxy and serving, if elected, on the board;
whether the candidate qualifies as “independent” under the New York Stock Exchange rules;

» the nominee's biographical data (including other boards on which the nominee serves), business
experience and involvement in certain legal proceedings, including any involving our company;

e  transactions and relationships between the nominee and the recommending stockholder, on the one
hand, and us or our management, on the other hand;
the nominee's trading history in our stock and his or her current stock ownership information;
any material proceedings to which the nominee or his or her associates is a party that are adverse
to our company;

+ information regarding whether the recommending stockholder or nominee (or their affiliates) have
any plans or proposals for us; and

e  whether the nominating stockholder and nominee seck to use the nomination to redress personal




claims or grievances against us or others or to further personal interests or special interests not
shared by our stockholders at large.

The nominating committee also reserves the right to request such additional information as it deems appropriate.

Although the nominating committee’s charter permits it to engage a search firm to identify director
candidates, we did not pay fees to any third parties to assist in the process of identifying or evaluating director
candidates in 2007.

Executive Sesslons

Pursuant to our corporate governance guidelines, our non-management directors meet in separate executive
sesstons at least four times a year and as otherwise determined by the lead director (discussed below). The lead
director may invite our chief executive officer or others, as he deems appropriate, to attend a portion of these
sessions. The non-management directors met four times in executive sessions in 2007, In addition to these four
meetings, there was one executive session including only independent directors in 2007.

Lead Director

In May 2006, Neil Flanzraich was elected to serve as our lead director and has served in that capacity since
that time. The lead director is an independent director who acts in a lead capacity to coordinate the other
independent directors, consult with the chairman on board agendas, chair the executive sessions of the non-
managemen! directors and perform such other functions as the board may direct.

Stockholder Communications

Our board has implemented a process by which our stockholders and other interested parties may
communicate with one or more members of our board, its committees, the lead director or the non-management
directors or independent directors as a group in a writing addressed to Equity One, Inc., Board of Directors, cfo
Corporate Secretary, 1600 N.E. Miami Gardens Drive, North Miami Beach, Florida 33179. Such communications
may be made on a anonymous or confidential basis. The board has instructed our corporate secretary to promptly
forward all such communications to the specified addressees thereof.

Code of Conduct and Ethics

Our board of directors has adopted a code of conduct and ethics that applies to all our directors, officers,
employees and independent contractors. The code also has specific provisions applicable to all employees with
access to, and responsibility for, matters of finance and financial management, including our principal executive
officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions.
The full text of the code of conduct and ethics is available at, and we intend to disclose any amendments to, or
waivers from, any provision of the code that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer or controller or persons performing similar functions or any other executive officers or
ditectors by posting such information within four business days of such amendment or waiver on our website at
www. equityone.net,

MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Meetinps

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, our board of directors held a total of five meetings. Each
of our directors attended at least 75% of the aggregate of (i) the number of the meetings of the board of directors
which were held during the period that such person served on the board of directors and (ii) the number of meetings
of committees of the board of directors held during the period that such person served on such committee. Although
we have no specific requirement regarding the attendance at the annual meeting of stockholders by our directors, our
bylaws require that a meeting of our directors be held following the annual meeting of stockholders. In 2007, all but
one of our directors attended the annual meeting in person.




Committee Membership

We have four standing committees: the executive committee, the audit committee, the compensation
committee and the nominating and corporate governance committee.

The current members of our committees are as follows:

Nominating and
. Corporate
Name , Audit Compensation Governance Executive
Noam Ben-Ozer.........ccoovverrniiersnsismsssssrsns X* X
James Cassel ..., X X*
Cynthia Cohen.....cccovimrerccieeesisssserenn s X X
Neil Flanzraich®® ........cccovuriiececemrrcnrcrenns x* X
Nathan Helz.........coovvninenvarnen: sttt X
Chaim Katzman..........cccreeeneimsssenioseresennns X*
Peter LINNEMAan......ccvveiesenerienisceerncnrererennasns X X X
Jeffrey S. OlSon ... sssisminnns X
Dori Segal.......oovvverireermrmressssssissienins X
* Chair
** Lead Director

Executive Committee. The executive committee is authorized to perform all functions which may be
lawfully delegated by the board of directors; provided, however, that the executive committee may only approve the
sale, acquisition or development of properties with a purchase price or otherwise requiring an equity investment of
no more than $50 million and the acquisition of undeveloped land with a purchase price of not more than $20
million. The executive committee met or took action by consent three times during the year ended December 31,
2007.

Audit Committee. The members of the audit committee are “independent,” as defined under the NYSE
listing standards and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC. The board has
determined that cach of the members qualifies as an “audit committee financial expent” as defined by the rules and
regulations of the SEC, The audit committec’s functions include reviewing and discussing our financial statements,
including reviewing our specific disclosures under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations,” with our management and independent auditors, retaining and terminating the
engagement of our independent auditors, determining the independence of such auditors and discussing with
management and the independent auditors the quality and adequacy of our disclosure controls and procedures and
internal controls. The audit committee met seven times during the year ended December 31, 2007,

Please refer to the audit committee report, which is set forth on page 14 of this proxy statement, for a
further description of our audit committee’s responsibilities and its recommendation with respect to our audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007,

Compensation Committee. The members of the compensation commintee are “independent,” as defined
under the NYSE listing standards. The compensation committee’s functions consist of administering our 2000
Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, or 2000 plan, our 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and our 1995 Stock
Option Plan, n:commendmg and approvmg grants of stock options and restricted securities under our 2000 plan,
recommending, reviewing and approving our salary, bonus and fringe benefits policies, including compensation of
our executive officers and discussing with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis and, if
appropriate, recommending its inclusion in our annual report on Form 10-K and proxy statement. The compensation
committee also continues to administer the IRT 1998 Long-Term Incentive Plan and the IRT 1989 Stock Option
Plan which we assumed in our acquisition of IRT Property Company. The compensation committee met 10 times
during the year ended December ‘31, 2007. The compensation committee has the power to create subcommittees
with such powers as the compensation commitiee may from time to time confer to such subcommittees. For a
description of the role performed by executive officers and compensation consultants in determining or




recommending the amount or form of executive and director compensation, sce “Compensation Discussion and
Analysis — Management's and Advisor’s Role in Compensation Decisions.”

Please refer to the compensation committee report, which is set forth on page 15 of this proxy statement,
for a further description of our compensation committee’s responsibilities.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The members of the nominating and corporate
governance committee are “independent,” as defined under the NYSE listing standards. The committee’s dutics
include maintaining criteria for recommending candidates for election or reelection to the board, considering issues
and making recommendations concerning the size, composition, organization and effectiveness of the board,
including committee assignments, establishing and overseeing procedures for annual assessment of board and
director performance, evaluating issues of corporate governance and making recommendations to the board
regarding our governance policies and practices. The nominating and corporate governance committee met three
times during the year ended December 31, 2007.




PROPOSAL 1 - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors proposes that the nominces described below be elected for a one-year term and until
their successors are duly elected and qualify. All of the nominees are currently serving as our directors.
Immediately following the annual meeting, the board has decided to reduce its size to eliminate the other remaining

vacancy.
; Principal Occupation,
Nominee Business Experlence, Other Directorships Held and Age
Noam Ben-Ozer Mr. Ben-Ozer was elected as a director in 1996. Since 2002, Mr. Ben-Ozer has served

James S, Cassel

Cynthia R, Cohen

Neil Flanzraich

as founder and principal of Focal Advisory, a consulting and M&A firm based in
Boston, Massachusetts. Prior to that, Mr. Ben-Qzer served as co-founder of iPhrase
Technologies, Inc., a privately-held software company, from 1999 to 2002. Prior to
founding iPhrase Technologies, Inc., Mr. Ben-Qzer was a Manager with Bain &
Company. Mr. Ben-Ozer is a certified public accountant in Israel and received an
M.B.A. from the Harvard Business School. Mr. Ben-Ozer is 44 years old.

Mr. Cassel was elected as a director in April 2005. Since 2006, Mr. Cassel has served as
Vice Chairman, Senior Managing Director and Head of Investment Banking of
Ladenburg Thalmann & Co, Inc., an investment banking company that in 2006
purchased Capitalink, L.C., & South Florida based investment banking company founded
by Mr. Cassel in 1998 and where he served as its president from 1998 to 2006. From
1996 to 1998, he served as president of Catalyst Financial, an investment banking
company. Mr. Cassel received a B.S, from American University and a Juris Doctorate
from the University of Miami, Mr. Cassel is 52 years old.

Ms. Cohen was elected as a director in 2006. She founded Strategic Mindshare, a
strategic management consulting firm serving retailers and consumer product
manufacturers, in 1990 and, since that time, has served as its president. Ms. Cohen is a
director of bebe Stores, a specialty appare] retailer, Hot Topic, a teen apparel retailer,
and Steiner Leisure, 8 spa operator, all of which are public companies. Ms. Cohen also
serves on the executive advisory board for the Center for Retailing Education and
Research at the University of Florida. She is a graduate of Boston University. Ms.
Cohen is 55 years old.

Mr. Flanzraich was elected as a director in April 2005. Mr. Flanzraich is currently a
private investor. Prior to becoming & private investor, from May 1998 to 2006, he
served as vice chairman and president of IVAX Corporation, a company specializing in
the discovery, development, manufacturing and marketing of branded and generic
pharmaceuticals and veterinary products. 1VAX was acquired by Teva Pharmaceuticals
in January 2006. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Flanzraich was a sharcholder and served as
chairman of the life sciences legal practice group of Heller Ehrman White & McAuliffe,
a San Francisco-based law firm. From 1981 1o 1995, he served in various capacities at
Syntex Corporation, a pharmaceutical company, most recently as its senior vice
president, general counsel and a member of the corporate executive committee. In
addition to our board of directors, he is also a director of Continucare Corporation, a
healthcare company, Javelin Pharmeceuticals, Inc., a pharmaceutical company,
Neurcchem Inc., a biotechnology company, RAE Systems Inc., a gas detection and
security monitoring company, and Chipotle Mexican Grill, Inc., a chain of Mexican
restairants.  All of these are public companies. He received an A.B. degree from
Harvard College (phi beta kappa, magna cum laude) and a Juris Doctorate from Harvard
Law School (magna cum laude). Mr. Flanzraich is 64 years old.




Nominee

Principal Occupation,
Business Experience, Other Directorships Held and Age

Nathan Hetz

Chaim Katzman

Peter Linneman, Ph.D.

Jeffrey S. Olson

Dori Segal

Mr. Hetz was elected as a director in November 2000. We¢ and several of our
stockholders have agreed, pursuant to a stockholders agreement, that as long as Alony
Hetz Properties & Investments, Ltd., an Israeli corporation that specializes in real cstate
investments in Israel, Switzerland, Great Britain, Canada and the United States, the
shares of which are publicly traded on the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange and one of our
principal, indirect stockholders, or its affiliates own at least three percent of our common
stock, it may designate one nominee for clection 1o our board of dircctors. Alony Hetz
has chosen Mr. Hetz as its nominec pursuant to this agreement. Since November 1990,
Mr. Hetz has served as the chief executive officer, director and principal shareholder of
Alony Hetz. Mr. Hetz currently serves as a director of First Capital Realty Inc, a
principal, indirect stockholder of ours, Amot Investments Ltd., a real estate company,
the shares of which are publicly traded on the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange and PSP Swiss
Property, a real estate company, the shares of which are publicly traded on the Swiss
Stock Exchange. Mr. Hetz received a B.A. in accounting from Tel-Aviv University in
Israe! and is a certified public accountant in Israel. Mr. Hetz is 55 years old.

Mr. Katzman has served as the chairman of our board since our formation in 1992 and
served as our chief executive officer until December 2006 and president until November
2000. Mr. Katzman has been involved in the purchase, development and management of
commercial and residential real estate in the United States since 1980, Mr. Katzman
purchased the controtling interest of Gazit, Inc., 2 publicly-traded company listed on the
Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange, and ane of our principal, indirect stockholders, in May 1991,
has served as the chairman of its board and chicf executive officer since that time, and
remains its largest stockholder. Shulamit Katzman, Mr. Katzman's wife, is the vice
chairman of the board of directors of Gazit, Inc. Mr. Katzman has served as a director of
Gazit-Globe, Ltd., a publicly-traded real estate investment company listed on the Tel-
Aviv Stock Exchange and one of our principal, direct and indirect stockholders, since
1994 and as its chairman since 1998. Mr. Katzman also serves as non-exccutive
chairman of the board of First Capital Realty Inc., an Ontaric real estate company, the
common stock of which is listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange and which is one of our
principal, indirect stockholders. Mr. Katzman reccived an LL.B. from Tel Aviv
University Law School in 1973. Mr. Katzman is 58 years old.

Dr. Linneman was elected as a director in November 2000. Since 1979, Dr. Linneman
has been the Albert Sussman Professor of Real Estate, Finance and Public Policy at the
University of Pennsylvania, Wharton School of Business. Dr. Linneman is currently a
principal of Linneman Associates, a real cstate advisory firm, and a principal of
American Land Funds, a private equity firm. Dr. Linneman is currently serving as a
director of JER Investors Trust, Inc., a finance company that acquires real estate debt
securities and loans. Dr. Linneman holds both a masters and a doctorate degrees in
economics from the University of Chicago. Dr. Linneman is 57 years old.

Mr. Olson was elected to our board of directors and appointed to serve as our president
in November 2006. He was clected chief executive officer in December 2006. From
March 2002 until joining us as consulting executive officer in September 2006, Mr.
Olson served as president of the Eastern and Western shopping center regions of Kimco
Realty Corporation, one of the nation's largest shopping center development and
management companics. From 2000 to 2002, he served as senior vice president, co-head
of real estate research for UBS Warburg. Mr. Olson has a Masters of Science in Real
Estate from The Johns Hopkins University, a Bachelor of Science in Accounting from
the University of Maryland and was previously a Certified Public Accountant. Mr. Olson
is 40 years old.

Mr. Segal was elected as a director in November 2000 and our vice chairman in May
2006. Mr. Segal has scrved since October 1998 as president of Gazit-Globe, Lid., one of
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. Principal Occupation,
Nominee ] Business Experience, Other Directorships Held and Age

ouf principal, direct and indirect stockholders. Since August 2000, Mr. Scgal has served
as chief executive officer, president and as vice chairman of the board of First Capital
Realty Inc., a principal and indirect stockholder of ours. Mr. Segal has also served since
2004 as a Director of Citycon Oyj, a Finnish real estate company, the shares of which
are publicly traded on the Helsinki Stock Exchange. Since 1995, Mr. Segal has served
as the president of Gazit Israel Ltd., a real estate investment holding company. Mr. Segal
is 46 years old.

Yote Required 1

The vote of a plurality' of all votes cast at the meeting at which a quorum is present is necessary for the
election of a director. For purposes of the election of directors, abstentions will not be counted as votes cast and will
have no effect on the result of the vote, although they will be considered present for the purpose of determining the
presence of a quorum. Since brokers are permitted to vote for the election of directors in an uncontested election,
there will be no broker non-votes with respect to Proposal 1.

I

RECOMMENDATION -~ The Board of Directors Recommends a Vote FOR Each Named Nominee ]

1
1

:_ EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Our executive officers are as follows:

Name ! Age Position
Jeffrey S. Olson : 40  Chief Executive Officer
Thomas Caputo : 61  President
Gregory Andrews | 46  Exccutive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Arthur L. Gallagher | 37  Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate
Secretary

|
Thomas McDonough 1 50  Executive Vice President and Chief Investment Officer

Mr. Olson also serves'as director. His biographical information can be found in the section entitled
“Proposal 1 — Election of Directors™ on page 9.

Thomas Caputo joined Equity One in March 2008 as president. Prior to joining Equity One, from
December 2000 to March 2008, Mr. Caputo was executive vice president and head of the portfolic management and
acquisition groups at Kimco Realty Corporation, a publicly-traded real estate investment trust. From January 2000 to
December 2000, he was a principal of H&R Retail, a private real estate company specializing in development and
redevelopment of real estate and located in Baltimore, Maryland. From April 1983 to December 1999, Mr. Caputo
was a principal with RREFF, a pension fund advisor, where he was in charge of nationwide retail acquisitions and
dispositions and a member of its investment committee. Prior to joining RREEF, from February 1976 to March
1983, Mr. Caputo was the principal in charge of retail leasing with Collier Pinkard in Baltimore, Maryland. He has
a Bachelors of Arts from Randolph Macon College.

i

Gregory Andrews joined Equity One in November 2006 as executive vice president and assumed the
position of chief financial officer in January 2007. From March 1997 to November 2006, Mr. Andrews served as a
principal at Green Street Advisofs, a pre-eminent REIT research and consulting firm, where he was the firm’s senijor
equity analyst for retail and health care REITs. From 1996 to 1997, he served as vice president ~ corporate lending
at Bank of America Asia in Hong Kong and from 1993 to 1996 as vice president — commercial real estate at Bank of
America in Los Angeles and Irvine, CA, From 1988 to 1991, Mr. Andrews was a registered architect in Washington,
DC. Mr. Andrews has a Master of Business Administration from the UCLA Anderson School of Management and a
Bachelor of Asts from Princeton University.
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Arthur L. Gallagher has served as our executive vice president since February 2008, as senior vice
president from December 2006 to February 2008 and as our general counsel and corporate sccretary since joining us
in March 2003. Prior to joining us, Mr. Gallagher was with the law firms of Greenberg Traurig P.A., Miami,
Florida, from 1999 to 2003 and Simpson Thacher & Bartlett, New York, New York, from 1997 to 1999. Mr.
Gallagher received a Bachelor of Arts from the University of North Carolina — Chape!l Hill and a Junis Doctorate
from Duke University School of Law.

Thomas E. McDanough joined Equity One in July 2007 as our executive vice president and chief
investment officer. Prior to joining Equity One, from April 2006 to July 2007, Mr. McDonough was a partaer at
Kahl & Goveia, a pnvate real estate development, acquisition and management company based in Laguna Beach,
California. Prior to joining Kah] & Goveia, from November of 2006 to April 2007, Mr. McDonough was the
national director of acquisitions and dispositions for Regency Centers Cotp., a publicly traded real estate investment
trust that owns approximately 400 shopping centers in major markets located throughout the Unites States. Prior to
assuming his nationa! role at Regency Centers, from February 1997 to November 2006, Mr. McDonough developed
and acquired shopping centers for Regency Centers and its predecessor, Pacific Retail Trust, in its Pacific, Mid-
Atlantic, and New England regions. Prior to Regency, from July 1984 to January 1997, Mr. McDonough served as
an associate and development partner with Trammell Crow Company. Mr. McDonough received his Bachelor of
Science degree from Stanford University and his Master of Business Administration from Harvard Business School.
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PROPOSAL 2 - RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The audit committee has selected and appointed the firm of Emst & Young LLP to act as our independent
auditors for 2008. Ernst & Young LLP was first engaged to audit our books for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2005 and has served as our auditors since that time. Ratification of the sppointment of auditors requires a majority
of the votes cast, Any shares not voted, whether by abstention, broker non-vote, or otherwise, have no impact on the
vote,

RECOMMENDATION: Thé Board recommends that the stockholders vote FOR ratification of the
appointment of Ernst & Young LLP.

Although stockholder ratification of the appointment of our independent auditors is not required by our
bylaws or otherwise, we are submitting the selection of Emst & Young LLP to our stockholders for ratification as a
matter of good corporate governance practice. Even if the selection is ratified, the audit committee in its discretion
may select a different independént public accounting firm at any time if it determines that such a change would be in
the best interests of us and our stockholders. If our stockholders do not ratify the audit commitiee’s selection, the
audit committee will take that fact into consideration, together with such other factors it deems relevant, in
determining its next selection of independent auditors.

In choosing our independent auditors, our audit committee conducts a comprehensive review of the
qualifications of those individuals who will lead and serve on the engagement team, the quality control procedures
the firm has established, and any issue raised by the most recent quality control review of the firm. The review also
includes matters required to be considered under the Securities and Exchange Commission rules on “Auditor
Independence,” including the pature and extent of non-audit services to ensure that they will not impair the
independence of the accountants.

Representatives of Emst & Young LLP are expected to be present at the annual meeting. These
representatives will have an opportunity to make a statement if they so desire and will be available to respond to
appropriate questions.

Fees Paid to Independent Aunditors

The following table provides information of fees billed by Emst & Young LLP to us during or in
connection with the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 for services provided:

007 2006
Audit Fees........... L et vrs s rersesasisenrsrsn s sas e sanas $ 844,384 $ 719,966
Audit-Related FEEs .....ovvmimrmreminerisnssssssrsresesnins $23,853 —
TAX FOES.coooivvisicsseresssremssnesbescrraisesstassssanensens —_ —
All Other Fees..........cccevercmmrccnincessinerseerensrneenns — —_

All audit and non-audit services were pre-approved by the audit committee, cither pursuant to the audit
committee’s pre-approval policy described below or through a separate pre-approval by the audit committee, which
concluded that the provision of such services by the independent auditors was compatible with the maintenance of
that firm's independence from us.

Audit Fees. Audit fees for 2007 and 2006 were incurred for professional services in connection with the
audit of our consolidated financial statemments and internal control over financial reporting for the year ended
December 31, 2007, reviews of our interim consolidated financial statements which are included in each of our
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, and preparation of “comfort
letters” for the issuance of our unsecured senior notcs in both years.

|
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Audit-Related Fees

Audit-related fees for 2007 were incurred for consultation concerning financial reporting and reporting
standards. In 20086, we incurred no audit-related fees.

Tax Fees

Our independent auditors did not provide professional tax services during 2007 and 2006.
All Other Fees

In 2007 and 2006, we incurred no other fees.
Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

The audit committee’s policy is to review and pre-approve any engagement of our independent auditor to
provide any audit or permissible non-audit service to us. The audit committee adopts an audit and non-audit
services pre-approval policy which is reviewed and reassessed by the audit commitice ‘annually. This policy
includes a list of specific services within certain categories of services, including audit, audit-related, tax and other
services, which will be specifically pre-approved for the upcoming or current fiscal year, subject to an aggregate
maximum annual fee payable by us for each category of pre-approved services. Any service that is not included in
the list of pre-approved services must be separately approved by the audit committee. '
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The following report of the audit commitiee does not constitute soliciting material and should not be
deemed filed or incorporated by reference into any of our other filings under the Securities Act of 1933 or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

In accordance with its written charter adopted by our board of directors, the audit committee’s role is to act
on behalf of the board of directors in the oversight of our accounting, auditing and financial reporting practices. The
audit committee currently consists of three members, each of whom is “independent” as that term is defined by the
New York Stock Exchange listing standards and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Management is responsible for our financial reporting process including our system of intemal controls,
and for the preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Our independent auditors are responsible for auditing those financial statements. It is the audit
committce’s responsibility to monitor and review these processes. It is not the audit committee’s duty or
responsibility to conduct auditing or accounting reviews or procedures. The audit commitiee does not consist of our
cmployees and it may not be, and may not represent itself to be or to serve as, accountants or auditors by profession
or experts in the ficlds of accounting or auditing. Therefore, the audit committee has relied on management’s
representation that the financial statements have been prepared with integrity and objectivity and in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and on the representations of our independent auditors
included in their report on our financial statements. The audit committee’s oversight does not provide it with an
independent basis to determine that management has maintained appropriate accounting and financial reporting
principles or policies, or appropriate internal controls and procedures designed to assure compliance with accounting
standards and applicable laws and regulations. Furthermore, the audit committee’s considerations and discussions
with management and with our independent auditors do not assure that our financial statements are presented in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, that the audit of our financial statements has been carried
out in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards or that our independent accountants are in fact
“independent.”

In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the audit committee reviewed the audited financial statemenis for
the fiscal ycar ended December 31, 2007 with management, including a discussion of the quality of the accounting
principles, the reasonableness of significant judgments, the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements and the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting. The audit
committee reviewed the financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 with our independent
auditors and discussed with them all of the matters required to be discussed by Statement of Auditing Standards No.
61 {Communications with Audit Committees), as amended and as adopted by the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board, including the auditors’ judgments as to the quality, ot just the acceptability, of our accounting
principles. In addition, the audit committee has received a formal written statement regarding relationships between
us and our independent auditors required by Independence Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit
Commiltee), as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, and has discussed with our
independent auditors their independence from our management and from us. Upon its review, the audit commitice
has satisfied itself as to our independent auditors® independence.

Based on the review and discussions with management and the independent accountants, and subject to the
limitations on its role and responsibilities described above, the audit committee recommended to our board of
directors, and the board of directors has approved, that the audited financial statements be included in our annual
report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, as filed with the SEC on February 25, 2008. The
undersigned members of the audit committee have submitted this report to us.

Members of the Audit Commitiee
Noam Ben-Ozer, Chair

Cynthia Cohen
Nathan Hetz
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The compensation commitiee consists of the three directors named below, each of whom is “independent”
under the New York Stock Exchange listing standards. We have overall responsibility for:

e determining the compensation of the executive officers, including sctting and determining
achievement of established performance goals;

o designing, with the active assistance of management and the committee’s consultants, the
company’s executive compensation program;
administering the company’s stock-based compensation plans and programs;
recommending any new elements of executive compensation or programs for consideration to the
full board of directors; and

e discussing the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required by SEC regulations with
management and, if appropriate, recommending its inclusion in the company’s annual report on
Form 10-K and proxy statement,

We have the authority to engage independent compensation consultants or other advisors; however, no such
advisors were engaged in 2007,

We reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation Discussion and Analysis that begins on
page 16 of this proxy statement. Based on our review and these discussions with management, we have
recommended its inclusion in the company's annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2007 and proxy statement for the company’s 2008 annual meeting of stockholders,

Members of the Compensation Committee

Neil Flanzraich, Chairman
James S. Cassel
Peter Linneman

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

No member of the compensation committee during 2007 was an officer, employee or former officer of us
or any of our subsidiaries or had any relationship that would be considered a compensation committee interlock and
would require disclosure in this proxy statement pursuant to SEC regulations. None of our exccutive officers served
as a member of a compensation committee or a dircctor of another entity under the circumstances requiring
disclosure in this proxy statement pursuant to SEC regulations.

15




COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Overview

The following discussion is intended to supplement the more detailed information concering executive
compensation that appears in the tables and the accompanying narrative that follow. It is also intended to provide
both a review of our compensation policies for 2007 and describe our compensation policies with respect to our
executive officers, Our goal is to provide a better understanding of our compensation practices and the decisions
made concerning the compensation payable to our executive officers, including the chief executive officer, or CEO,
and the other executive officers named in the “Summary Compensation Table” below. These officers are referred to
herein as the “named executive officers.”

The compensation committee of our board of directors, referred to in this section as the “committee,”
designs and administers our executive compensation program. All principal elements of compensation paid to our
executive officers are subject to approval by the committee. The Compensation Committee Report appears on page
15 of this proxy statement.

Objectives
The principal objectives of our executive compensation program are to:

e attract and retain the most talented executives in our industry;
¢ motivate executives to achieve corporate performance objectives as well as individual goals; and
¢  align the interests of our exccutives with those of our stockholders.

Management’s and Advisor’s Role in Compensation Decislons

The committee evaluates the performance of our CEQ, Mr. Qlson, and determines his compensation based
on this evaluation. Mr, Olson maikes recommendations to the committee of annual compensation to be paid to ali
other executive officers. He also makes recommendations for equity awards to other employees throughout the
company. The committec can accept or medify Mr. Olson’s recommendations as it sees fit.

In the past, the committes has relied upon outside advisors to ascertain competitive pay levels, cvaluate pay
program design, and assess evolving compensation trends. [n 2006, the committee engaged FPL Associates, or FPL,
to review our executive compensation and director compensation programs. FPL's findings were relied upon in
determining the compensation arrangements with our chairman and the executive officers we hired in 2006,
inctuding Mr. Olson. No compensation advisors were retained in 2007.

Principal Elements of Compensation and Total Direct Compensation

We have designed our executive compensation program to include three major elements—base salary,
annua! cash bonus incentives and long-term cash and long-term equity incentives, such as stock options and
restricted stock awards. The principal elements of our executive compensation program are agreed to and
determined, for the most par, at the time of ocur entry into the applicable employment agreement with our executive
officer which mandate levels and types of compensation, including certain minimum levels of compensation. These
agreements are described below under the sub heading entitled “Payments upon Termination of Employment and
Change of Control — Employment Agreements with Executive Officers.”

Although zll three of thése elements are integrated into our compensation program, the elements are
intended to achieve different objectives:

e base salaries arc tntended 10 provide an appropriate level of fixed compensation that will assist in
employee retention and recruitment;

s annual cash bonis incentives provide additional motivation for the achicvement of specified
objectives at the corporate or individual levels; and

s long-term cash and equity incentives align the interests of our executives more closely with the
interests of our stockholders because they are tied to our financial and stock performance and vest
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or accrue over a number of years, encouraging executives to remain our employees.

Base Salaries. In order to attract and retain the most talented executives in our industry, we must set the
base salaries of executive officers at levels that are competitive with other companies engaged in the retail real estate
industry and of comparable size and scope that compete with us for executive talent, We expect that the base salaries
should be in the upper half of the range of base salaries for comparable positions and tenure at other large real estate
companies. Although base salaries are generally targeted at these levels, the actual salary of an exccutive may be
above or below the targets based on factors unique to that executive, such as experience, competency or the
availability of meaningful peer data for the executive. In order to benchmark these levels of base salaries, the
committee has in the past engaged compensation consultants, as described above, and subscribes to and reviews
published relevant executive compensation surveys.

In 2007, we acquired rights 1o the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trust’s, or NAREIT's,
annual compensation survey. This survey was produced by FPL or its affiliates and had 103 participating
companies, both public and private. The data was compiled for 80 positions and was broken down by property
sector classification, including retail real estate, company size by capitalization and company size by number of
employees. The survey results described base salary, total annual cash compensation, long term incentive values
and total compensation by position. :

The committee reviews base salaries of the CEO and the other executive officers annually and makes
adjustments, in light of past individual performance as measured by both qualitative and quantitative facts and the
potential for making significant contributions in the future. The committee generally considers individual
performance factors in addition to our overalt performance in a particular year in determining base salary levels. For
instance, the commitiee may consider the completion of one or more strategic projects or transactions, direct
contribution to company goals, promotions, etc. in determining base salaries of our executive officers.

In the past, the base salaries of our named executive officers increascd annually by the greater of increases
in the consumer price index or a fixed percentage ranging from three to six percent. However, none of the
agreements with our current executive officers have automatic increases in base salary but rather leave such
increases to the discretion of the committee.

Cash Incentives. We pay an annual cash bonus to executives officers based in part on minimum boouses
provided under the executives’ agreements and in part based on the achievement of specified performance measures.
We determine the specific measures and the possible bonus amounts annually. With respect to the prior performance
year, the committee determines whether the bonus criteria have been achicved &t a meeting in February or March
and bonuses are paid by March 15" of each year. Because the committee believes strongly in our executives
working together as a team, commencing in calendar year 2008, it sct the same specific measures for corporate
objectives for all of our executive officers. A description of these criteria and the annual cash incentives arc sct
forth below under the subheading “2008 Compensation Decisions.”

In addition, in connection with the negotiation of the initial employment agreements with Messrs, Olson,
Andrews and McDonough, we are agreed to pay a onc-time, long-term cash bonus. The amount of these long-term
bonuses range from $0 to $2 million in the case of Mr. McDonough, $0 to $3 million in the case of Mr. Andrews,
and $0 to $6 million in the case of Mr. Olson and are payable if our total stockholder return exceeds both a fixed
minimum return and the average retum of a group of our peers over a performance period that ends in December
2010, or sooner in the event of a change of control or an exccutive’s termination without cause. The peers include:
Acadia Realty Trust, Cedar Shopping Centers, Inc., Developers Diversified Realty Corporation, Federal Realty
Investment Trust, Ramco-Gershenson Properties Trust, Regency Centers Corporation, Saul Centers, Inc, and
Weingarten Realty Investors.

Equity Incentives. The committee strongly believes that providing executives with an opportunity to
increase their ownership of common stock aligns their interests with the interests of our stockholders. Therefore, we
offer equity incentives which generally take the form of awards under our stock-based compensation plan, the
Equity One, Inc. 2000 Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended, or the 2000 plan, which is administered
by the committee. Although the 2000 plan authorizes a variety of equity incentive awards, the only forms of equity
awards the committee has granted have been options and restricted stock.
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Under the employment agreements with our executive officers, the committee may grant equity incentive
awards on an annual basis as it may reasonably determine as fairly compensating and rewarding the executives for
services rendered to us, subject in cach case to minimum awards specified in the executives' employment
agreements.

Total Annual Compensation. The committee considers total annual compensation, in addition to individual
elements of compensation, when assessing the competitiveness of our pay practices. Once again, to gage this
competitiveness, we reviewed the NAREIT compensation survey. Total annual compensation for a given yeas
consists of salary, annual cash bonus earned and the value of the stock options and restricted stock awards eamed,
paid or awarded during that year. Bonuses and equity awards with respect to performance in a given year are
generally paid or granted in the following year.

Other Elements of Compensation

Retirement and Health and Welfare Benefits. We have never had a traditional or defined benefit pension
plan, We do, however, maintain & 401(k) retirement plan in which all employees can participate on the same terms,
Under the 401(k) retirement plan, we match 100% of the participant’s contribution, up to 3% of the participant's
annual compensation, and 50% of the contribution for the next 3% of the participant’s annual compensation. Our
matching contributions made prior to January 1, 2007 become vested pro rata over the first three years of service;
following the third year of service, all contributions are vested, Matching contributions that arc made after January
1, 2007 are 100% vested when made. Our matching contributions are subject to applicable IRS limits and
regulations. The contributions we made to the 401(k) accounts of the named executive officers are shown in the All
Other Compensation column of the Summary Compensation Table on page 22 and are detailed in footnote 5 to that
table.

Employment and Change of Control Agreements. We have or had employment agreements with each of
our named executive officers. A summary of these employment agreements that are currently in effect appears in
the section of this proxy statement entitled “Payments Upon Termination of Employment and Change of Control.”
These agreements provide for various payments and benefits to be made to the executives if their employment with
us is terminated for certain reasons or if there is a change of control. The circumstances in which payments may be
made and the potential amounts of those payments are described in more detail below. The payments provided for in
these agreements arc 10 cnsure the ongoing commitment of these executive officers to the best interests of our
stockholders in the event of a change of control or other potential termination events.

Personal Benefits. We provide certain other benefits to the executives, including the use of an automobile,
reimbursement of expenses related to their automobiles, automobile allowances or other driver services.

Deferred Compensation Plan. We maintain a non-qualified deferred compensation plan that permits senior
executives and key employees to defer up to 90% of their base salary and all or any portion of their cash bonuses.
There are separate accounts for each participant. Although we have the discretion to contribute a matching amount
or make additional incentive contributions, we have not done cither since the plan’s inception. As a result, all the
contributions disclosed in the Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Table on page 25 represent compensation
previously earned by the executive: A participant’s deferrals are fully vested.

The assets of this plan are held in what is commonly referred to as a “rabbi trust” arrangement. This means
the assets of the plan are subject to the claims of our general creditors in the event of our insolvency. Each account is
measured based upon the performance of investment alternatives selected by the participant from those made
available under the plan. Payments or distributions of a participant’s clective deferrals are made in the future at the
times and in the amounts as elected by the participant, subject to applicable IRS rules and regulations. These
amounts would be paid earlier in the event of termination of employment or death of the participant, an unforeseen
emergency affecting the participant as determined by the committee appointed to administer the plan or a change of
control affecting us. For more information, see the Nongualified Deferred Compensation Table and accompanying
narrative on page 25.
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2007 Compensation Decisions

In 2007, our named executive officers included Messrs. Olson, Andrews, Gallagher and McDonough and
Mr. Jeffrey S. Stauffer. Mr. Stauffer served in 2007 as our executive vice president and chief operating officer. He
terminated his employment with us in February 2008. In addition, Mr. McDonough was hired by us in July 2007
and, therefore, received compensation only for the partial year.

Base Salaries. We executed employment agreements with cach of our named executive officers in late
2006 or 2007. Therefore, the base salaries of these executives were the amounts set forth in those agreements.

Annual Bonuses. In March of 2007, the committee established three objective performance measures for
annual incentive awards under the 2000 plan. These amounts, together with the contractual minimum bonuses
provided under the employment agreements, provided for maximum total cash bonuses payable to Messrs. Olson,
Andrews and Stauffer of $750,000, $400,000 and $400,000, respectively. Mr. McDonough had not joined the
company at the time of the determination of performance criteria, and Mr. Gallagher was not included in the
program given his role at the company.

The performance measures were: FFOQ per share, same property NOI growth and total stockholder return,
each as defined below. The committee felt that these measures were appropriate because each objective was closely
monitored by the REIT industry and the success of these objectives should contribute to the long-term success of our
stockholders.  FFO in particular is believed to be an appropriate performance measure for REITs because it
excludes varions items in net income that do not relate to or are not indicative of the continuing operating
performance of the ownership, management and development or real estate,

Under the annual incentive award program, the exccutives earned points for the achievement of
performance levels. The following chart shows the maximum number of points achicvable for each of the
performance measures, the range of performance for which points were awarded, the actual results achieved by the
company in 2007 and the aumber of points ecarned by the executives:

M " Maximum Performance Actual Actual
easur number of -
(as defined below) points Range Results Points
FFQ per share 4 $1.35-81.42 $1.40 3
Same-property NOI

% Total

stockholder rcturn 4 0.5% - 3.0% 11.1% 4
above our peet

As shown above, the committee determined that a total of eight points, out of a possible 12 points, were
eamed by the executives, Under the terms of the annual incentive awards, if the executives earned six points or
fewer, then they would receive the minimum bonus provided under their respective employment agreements. For
seven to 12 points, cach executive would be paid an amount in excess of his minimum bonus equal to the propartion
of points earned above six. Therefore, in addition to the minimum bonuses, the executives earned annual incentive
awards equal to 1/3 of the difference between the minimum and maximum bonus, or $83,333, $75,000 and $75,000
for Messrs. Olson, Andrews and Stauffer, respectively. Therefore, the total cash bonuscs earned in 2007 by Messrs.
Olson, Andrews and Stauffer were $583,333, $250,000 and $250,000, respectively.

For the purpose of determining bonuses, the performance measures were defined as follows:

e “FFO per share” is defined by NAREIT generally as net income (computed in accordance with
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GAAP), (1) excluding real estate depreciation and amortization and gains and losses from sales of
operating properties {(excluding gains and losses from the sale of development properties or land),
(2) after adjustment for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures computed on the same
basis as item 1, and (3) excluding items classified by GAAP as extreordinary along with
significant non-recuwrring events such as land sales, impairments and debt extinguishment charges,
A full reconciliation of FFO to net income can be found in the financial statements appended to
our annual report accompanying this proxy statement.

e “Same property NOI growth” refers to the percentage increase in net operating income above
that of the prior year for cach operating property owned for both periods and calculated by
eliminating straight-line and fair market rent adjustments, prior year common area maintenance
and other non-cash, GAAP adjustments.

» “Total Stockholder Return” refers to the total stockholder return for 2007 relative to a peer
group of companies comprised of: Acadia Realty Trust, Cedar Shopping Centers, Inc., Developers
Diversified Realty Corporation, Federal Realty Investment Trust, Regency Centers Corporation,
Saul Centers, Inc. and Weingarten Realty Investors. Points are only awarded if our total
stockholder return outperforms that of the peer group by certain amounts.

Pursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. McDonough received a pro rata minimum bonus based on his
partial year of employment in 2007. Finally, in consideration of Mr. Gallagher's performance during 2007, most
notably his leadership in our asset disposition program and other executive functions, the committee awarded him a
$200,000 bonus.

Equity Awards. In the case of Messrs. Olson, Andrews and McDonough, the committee awarded them
cither restricted stock or options, or both, in the minimum amounts and with the annual vesting required by their
cmployment agreemenis. In the case of Mr. Olson, he received an option to purchase 200,000 shares of our common
stock vesting over two years. Mr. Andrews was awarded 12,500 shares of restricted stock and an option to purchase
100,000 shares, each vesting over four years. Mr, McDonough was awarded 4,167 shares of restricted stock and an
option to purchase 31,250 shares, each vesting over a period of four years.

In consideration of Mr. Gallagher’s performance during 2007, most notably his leadership in our asset
disposition program and other executive functions, the committee awarded him 10,000 shares of restricted stock and
options to purchase 40,000 shares of common stock, each vesting over a period of three years. These amounts
exceed the minimum cquity awards provided in his contract,

2008 Compensation Decisions '

Base Salaries. On February 28, 2008, the committee increased the base salaries for Messrs. Olson and
Andrews by 3.5% effective January 1, 2008, consistent with the company-wide raises for most employees. In
addition, in connection with his promotion, the committee increased Mr. Gallagher’s base salary to $300,000 also
effective January 1, 2008. Mr. McDonough’s salary was not increased following his initial employment in July
2007.

Annual Bonuses. On March 27, 2008, the commitiee also set the 2008 performance criteria for the annual
incentive awards to be paid under the 2000 plan applicable to each of the five executive officers. The performance
measures and weightings are as follows;

Measure Weighting
Same Property NOI Growth 13
FFO per share 13
Total Return (vs. peer group) 173

The executives will be awarded zere to four points on each of the criteria, with a maximum potential of 12
points. The performance measures are the same as those used for determining 2007 annual incentive awards and are
described above in the subsection entitled “2007 Compensation Decisions.” Aggregate minimum bonuses of $1.1
millicn are payable 1o those executives. Bonuses can increase through aggregate cash incentive awards of up to $1.2
million, leading to maximum aggregate annual bonuses of $2.3 million. The actual amount of the annual incentive
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awards will depend on the proportionate achicvement of the performance measures as described above.

Tax Issoes

Section 162(m). Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code disallows a federal income tax deduction to
publicly-held companies for compensation paid to certain exccutives to the extent their compensation exceeds
$1,000,000 in any fiscal year. The limitation applies only to compensation that is not considered “performance-
based.” Base salaries, minimum bonuses and awards of restricted stock that vest merely upon the passage of time do
not qualify as performance-based compensation. Stock options granted by the committee under the 2000 plan are
made with exercise prices equal to the fair market value of a share on the grant date and, therefore, should qualify as
performance-based compensation for this purpose.

As long as we qualify as a REIT, we do not pay taxes at the corporate level. To the extent that any part of
our compensation expense does not qualify for deduction under Section 162(m), a larger portion of stockholder
distributions may be subject to federal income tax as ordinary income rather than return of capital, and thus any such
compensation allocated to our taxable REIT subsidiaries, if any, whose income is subject to federal income tax
would result in an increase in income taxes due to the inability to deduct such compensation.

Section 4094. On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 was signed into law,
changing the tax rules applicable to nonqualified deferred compensation arrangements. As amended, Section 409A
of the Intemal Revenue Code affects the payments of certain types of deferred compensation to key employees. We
belicve we are operating in compliance with the statutory provisions which were effective January 1, 2005.

Other Compensation Policles

Stock Option and Equity Award Grant Practices. The committee makes annual equity awards usually at its
quarterly meeting in February or March each year. In 2007, those awards were made at the committee’s regularly
scheduled meeting on February 28, 2007. Unless in connection with the commencement of employment, the grant
date of those awards is the date of the meeting, which date is determined without regard to current or anticipated
stock price levels or the release of material non-public information and is set during the prior calendar year, or upon
& date certain following the grant approval date, such as the date on which a new hire commences his or her
employment with the company.

The committee also may make, and in the past has made, special grants during the course of the year,
primarily for new hires, promotions to retain valued employees or to award exceptional performance. These special
grants may be subject to performance or time vesting, and are issued on the date of grant approval or upon a date
certain following the grant approval date, such as the date on which a new hire commences his or her employment
with the company.

The exercise price for any equity award is equal to the fair market value of the company’s common stock
on the date of grant. Under the 2000 plan, the fair market value is equal to the closing sales price for a share of the
our common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange on the effective date of the grant as approved by
the committee or the board of directors, unless otherwise approved by the committee. Under the employment
agreements with several of our executives, the committee determined the exercise price by computing the average
closing price of our common stock for the ten trading days immediately prior to the grant date.

Stock Ownership Guidelines. The committee has not adopted any stock ownership guidelines for our
executives or directors. The committee does, however, periodically review the levels of equity ownership by its
executives and the periodic sales activity by those exccutives.

Recovery of Performance-based Awards. We do not have a policy regarding the recovery of performance-
based awards in the event of a financial statement restatement beyond the requirements of Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. That statute requires the chief executive and chief financial officers of a publicly-held
company to repay certain amounts if the company restates its financial statements as a result of financial reporting
misconduct. The amounts to be repaid consist of (1} any bonus or other incentive-based or cquity-based
compensation received from the company dusing a twelve month period following the filing of the financial
document in question; and (2) any profits realized from the sale of securitics of the company during that period.
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The table below summarizes the total compensation paid or awarded to each of our named executive
officers for the one year period ended December 31, 2007. For a more thorough discussion of our executive
compensation program, sce Compensation Discussion and Analysis which begins on page 16 of this proxy

statement.
Stock Option Non-Equity Al Other
Name and Prineipal Salary Bonaos Awards Awards Ipceative Plan ~ Compensation Total
Position Year (SX1) [83]1)]¢4] [L1,0)] ($)(4) Compensation (SX5) {5
Jeffrey S. Olson 2007 s 6:65.000 $1,014,000 §559,452 § 708,557 $ 83,33 3 10,125 $3,040467
President and Chief Exccutive 2006 200,000 161,650 186,484 171,957 - 86,563 800,654
Officer
Jeffrey S. StaofTer(6) 2007 $ 3380M7 $ 175,000 $ 236720 § 357,280 $ 75,000 $ 3692 §1.2057689
Former Executive Vice 2006 47,115 26,849 41,600 71,680 - 12,922 200,166
President and Chief Operating ' .
Officer
Gregory R Andrews 2007 s 3_58,077 $ 175000 $ 75,130 $ 86,520 $ 75,000 $ 41,781 $ 811,508
Executive Vice President, 2006 37,692 21,575 13,131 12,760 - 21,621 106,779
Chief Financial Officer and
Treasurer
Artbher L. Gallagher 2007 $ 279,368 $ 200,000 $ 127928 $ 37,500 - $ 15894 § 660,690
Executive Vice President, 2006 188,160 - 64,878 - 41,250 - 254,288
General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary
Thomas E. McDonough (T} 2007 $ 128,077 $ 62,500 $ 46,953 $ 3L189 $ 3350 5 272,069
Executive Vice President and :
Chief Investment Officer

(1) Includes amounts deferred under our Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan,

2) Represents amounts paid in 2008 as bonuses for performance in 2007 and amounts paid in 2007 as bonuscs for
performance in 2006. These amounts were either minimum bonuses required under the executive’s employment agreement
or a discretionary bonus that was not performance based. Mr. Olson’s 2007 bonus includes a pro rata portion of a signing
bonus of $2,056,000, which is paid in four annua! instaliments of $514,000.

(3) Represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement purposes for restricted stock awards that were granted
under the 2000 plan during 2007 and carlier perinds. The amounts recognized have been determined in accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 123(R) (Share-Based Payment) (“FAS 123R") except that ¢stimated
forfeitures were excluded in the determination. For this purpose, the number of shares of restricted stock is multiplied by
the average of the high and low trading price of our common stock on the grant date and then is amortized over the vesting
period of the award, The cost of each award included in the aggregate cost is as follows:

2007 Compensation

Year of Award Expense

JEAECY S. OISO vvvveoroeeeerereesrsees e sressressssssmsssssssssseeesase 2006 $559,452
Jeffrey 5. S1AURTEr..ccvi st rrsae s 2006 $236,120
Gregory R, ANdIews .....ocevvivnincnnnnscrsmessnerrrenrsesemescreceioss 2006 $75,130
Arthur L. GaHagher ........coivincvsmcenmasiienssmsisnssseseinsssnnns 2003 $26,835
2005 $34,563

2007 $66,530

Thomas E. MCDOROUN ...evvvieereecciciricscconecnsinisersressnssensrens 2007 $46,953

Docs not include stock awards made in 2008 for performance in 2007, Those awards include:
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Number of shares of

Restricted Stock
Gregory R ADIIEWS ..ovecvrirmrnimisnsmninasssiissinsmienssess o 12,500
Arthur L. Gallagher ......cviimmeimiinsismenniniisnssimssssimes 10,000
Thomas E. McDONOUEH ...ovvciveeieiiienrereeserenrennssnereraressssssnsans 4,167

The cost of each award included in the aggregate cost is as follows:

(4 Represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement purposes for stock option awards that were granted under
the 2000 plan during 2007 and earlicr periods. The amounts recognized have been determined in accordance with FAS
123R except that estimated forfeitures were excluded in the determination. For this purpose, the fair market value of cach
award is determined on the grant date and then is amortized over the vesting period of the award, The assumptions used in
calculating these amounts are described in Note 11 to the Consalidated Financial Stalements in our annual report on Form
10-K faor the year ended December 31, 2007, There were no actual forfeitures of awards to the named executive officers.

*

(6) Mr. Stauffer resigned from his positions ¢ffective February 29, 2008,

president and chief investment officer.
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{0 Mr. McDonough's employment commenced on July 30, 2007, at which time he assumed the sole of ¢xecutive vice

All amounts represent car allowances or other automobile expenses paid by us including leasing or ownership costs,
insurance premiwms, and/or repairs incurred in connection with the executive's automobile.

i 1007 Compensation
Year of Award Expense

JefTrey S. OLSON.....coviirinsrinsnismssrsesserssnersassssnssessssamssssssnanssnsssesress 2006 $708,557

Jeffrey S. Stauffer 2006 $357,280

Gregory R ARGIEWS ....coveieivsier e ncseisnessssnasssnsssssssasssssessessssrssnns 2006 $86,520

Arthur L. Gallagher ... 2007 $37,500

Thomas E. McDonough ....c..cvuimenmimmserismsrsemmsinisennsrsssin. 2007 $31,189

Docs not include option awards made in 2008 for performance in 2007. Those awards include:
Nuomber of Options

Gregory R, ARGIEWS .....ccivrrrreeiieemninreessrniseesns mesransossesresans 100,000

Arthur L. Gallagher .......coervimmniamem s 40,000

Thomas E. MeDOROUEH .......oovicmrrnrerirrnnr s renssssnnssssessnsssssens 31,250

(5) The amounts shown in this column for the last fiscal year include the following:
Company I
Contributions to
Retirement and
Name 401(k) Plans Relocation Expenses Automoblle Costs* Totel

| Jeffrey S. Olson $ 10,125 - — $ 10,125

Jeffrey S. Stauffer —_ - $ 3692 $ 3,692

Gregory R. Andrews $ 4,604 5 2917 5 8000 $ 41,781
| Arthur L. Gallagher $ 10,125 - $ 5769 $ 15894
‘ Thomas E. McDonough — — $ 3350 $ 3,350
|
|
|




" GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

13]
)]
grant.

@

£)

The option awards vest pro rata over periods ranging from two to four years.

same amounts and in the same manner 83 dividends on our other outstanding shares of common stock.

. All Other All Other
Stock Optica Exercise
Awards: Awards: or Grant Date
Estimated Future Payouts Under Number of  Number of Base Closing Fair Value
Noo-E I tive Plan A Shares of Securitles Price Price oo of Stock
oo-Equity Incentive Flan Awards Stock or Underlylng  of Optlon Datecf  and Opton
Grant Threshold Target Maxlzum Units Options Awards Grant Awards
Name Date (%) &3] ($) {9(1) (#) (2) (B3 %) (54
Jeffrey S. Olson 250,000
1231007 200,000 $23.04 $23.09 $744,000
Jeffrey S. Stauffer $225,000
Gregory R. Andrews 5225000
Arthur L. Gallagher  01/01/07 7,500 -_ - $199,590
0l1/01/07 30,000 $26.66 $112,500
Thomas E. ,
McDonough 07/30/07 ::: 20,000 - - § 455,100
013007 75,000 $23.06 $ 255,750
(1)  Rcpresents awards of restricted stock that vest over periods renging from three to four years, Dividends are payable on these awards in the

Pursuant to his cmployment agreement, the exercise price for Mr, Olson’s options was computed using the sverage closing price of our
common stock for the ten trading days prior to the grant date. All other prices were based on the closing price of our stock on the date of

Represents the FAS 123R grant date fair valuc of the equity awnrd. For restricted stock awards, the value is calculated using the avernge of
the high and low treding price of our common stock on the gremt date. For options, the vahie is deterrnined using the assumptions
descrbed in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007,

These awards were approved in conpection with the approval by the board of directors or the committee of the exccutives’ employment
agreements, and the grant date was the effective date of conployment, which followed the approval date.

2007 OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of
Secyrites Number of Securities Nember of Market Valoe of
Underlying Underlylng Option Shares or Units  Sbares or Units
Unexereised Unexercised Optons  Exercise Option aof Stock That of Stock That
Options (#) # Q) Price Espiration Have Not Vested Hsve Not Vested
Name Exerclsable Unexercisable (5 Date {# (2) (¢ 1R )]
Jeffrey S. Olson 200,000 600,000(z) 5 2470 09/1416 72,874 $ 1,678,299
v 32,330 32,330() § 2641 123116
- 200,000(c) § 2304 1231/17
Jeffrey S. Stauffer 100,000 400,000(a) § 2540 11/15/16 30,000 $680,900
Gregory R. Andrews 25,000 75,000(x) § 2504 11714016 9,375 $215,906
Arthur L. Gallagher 10,000 — S 1717 113 8,000 $184,240
10,000 — §2352 1131114
10,000 20000(c) § 2666 O1/0V/17
Thomas E.
McDonough — 75000(d) $ 23.06 _ 07/19/17 20,000 $460,600

)

The options vest as follows: (a) pm' rata over the three year period commencing December 31, 2008, (b) on December 31, 2008, (¢) pro

rata over the two year period commencing December 31, 2008 or (d) pro rata over the four year period commencing July 29, 2008,

)
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Censists of the following restricted stock awards that have been awarded but not fully vested:




Year of Award Number of Shares

JEITTEY 8. OIB0N .o esteeceteemesrststmsct et srsserse et bnons bt s sannss seenst s s basst st shaemenr 2006 72,874
Jeffrey S. Stauffer...... 2006 10,000
Gregory R. Andrews, 2006 9,375
Arthur L. Gallagher ..........coomicecemreserecsnssssnsess s seessssesessessenssssssesssssrenseasemsssares 2005 3,000

2007 5,000
Thomas E, MCDONOUE .....ovvevervrsereromsrmersesarmscrerssensrasiaseassrsessnsss - 2007 20,000

(3) The amounts in this column have been computed based on the $23.03 closing price of our common stock on December 31,
2007, the last business day of the year.

2007 OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Nuomber of
Shares Yalue Shares Valae
Acquired on Realized Acqulred on Realized
Exerchie on Exercise Vesting on Vesting
Name # 3 # ()
Jeffrey S. Olson — —_ 24,292 $559,798
Jeffrey S. Stauffer — — 10,000 $230,456
Gregory R. Andrews - - 3,125 $72,016
Arthur L. Gallagher - - 5450 $ 136170
Thomas E. McDonough

(1)  The value realized on vesting has been computed based on the average of the high and low price of the stock on the vesting date.

2007 NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION

Executive Registrant Aggregate Aggregate
Contribations Contributons Earnings Balance st
lo Last Fiscal in Last in Last Fiscal Last Flscal
Year Fiscal Year Year Year-End
Name %0 5) {3X2) )]
Arthur L. Gallagher $13,000 - $1,861 $28,635

{1) Al amounts in this column were previously reported under the “Satary™ column of the Summary Compensation Table on page 22 of this
proxy statcment.

(2}  The camings represent the gains on the investments accounts of the participant.

We have not made any contribution to the accounts of our deferred compensation plan since its inception in
2005. As a result, the contributions and aggregate balances shown in the table above are composed entirely of
contributions made by the executive from his base salary. The eamings do not represent above-markel or
preferential rates.

Deferral elections are made by the exccutive in December of each year for amounts to be camed in the
following year. An executive may defer up to 90% of his or her base salary and all or any portion of their cash
bonuses.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Non-employee directors are ¢ligible to receive 2,000 shares of common stock upon their initial election to
the board of directors and 2,000 shares of common stock annually on January 1 of each year of their service, which
shares shall vest, in each case, half on December 31 of the year of the grant and the other half on December 31 of
the following year. In addition, our lead director receives an additional 1,000 shares of common stock annually on
January 1, which shares vest in the same manner as the other shares granted to directors. In addition, non-¢mployee
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directors receive an annual fes in the amount of $12,000, chairmen of committees (other than the audit comunittee)
receive an annual fee of $7,500 and committee members (other than members of the audit committee) receive an
annual fee of $6,000. The audit committee chairman receives an annual fee in the amount of $15,000, and audit
committee members receive an annual fee of $10,000. In addition, each non-employee director will receive a fee of
$1,500 for each meeting attended in person or telephonically, plus reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred
in attending the meeting. Mr. Olson, who is also our chief executive officer, is not paid any directors’ fees. In
addition, Mr. Katzman, our chairman of the board, is paid pursuant to the terms of a chairman compensation
agreement, which is described separately below under the section entitied “Payments upon Termination of
Employment and Change of Control,” and is not paid any of the director fees described above.

The following table summarizes the compensation of our non-employee directors in 2007:

Fees
! Earved or
Paid In Stock Option
Cash Awards Awards Total
Name ($) (8218} (3X2) ($)
Noam Ben-Ozer $ 58,500 s 51,342 - $ 109,842
James Cassel $ 54,000 $ 56,548 - $ 110,548
Cynthia Cohen $ 53,500 $ 52943 - § 106,443
Neil Flanzraich $ 52,500 $ 77987 - $ 130,457
Patrick Flinn (n $ 38,500 $ 71957 - $ 116,457
Nathan Hetz , $ 27,000 $ 51,342 - $ 78,342
Chaim Katzman - $2,269.235 $331,332 $2,600,567
Peter Linneoman - 563,000 $ 51,342 - $ 114,342
Dori Sega! § 23,500 $ 51,042 - $ 79842

(1)  Represents the dollar amount recognized for financial statement purposes for restricted stock awerds to the non-employee directors. The
amounts recognized were determined in eccordance with FAS 123R. For a discussion of the assumptions made in the detenmination of
cost under FAS 123R, sec footnote 3 to the Summary Conpensation Table beginning on page 22.

The cost of cach award included in the aggregate cost is as follows:

Name 2005 Award 2006 Award 2007 Award
Mr. Ben-Ozer .....cocvvvrirsiiirersiesesssssssnnns $ 24,727 $ 26615
% (011 RO $5,206 $ 24,727 $ 26,615
MS. COREDL......oooeeeeeeerviee e eereeeesrenans $ 26,328 $ 26,615
Mr. F1anzraich ... e $ 5,206 $ 32,130 $ 39923
Mr. FIINN 1ot rscesnesseesseessneien: $ 24,727 $ 53,230
MI HELZ oo cervesessnssaressarassassessiesssssesansns $ 24727 $ 26,615
Mr. Katzman ..........ccvreescsmmsnsmrascarsisonn $38,215 $235,120 $1,995,900
Dr, LInNeman ................cooeimmummsseensssserersens $ 24,727 $ 26,615
Mr. Segal ..., 3 24727 $ 26,615

(1) Represents the dollar amount recognized for financial staternent purposes far stock option awards to Mr. Katzman in 2006. The amounts
recognized were determined in accordance with FAS 123R. For a discussion of the assumptions made in the determination of cost under
FAS 123R, see footnote 4 to the Summary Compensation Table beginning on page 22.

{2) M. Flion served as our director from February 2003 until May 2007, Therefore, in 2007 he only participated on our board fer a partial

year. However, upon his retirement from the board, the committee resolved to accelerate the vesting of his unvested awards. The amounts
included in the mble also reflest this accelerated vesting.
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The following table sets forth the aggregate number of shares of restricted stock and unvested stock options beld by each non-employee

director as of December 31, 2007,
Number of Shares Number of Unvested
Name of Restricted Stock Optiony
M. Ben-Ozer.....occvcrvrnries s invnsssnensens 1,000
Ml'. CaSsel ................................................... 1,000
MS, COBED...ovrrieremcececcer et sesreresse et 1,000
Mr. Flanzraich.............. 1,500
ML FIRD..co v nvnrenrenssssessessessesessnsres 1,000
1% R0 o (- RSO 1,000
Mr. Katzman........cc..ceceveeeenineerecnsecneressasernens 235,500 327,987
Dr. LINNEMEAN ..veevnveivesnsrerrineseereensssesencssenes 1,000
M, Segal .....ooveerivrmenisrsrersrsnnssssesesesnens 1,000

The aggregate FAS 123R grant date value of the restricted stock awards granted in 2007 was as follows:

Name Grant Date Falr Value
Mr. BEn-0zer.........coervvmneeirinsrimermniererniaeens $ 53230
MI. CasSeL...ccveeicceei e sasess e rsarene $ 53,230
MS. CORBNL.....ocveiiiree e reresenennas $ 53,230
Mr. Flanzraich .......ccccevevvmmricirsnsesesnsisennrens $ 79,845
ME. FNNL..coveeccneneineressesenrnsresarnssnseereians $ 53,230
MI. HELZ oot rsresseereesanesnnnnens $ 53,230
MI, KatZMAN.... oo e eresiseoncsarasrssaseesons $7,983,600
Dr, LINNeman........coceveemaenrermasrmseseernresesens $ 53,230
ME, SE Al ..ottt et e $ 53,230
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PAYMENTS UPON 'iERDI]NAﬂON OF EMPLOYMENT AND CHANGE OF CONTROL

Agreements with our chairman and each of executive officers require or required us to make certain
payments and provide certain benefits to them in the event of a termination of their agreement or employment, as
applicable, following a change of control of our company, This section provides a discussion of those payments and
benefits, along with certain other terms of those agreements that are in effect as of the date of this proxy statement.

As noted above, Mr. Stauffer, our former executive vice president and chief operating officer, resigned
effective as of February 29, 2008. No severance payments were made to him following the termination of his

employment.

Our Chairman's Compensation Agreement. Chaim Katzman has served as our chairman of the board since
we were founded in 1992, Until December 2006, he also served as our CEQ and was therefore an employee-
director. Effective January 1, 2007, following his resignation as CEO and the termination of his employment, we
entered into a chairman’s compensation agreement with him, The term of this agreement ends December 31, 2010
and will automatically renew for successive one-year periods unless cither party gives the other written notice at
lcast six months before its expiration.

In connection with his agreement, Mr. Katzman was awarded an option to purchase 437,317 shares of our
common stock at an exercise price of $24.12, which option vests pro mta over a four year period commencing
December 21, 2007. In 2007, we recognized an expense equal to $331,332 under FAS 123R based on the
assumptions described in footnote 4 to our Summary Compensation Table above with respect to this option award.
In addition, Mr. Katzrman received 300,000 shares of restricted stock, which shares also vest pro mata over the four
year period commencing Deceriber 31, 2007. In 2007, we recognized an expense equal to $1,995,900 under FAS
123R based on the assumptions described in footnote 3 to our Summary Compensation Table above with respect to
this restricted stock award. Mr. Katzman is also eligible for an annual bonus in the discretion of the committee. He
did not receive a bonus in 2007.-

If the chairman’s agreement is terminated due to death or "disability™ (as defined in the agreement) of Mr.
Katzman other than folowing a “change of control” (as defined in the agreement), Mr, Katzman or his estate will be
entitled to receive an amount equal to his most recent bonus, if any, and all stock options and shares of restricted
stock shall fully vest as of the date of such termination. If the agreement is terminated (a) by us “without cause,” (b)
by Mr. Katzman for “good reason” or (¢) voluntarily by Mr. Katzman, as the result of the death or Disability of Mr.
Katzman or by us (other than for cause) following a “change of control” (as such terms are defined in the
agreement), Mr, Katzman will receive a lump-sum payment equal to three times the sum of (i) his most recent
bonus, if any, (ii) the “value” of 75,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (as determined under the
agreement) and (iii) the value of options to acquire 109,329 shares of Company common stock at $24.12 per share
based on the Black Scholes valuation methodology. In addition, following any termination referred to in the
preceding sentence, all options and restricted stock shall fully vest as of the date of termination or “change of
control,” as the case may be.

If any amounts and benefits paid to Mr. Katzman are deemed to be “parachute payments” within the
meaning of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code and subject to the excise tax under Section 4999 of the
Code, such payments will be “grossed up” to make Mr, Katzman whole for the impact of such excise tax.

Employment Agreements with Executive Officers. We have executed employment agreements with Messrs.
Olson, Caputo, Andrews, Gallagher and McDonough. A description of those agreements is as follows:

Term: All of the agreements will expire on December 31, 2010, except Mr.
Gallagher’s which expires December 31, 2009. Each of these employment
agreements is automatically renewable annually unless either party gives
written notice of an intent oot to renew.

Base Salary: *  Mr. Olson. $672,750
. e Mr. Caputo. $600,000




o Mr. Andrews. $362,250
s Mr. Gallagher. $300,000
e Mr. McDonough. $300,000
The base salaries for all executives can be increased annually at the

discretion of the committee.

Bonus: Cash Bonus. Each cxecutive is entitled to an annual cash bonus based
upon the achievement of certain performance levels established by the
committee, subject to minimumn bonuses equal to:

¢ Mr. Olson. $500,000
*  Mr. Caputo. $150,000
e Mr. Andrews. $181,125

®  Mr. Gallagher. $100,000
s Mr. McDonough. $150,000 ($62,500 for 2007 partial year)

Incentive Upon the effective date of the employment agreement, each executive
Compensation: received:

e Mr. Olson. 97,166 shares of restricted stock and options to
acquire 800,000 shares of stock, each vesting pro rata over a four
year period commencing on December 31, 2007

¢ Mr. Caputo. 4647\ shares of restricted stock and options to
acquire 250,000 shares of stock, vesting pro rata over a four vear
period commencing on March 14, 2009

s Mr. Andrews. 12,500 shares of restricted stock and options to
acquire 100,000 shares of stock, each vesting pro rata over a four
year period commencing on December 31, 2007

e Mr. Gallagher. 7,500 shares of restricted stock and options to
acquire 30,000 shares of stock, each vesting pro rata over a three
year period commencing on December 31, 2007

»  Mr. McDonough. 10,000 shares of restricted stock and options to
acquire 75,000 shares of stock, each vesting pro rata over a four
year period commencing on July 30, 2008

At the discretion of the committee, additional equity awards may be paid
to each executive during the term of their agreement, subject to a
minimum of:

s Mr. Olson. Options to purchase 200,000 shares of stock, vesting
over a two ycar period

*  Mr. Caputo. Options to purchase 100,000 shares of stock, vesting
over a four year period

e Mr. Andrews. 12,500 shares of restricted stock and options to
purchase 100,000 shares of stock, vesting over a four year period

e Mr. Gallagher. 7,500 shares of restricted stock and options with
an aggregate value cqual to $100,000, cach vesting pro rata over
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Deferred Signing
Bonus:

Long-term Cash
Incentive;

Termination and
Benefits:

a three year period

»  Mr. McDonough. 10,000 shares of restricted stock and opfions to
acquire 75,000 shares of stock, each vesting pro rata over a four

year period

Mr. Olson was also granted a deferred signing bonus in the amount of
$2,056,000 payable pro rata over a 4-year period commencing on
December 31, 2007,

Messrs. Olson, Andrews and McDonough are eligible to receive an
additional cash bonus within 45 days of December 31, 2010 (or such
shorter time as provided in their respective agreement) if owr total
stockholder retumn for g period ending December 31, 2010 (or such shorter
time as provided in their agreement) (a) exceeds the average total
stockholder return of a group of peer companies by certain predetermined
amounts and (b) equals or exceeds a certain predetermined amount. The
amount of the incentive payment ranges as follows:

*»  Mr Olson. $0 to $6 million
s Mr. Andrews. $0to $3 million
¢ Mr. McDonough. $0 to 2 million

If any of the executive’s employment is terminated as a result of death or
disability (other than following a “change of control,” as defined in the
agreement), then we owe the executives:

e Mr. Qison. A lump sum payment equal to base salary and accrued
vacation pay through the date of termination plus the base salary
and average bonus through the term of the agreement

s Messrs. Caputo, Andrews, Gallagher and McDonough. A lump
sum payment equal to basc salary and accrued vacation pay
through the date of termination plus the lesser of one year's base
salary and average bonus or his base salary and average bonus
through the term of the agreement

If any of the executive's employment is terminated (a) by us “without
cause,” (b) by the executive for “good reason” or (c) by the executive’s
resignation, death or “‘disability” following a “change of control,”

e Mr. Olson will receive, in addition to accrued base salary and
vacation pay, a lump-sum payment equal to the greater of:

o two times the sum of his then-curremt base salary plus
his average bonus, if any, for the three most recently
completed fiscal years; or

o his then current base salary plus his average bonus, if
any, for the three most recently completed fiscal years
for the remaining duration of the employment period.

» Mr. Caputo will reccive, in addition to accrued base salary and
vacation pay, a lump-sum payment equal to 1.75 times the sum of
his then-current base salary plus his average bonus, if any, for the
three most recently completed fiscal years

o Messrs. Andrews, Gallagher and McDonough will receive, in
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Other Perquisites
and Benefits

addition to accrued basc salary and vacation pay, a tump-sum
payment equal to two times the sum of his then-current base
salary plus his average bonus, if any, for the three most recently
completed fiscal years

In the case of Mr. Olson, he would also receive a lump-sum payment equal
to the amount of the unpaid balance of the deferred signing bonus,
described above. In addition, for any termination upon death or disability,
without cause ot for good reason, all stock options and restricted stock that
were to vest based on the passage of time shall fully vest as of the date of
termination. If, in the case of resignation, death or disability following a
change of control, the termination precedes the otherwise applicable end-
date for a performance period for stock options or restricted stock granted
to the exccutive, a percentage of such stock options or restricted stock
shall vest as of the date of termination equal to the period of time that has
elapsed since the date of award of such stock options or restricted stock
compared to the total time during the performance period stated in the
award of such stock options or restricted stock. In addition, following a
termination described in (a) — (c) above, we will maintain for the
continued benefit of Mr. Olson, his spouse and dependents for a period of
up to three years following the date of termination their medical, dental
and life insurance benefits.

In the case of the termination of Messrs., Olson's, Andrews' or Mr.
McDonough's employment, other than for cause or resignation with good
reason, then the performance period under the long-term incentive
payment described above shall accelerate and if the objectives are met, the
executive will be entitled to the corresponding payment.

If any amounts and benefits paid to any executive are deemed to be
“parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Internal
Revenue Code and subject to the excise tax under Section 4999 of the
Code, such payments will be “grossed up” to make the exccutive whole
for the impact of such excise tax.

During the term of Messrs. Olson and Andrews employment agreements,
we agreed to provide both executives, at our cost, with an automobile for
his business use. We also agreed to allow the executives to use the
automobile for his personal use at no cost to him, except as required by the
rules of the Internal Revenue Service. We agreed to pay for car service for
Mr. Caputo to and from work. Messrs, Gallagher and McDonough will
receive s automobile allowance of $625 and $650 per month, respectively.
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Estimated Additional Compensation Triggered by Termination of Employment as if Terminated on the Last
Business Day of 2007
Accelerated
Continucd  Accelerated Vesting of
Medical Deferred Eqnity Total
Payment Beneflt Bonus Awards Tax-Grossup  Payments
Employee: ($) {SX1) ($K2) GX3) (5){4) (SUS)
JefTrey S. Olson
Death or Disability § 3,699,999 —_ $1,542,000 $ 1,678,300 — $ 6,920,299
Without Causc or
withGood Reason  § 3,699,999 § 37,620 $1,542,000 $ 1,678.300 — $ 6957919
Change of control § 13,699,999 H 37.620 §1,542,000 $ 1,673,300 $2,132,604 5 9,090,522
Jeflrey Stauffer
Death or Disability § 600,000 —_ — $ 690,900 — $ 1,290,900
Without Csuse or
with Good Reason $ 1,200,000 - -_ $ 690,900 -_ $ 1,890,900
Change of control $ 1,800,000 — — $ 690,900 —_ $ 2,490,900
Gregory Andrews
Death or Disability $ 600,000 - — $ 215906 — $ 815906
Without Cguse or )
with Good Reason $ 1,200,000 - - $ 215906 — $ 1,415906
Change of control 5 1,200,000 — - $ 215906 -— $ 1415906
Arthur Gallagher
Death or Disability § 373,618 —_ —_— § 184240 - $ 557,858
Without Cause or
with Good Resson $ 74726 —_ - $ 184240 — $ 9314
Change of control $ 74723 - - 5 184240 — $ 931476
Thomas McDonough
Death or Disability 5 425,000 - — § 460,600 — 5 885600
Withowt Cause or
with Good Reason § 350,000 —_ - $ 460,600 — $ 1,310,600
Change of control $ 850,000 - - $ 460,000 $ 361,665 § 1,672,265
(1) Following a termination by us without cause, by Mr. Olson with good reason or following a change of coatrol, we have agreed to provide
him, his spouse and his dependents medical, dental and life insurance benefits for three years. The amounts in this column are estimated
using the COBRA payments for such coverage.
(2) Rcpresents the unpaid portion of the deferred signing bonus that is payable under the terms of Mr. Olson’s employment agreement
following a termination event
(3)  Represents the value of the unvested shares of restricted stock owned by the executive as of December 31, 2007, calculated by multiplying
the number of shares by the closing price of our stock on December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2007, the value of all unvested options
owned by the named executive officers was zero as the closing price ob that date exceeded the exercise prices of those options.

(4)  We are required to pay to each exccutive in the above table a tax gross-up payment to reimburse the executive for any excise tax to which
he would be subjcct under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code with respect to any “excess parachute payment™ that he receives
from us. The executive generally would not be considered to receive an “excess parachute payment™ unless the payments made to him that
arc contingent on a change in control exceed three times the average of his W-2 compensation for the five years immediately prior to the
year in which the change in control occurs. Therefore, facts and circumstances st the time of any change in control, as well as changes in
the executive’s W-2 compensation history, could materially impact whether and to what extent any payment to an executive would result
in an “excess parachute payment” and thus resull in an cxcise tax with respect to which we would be required to make a tax gross-up
payment.

(5}  Does not include any value for the long term cash incentives payable under the employment sgreements with Messrs. Olson, Andrews,
Stauffer or McDonough because, as of December 31, 2007, the company did not meet the threshold retum required for payment.

SHARE OWNERSHIP INFORMATION
Section 16(a) Beneficlal Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors, executive officers and persons
who own more than ten percent of our outstanding common stock to file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC, initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of common stock. Such
persons are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all such reports they file.
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To our knowledge, based solely on a review of the copies of such reports fumnished to us and written
representations that no other reports are required, all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to our officers,
directors and greater than ten percent beneficial owners have been complied with during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2007.

CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

While not a formal written policy, in the past, either our full board or ont of its commitiees has reviewed
and approved or ratified any related party transactions. These transactions include:

transactions that must be disclosed in proxy statements under SEC rules; and

transactions that potentially could cause a non-employee director to ccasc to qualify as an
independent director under New York Stock Exchange listing requirements or the ratings criteria
of various shareholder or other institutional organizations.

Transactions that are deemed immaterial under applicable disclosure requirements are generally deemed
pre-approved.

Criteria for board or committee approval or ratification of a related party transaction include, in addition to
factors that the board or committee, as applicable, otherwise deems appropriate under the circumstances:

o  whether the transaction is on terms no less favorabie than terms generally available from an
unaffiliated third party; and

s in the case of a non-employee director, whether the transaction would disqualify the director from
{1) being deemed independent under New York Stock Exchange listing requirements or (2) from
serving on the audit committee, compensation committec or nominating and corporate governance
committee under New York Stock Exchange and other regulatory requirements.

The foregoing policies and procedures have been followed in connection with the review and approval or
ratification of all of the transactions noted below.

IFRS Financial Statements

We have agreed with Gazit-Globe, Ltd., onc of our principal stockholders, to assist them with their
adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards, or IFRS, commencing in 2007. IFRS requires fair
market value accounting for income-producing investment property.

In connection with this project, Gazit-Globe agreed to reimburse us for any internal or third party costs
associated with the preparation of the valuation and reconciliation, including the acquisition and implementation of
certain software to assist us in the valuation of our propertics. As of December 31, 2007, we had incurred
approximately $1,3 million of costs related to these activities, all of which are reimbursable by Gazit-Globe. In
addition, we anticipate that this arrangement will continue on a quarterly and annual basis in the future.

Investment Contract and Use Agreement

We are party to a use agreement dated January 1, 1996 with an affiliate of Gazit-Globe. Pursuant to this
agreement, we agreed to permit Chaim Katzman, our chairman of the board, or any of Gazit-Globe's other
employees to use our facilities, equipment, supplies and personnel necessary to conduct its business and affairs. In
consideration for the use of these facilities, Gazit-Globe agreed to pay us an annual sum of $10,000.

In addition, we have previously entered into an investment contract, dated May 21, 1996, with several of
our principal stockholders, including the predecessor to Gazit-Globe. This agreement provides, in addition to other
agreements, covenants and obligations that have been satisfied, that we would prepare and furnish to Gazit-Globe or
its affiliates certain of our financial statements required by Gazit-Globe for purposes of consolidating our financial
results with those of Gazit-Globe as required by Isracli gencrally accepted accounting principles and the Tel-Aviv
Stock Exchange Ltd., on which the shares of capital stock of Gazit-Globe are currently traded.
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Effective January 1, 2004, we entered into a clarification agreement and protocol with Gazit-Globe. The
clarification agreement clarifies certain provisions of the use agreement and the investment contract, including that
Gazit-Globe agrees to reimburse us for third-party expenses incurred by us in the use of our office facilities and the
provision of the Israeli financial statements. In addition, in the clarification agreement we agreed to provide Gazit-
Globe certain information technology services and Gazit-Globe agreed to pay us monthly fees of $1,500 for those
services.




SECURITY OWNERSHIP

The table below sets forth, as of March 31, 2008, the number of shares of our common stock which were

owned beneficially by:
L J
¢ each director and nominee for director;
+ each named executive officer; and
»

al) of our directors and executive officers as a group.

cach person who is known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of our common stock;

Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each of the individuals listed in the table is ¢/o Equity Ong, Inc.,
1600 N.E. Miami Gardens Drive, North Miami Beach, Florida 33179.

The number of shares beneficially owned by each individual or group is based upon informaticn in
documents filed by such person with the Securities and Exchange Commission, other publicly available information
or information available to us. Percentage ownership in the following table is based on 73,972,230 shares of
common stock outstanding as of March 31, 2008. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules
of the Securities and Exchange Commission and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to
securities. Shares of our common stock subject to options that are presently exercisable or exercisable within 60
days of March 31, 2008 or which are scheduled to be issued within 60 days of March 31, 2008 are deemed to be
outstanding and beneficially owned by the person holding the options for the purpose of computing the percentage
of ownership of that person, but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage of any

other person.
Amounn{ and Natare of Percentage of Outstanding

Nsme and Address of Bepeficial Owuer Beneficial Owrership Shares Owned
Chaim KAZIMAN {1 ).....ooovermmerersiserseesssesssssesssssannrons 36,368,195 49.2%
Gazit-Globe, Ltd. (2) ...cccvrrervieeimrermseesessersinenassenss 35,397,663 47.9%
M.G.N. (USA), InC. (3)...ccvcniniiniinccensncrenrsrersasannas 20,150,896 27.2%
First Capital Realty, Inc. (4) .......cccoorvrimreemeeecnrnens 13,983,570 18.9%
Gazit (1995), InC. (5) ceveevrrere e rvesnsrrarsriresrsreseies 8,748,422 11.8%
Silver Maple (2001), Inc. (6) ......cecrvvmrmnsvsnsisiriresans 8,315,363 11.2%
Ficus, InC. (7)evrinnuiinmnnnnnrinesrmnssinesin 5,668,207 1.7%
MGN America, Inc. (B) ..c.....ooveiivrmivinnrrrrnicenenns 5,283,829 7.1%
Nathan HetZ (9) ..o evviviinninscinsensecsrnnsesarnsssssssssias 5,117,642 6.9%
Alony Hetz Properties & Investments, Ltd. (10)...... 5,099,442 6.9%
Jeffrey S, Q150D ... e e rreeseessreressees 331,619 .
Arthur Gallagher.........ccoeieceireecrireerermerssesecsasnenas 62,600 .
Gregory ANAIEWS........cccvrvurersneseresnssirernnmsssrsssensenss 50,000 .
Thomas Caputo......ceerervreersassermensesssiarssorssssraseesase 46,471 *
Noam Ben-Ozer.........ooecrenervmrscmisiscsscciniiinsnins 35,178 .
Jeffrey 5. Stauffer (11) .....covvevvererrcrenesmreecsererpmnaene 29,000 .
Thomas McDonough .......c...ouerviieenrnerncececcnrnran 24,167 .
Peter LinNeman. ........ccocvcvneeereeeececeerrennnesvernsensasens 19,200 .
Neil Flanzraich .......ccovernivenicnciiniocrconemorenn 10,500 *
James S, Cassel.......cooveninrrecnininecnisisssesensssernrnnes 8,052 *
Cynthia R, Cohen ... rresi i i 6,000 *
All current executive officers and directors of
Equity One as a group (13 persons) (12} .cverveennnne 42,090,574 56.9%

. Represents ownership of less than 1.0%

{1) Includes (i) 35,397,663 shares of common stock beneficially owned by Gazit-Globe, Ltd., which Me. Katzman may be deemed to control,
and (ii) 234,330 shares of common stock issuable to Mr. Katzman upon the exercise of options which are currently exercisable. Of the
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shares included as beneficially owned by Mr. Katzman, 26,786,781 shares are pledged to secure indebtedness owed by Mr. Katzman or his
affiliates.

Includes (i) 20,150,896 shares of common stock beneficially owned by M.G.N. (USA), Inc. and (ii) 13,983,570 shares of common stock
beneficially owned by First Capital Realty Inc., both of which re controlled by Gazit-Globe, Ltd. Of the shares included as beneficially
owned by Gazit-Globe, Ltd., 26,786, 781 shares are pledged 1o secure indebtedness owed by it or its affiliates,

[ectudes (i) 5,283,829 shares of common stock owned by MGN America, Inc, and (i) 8,748,422 shares of common stock owned by Gazit
(1995), Inc., both of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of MJG.N, (USA), Inc. Of the shares included as bencficially owned by M.G.N.
(USA), Inc., 12,802,996 sharcs are pledged to secure indebtedness owed by it or its affiliates.

Includes (i) 8,315,363 shares of common stock owned by Silver Maple (2001), Inc. and (ii) 5,668,207 shares of common stock owned by
Ficus, Inc., both of which are indirect, wholly-owned subsidiaries of First Capitat Realty Inc. All of shares reported as beneficially owned
by First Capital Realty, Inc. are pledged to secure indebtedness owed by it or its affiliates.

4,444 424 of the shares beneficially owned by Gazit (1995), Inc. are pledged to secure indebizdness owed by it and its affiliates.

All of the shares beneficially owned by Silver Maple (2001), Inc. are pledged to sccure indebiedness owed by it.

All of the shares beneficially owned by Ficus, Inc. are pledged to secure indebiedness owed by it.

4,855,979 of the shares bencﬁciaily awned by MGN America, Inc. are pledged to secure indebtedness owed by it.

Includes 5,099,442 sharcs of commeon stock beneficially owned by Alony Hetz Properties & Investments, Ltd., which Mr. Herz may be
deemed 10 contro!l. Of the shares included as beneficially owned by Mr. Hetz, 5,099,442 shares are pledged to secure indebtedness owed
by Alony Hetz Propenties & Investments, Ltd, or its affiliatcs.

All of the shares bencficially owned by Alony Hetz Properties & Investments, Lid. and A.H. Holdings US, Inc. are pledged to sccure
indebtedness owed by it or its affiliates.

Mr. Stauffer resigned from his positions cffective February 29, 2008, The amounts reflected in this table are based on the last amounts
reported by Mr. Stauffer under Section 16 of the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934, less those shares forfeited by him upon his resignation.

Sec footnotes (1) through (10). In addition to the executive officers included in the table, the total number also inctudes shares owned by
Thomass Caputo, who joined us on March 14, 2008 but does not include any sharcs held by Mr. Stauffer who resigned cffective as of
February 29, 2008, Also includes 287,330 shares of common stock issuable to our other executive officers upon the exercise of aptions
which are currently exercisable.

As shown above, several of our affiliated stockholders that beneficially own a significant interest in our

company, including Gazit-Globe, Ltd., Silver Maple (2001), Inc., Ficus, Inc. and related entities, have pledged a
substantial portion of our stock that they own to secure loans made to them by commercial banks.

If a stockholder defaults on any of its obligations under these pledge agreements or the related loan

documents, these banks may have the right to sell the pledged shares in one or more public or private sales that
could cause our stock price to decline. Many of the occurrences that could result in a foreclosure of the pledged
shares are out of our control and are unrelated to our operations. Some of the occurrences that may constitute such
an event of default include:

the stockholder’s failure to make a payment of principal or interest when due;
the occurrence of another default that would entitle any of the stockholder’s other creditors to
accelerate payment of any debts and obligations owed to them by the stockhotder;

s if the bank, in its absolute discretion, deems that a change has occurred in the condition of the
stockholder to which the bank has not given its prior written consent;

» if the stockholder ceases to pay its debis or manage its affairs or reaches a compromise or
arrangement with its creditors; and

« if, in the opinion of thc bank, the value of the pledged shares shall be reduced or is likely to be
reduced (for example, the price of our common stock declines).

In addition, because so many shares are pledged to secure loans, the occurrence of an event of default could

result in a sale of pledged shares that could cause a change of contro! of our company, even when such a change
may not be in the best interests of our stockholders,
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STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

Our bylaws cumently provide that in order for a stockholder to nominate a candidate for election as a
director at an annual meeting of stockholders or propose business for consideration at such meeting, written notice
generally must be delivered to our corporate secretary not later than the close of business on the 60th day, and not
earlier than the close of business on the 90th day, prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year’s annual
meeting. Accordingly, a stockholder nomination or proposal intended to be considered at the 2009 annual meeting,
but not included in our proxy statement, generally must be received by our corporate secretary after the close of
business on February 27, 2009, and prior to the close of business on March 28, 2009.

The date by which we must receive stockholder proposals for inclusion in the proxy materials relating to
the 2008 annual meeting of stockholders, or for presentation at such meeting, is December 31, 2007, In the event
that the 2009 annual meeting of stockholders is called for a date that is not within 30 days before or after May 27,
2009, in order to be timely, we must receive notice by the stockholder not later than the close of business on the later
of 120 calendar days in advance of the 2009 annual meeting of stockholders or ten calendar days following the date
on which public announcement of the date of the meeting is first made. Stockholder proposals must comply with all
of the applicable requirements st forth in the rules and regulations of the SEC, including Rule 14a-8, as well as the
advance notification requirements set forth in our bylaws.

Stockholder proposals should be mailed to the attention of, and copies of the advance notification
requirements may be obtained from, our corporate secretary at 1600 N.E. Miami Gardens Drive, North Miami
Beach, Florida 33179. A copy of the bylaws may be obtained from our corporate secretary by written request to the
same address.

2007 ANNUAL REPORT

Coples of our 2007 Annual Report, financial statements and Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2007, as filed with the SEC, may be obtained without charge by contacting Equity One, Inc. — Investor
Relations, at 1600 N.E, Miami Gardens Drive, North Miami Beach, Florida 33179.

OTHER MATTERS

Our board of directors knows of no other matters to be presented for stockholder action at the 2008 annual
meeting of stockholders. If any other matters are properly presented at the meeting for action, it is intended that the
persens named in the proxies will vote upon such matters in accordance with their discretion.
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Definite Proxy Statement

EQuITY

ONE™

EQUITY ONE, INC.

C/0 PROXY SERVICES
P.O. BOX 9142
FARMINGDALE, NY 11735

TO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS:

Page 1 of 3

VOTE BY INTERNET - wwx.proayvoig.com

Use the Inteinet to ransmit your veting instructions and for elecironic delivery of
information wp until 11:59 P.M. Easiern Time on May 26, 2008. Have your
proxy card in hand when you access the web sitc and follow the instructions to
obtain your recards and 10 creale an ¢lecisonic voting insiruction form.

ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF FUTURE STOCKHOLDER
COMMUNICATIONS

If you would like 10 reduce the costs incurred by Equity One, Inc. in mailing
proxy matesinls, you can consent to receiving all future proxy siatements, proxy
casds and annual reports clectronically via ¢-mail of the Interner, To sign op for
electronic delivery, piease folfow the insuructions above o voie using ihe Internet
and, when prompted, indicate that you agree Lo receive or nccess stockholder
communications electronically in future years.

YOTE BY PHONE - 1-800-690-6903

Use any souch-lone telephont Lo transmit your voling instructions up until 11:59
P.M. Eastern Time on May 26, 2008. Have your proxy card in hand when you
call and then follow the instructions.

VOTE BY MAIL

Mark, sign ond dete your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope
we have provided or retumn 01 10 Equity One, Inc., ¢fo Broadridge, 51 Metcedes
Way, Edgewood, NY 11717,

EQTYOL . KEEPTHIS PORTION FOR YOUR RECORDS

““DETACH AND RETURN THIS PORTION ONLY

THIS PROXY CARD IS VALID ONLY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED.

EQUITY ONE, INC.
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

For Withh
All All

RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” EACH
OF THE NOMINEES FOR DIRECTOR

old For All To withhold authority to vote for any
Except individual nominee(s}, mark “For All Except”
and write the number(s) of the nominee(s) on
the line below,

AND FOR ITEM 2.
] 0 ]

Yote on Directors
1. Election Of Directors

Nominees:

01) Noam Ben-Ozer 06) Chaim Katzman

(2) JamesS. Cassel 07) Peter Linneman

03) Cynthia R. Cohen 08) Jeffrey S. Olson

04) Neil Flanzraich 09) Dori Segal

05) Nathan Hetz
Vole on Propesal For Against Abstain
2. Ratification of the appointment of Emst & Young LLP as our independent auditors for o 0 0

2008.

3. In their discretion, upon such other matters that may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or

adjournments thercof,

The shares represented by this proxy when properly executed will be voted in the manner directed herein by the
undersigned Stockholder(s). If no direction is made, this proxy will be voted FOR each of the nominees for director
and FOR item 2. If any other matters properly come before the meeting, the person named in this proxy will vote in their

discretion.

For address changes and/or comments, please check this box and write O

them on the back where indicated.

Please indicate if you plan to attend this meeting.

] 0

Yes No
(NOTE: Please sign exactly as your name(s) appear(s) hereon. All holders
must sign. When signing as attorney, executor, administrator, or other
fiduciary, please give full title as such. Joint owners should each sign

hup://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1042810/00011931 2508082963/ddef14a.him 4/22/2008




Definite Proxy Statement Page 2 of 3 i

personally. If a corporation, please sign in full corporate name, by authorized
officer, Il a parinership, please sign in paninership name by authorized person.)

Signature [PLEASE SIGN WITHIN Date Signature (Joint Owners) Date
BOX]

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1042810/000119312508082963/ddef14a.him 4/22/2008
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Table of Contents

Important Notice Regarding Internet Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting:
The Notice and Proxy Statement and Annual Report are available a1 www.proxyvote.com.

EQUITY ONE, INC,
THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
MAY 27,2008

The stockholder(s) hereby appoini(s} Jeffrey S. Olson, Gregory R. Andrews and Arthur L. Gallagher, or any of them, as
proxies, each with the power to appoint his substitute, and hereby authorizes them to represent and to vote, as designated on
the reverse side of this ballot, all of the shares of Common Stock of Equity One, Inc. that the stockholder(s) is/are entitled 1o
vote at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at 10:00 a.m., Eastern Time on Tuesday, May 27, 2008, at The Westin
Diplomat Resort and Spa, 3555 South Ocean Drive, Hollywood, Florida 33019, and any adjournment or postponement
thereof. The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of the Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and of the
accompanying Proxy Statement, the terms of each of which are incorporated herein by reference, and revokes any proxy
heretofore given with respect to such meeting.

THIS PROXY, WHEN PROPERLY EXECUTED, WILL BE VOTED AS DIRECTED BY THE STOCKHOLDER
(S). IF NO SUCH DIRECTIONS ARE MADE, THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED FOR THE ELECTION OF THE
NOMINEES LISTED ON THE REVERSESIDE FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND FOR THE PROPOSAL
IN ITEM 2. THE VOTES ENTITLED TO BE CAST BY THE UNDERSIGNED WILL BE CAST IN THE
DISCRETION OF THE PROXY HOLDER ON ANY OTHER MATTER THAT MAY PROPERLY COME
BEFORE THE MEETING OR ANY ADJOURNMENT OR POSTPONEMENT THEREQF.

PLEASE MARK, SIGN, DATE AND RETURN THIS PROXY CARD PROMPTLY USING THE ENCLOSED
REPLY ENVELOPE

Address Changes/Comments:

(If you noted any Address Changes/Comments above, please mark corresponding box on the reverse side.)

CONTINUED AND TO BE SIGNED ON REVERSE SIDE

http:/fwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1042810/000119312508082963/ddef14a.htm 4/22/2008




ONVNID IRECTORS

TANDING, FROM LEFT TO RIGHT:
e S, Coxaal, Prasidac, Lodenburg Thatmann ond Co. Inc. {J}{#); Cyathio R Coben,
Jordss, Stratagic Mindshare (Z)3); Mo Ben-Ozes, Foundar, Focol Advisory (ZH3).

6, FROM LEFT TD RIGHT:
Olson, Chief Exeoutive Officer of Equity Ong, Ine, {1); Chaios Kerznaan, Chaiman of
ity Ore, lo; Chairmany of Geazit-Globe {§987), Und; (hoiman, Firs Capital Reclty, bnc. (1}
. Peter Lineman, Abert Sussman Professor of Real Estate, Finanes and Public Poficy. The
haron School, Universizy of Pecosyhanda (1)(3)(4).

PHOTOGRAPHED

Pazraich, Former Yicy Cholrmon ond President, (VAX Corporation; Private tmvestor
(4)(5); bothon Hetz, Cief Exacutiva Offices, Alony Hetz Properties & Investments, 1, (2):

1, Segal, President, Gazil-Hobe (1962), nd; Preidare and hief Ecocutive Officer, First
pial Recity, e {1).

{1) Eanim (oexmition (2} ot Commitee. {3} Nainering £ Corporete Gowamant Comminm
{#) Compeawtion Commitie (5} taod Cirecres

Grog Aodrews
Exzowive Yicy Pwniders Ve Presiden od

Serics Yies Pasidest ond

snd Chied Fiagnciol 0fFce (hid Aceounting Ofbou O Momicstartivs Offces end Cuiel Ervestment Oficar
9
71 and) prospecties Fqulty One imvesions ean receive u copy b0 of he- (smpany's provy sxubemest, eamings Transfer Agent & Registror Laga! Counsal Independant Avditors
quarterly and anowal repors by eoatodting: Ameticp Stod: Troncter & Tt Compony Gezenberg Trounig, P.A F) frost § Young, ALP
9 Moiden 1ane Miami, Fordk Migmi, Forida

Sty One, fnc. - Stockhelder Relmisns Annuo! Mesting of Stockholders New York, Mew York 10033

N.E. Miomi Gandens Drive Twesday, Moy 27, 2008 1000 am. Tol 718-921-8200 Fax 718-236-2540

Niami Beadh, Roddo 33179 Westin Diplomat Reson E-mal: info@amxstock com
305-947-1664 35505, Ocean Deive
305-947.1734 EOQY Hollyseed, Fi 33019

- o aquityons et dlll ) ) ' .

wh@sunennt  NYSE Certilications Regarding Pubc Disciosures & Listing Standards

Exguity One hes fled with the Securities and Exchonge Commission ("SEC") as edtibits 31.1 ond 31,2 0 its Anoval Report oo
Form 10-X for the yeat ended Decernter 31, 2007, the certificxtion required by Secion 307 of the Serbanes-Ondey Act regesding

information the qualiy oftha Company's pobbe disdosore. bn odition, the anmual eetiicztion e oor (hied Exocctive Offce eaqoiding com-
High ond low dasing prices 0od dividand disibutions Eue the common stock of Equity e, Ine. for the periods dianaa with the corparate governonce Fing stondards of th New York Stodk Exchange was sbmitted to the Mew York Stock
ot i the toble below wen: Exchange bolfoming the completion of ot 2007 enrual mesing of stockholders in June 7007,
2007 High low Phrided
Ouanes Ended tia Mo Pestbrion “Sate Harber Stment under the Private Securities Uitigation Reform Act o! 1995:
This Annuch Report contuirs forward-locking stotensans regardiog Compony urd property perfvrmance. Futurs rmeuts could very
Norch 31 §2076 52552 030 roowrcfly from octual remis deparding on warious focks, incding Hisks and uncentirties inhare in gaseret and loctl e
Jura 30 51930 $15.55 030 eskad mnditions, or compefiive factors specific 1o the markets in which the Company operuies. The Companry ossumes no obéi-
Sepenbes 3 S18.09 snn 030 Eion to updae #5s infoemation., Foe aary detulls, phecse refs o e Campany's SEC ings, indding the mes) racent reperts
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